Cabazon Water District
January 19, 2021 FAC Meeting Agenda

1

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Teleconference:
Dial-in #; 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 - 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report
e Balance Sheet

o Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues !
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (351) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

|}]u,9,



&

Cabazon Water District
January 19, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

1

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188
Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF QUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL
CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committee on
December 15, 2020
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of December 15, 2020

2. Warrants — None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Israel / Director Morris)
2. Update: Manager's Operations Report (by GM Louie)

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Q"[Lﬂ—'



Cabazon Water District
January 19, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion: Mr. Lance Eckhart, General Manager, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency -
Introduction, Brief Mission Statement by Mr. Eckhart, and Q&A (by GM
Louie)
2. Discussion/Action: Tank #2 exterior roof recoating quote & Tank #4 exterior recoating quote by
Simpson Sandblasting (by GM Louie)
3. Discussion/Action: Approval of Tank Diving Inspection for Tank 2, Tank 3, and Tank 4; quotes
received from Dive/Corr, Inc. & LiquiVision Technology Diving Services
(by GM Louie)
4. Discussion/Action: Board Training: AB54 & AB240 Ethics Training (by AGM Lemus)
OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion: NBS Water Rate Study Review and Discussion (by Board)
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1.

Future Agenda ltems

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

e Suggested agenda items from the Public.
o Suggested agenda items from Management.
e Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board

and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

2

%]10'L



Cabazon Water District
January 19, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

Finance & Audit Workshop ~ Tuesday — February 16, 2021, 5:00 pm

Regular Board Meeting ~ Tuesday - February 16, 2021, 6:00 pm

Personnel Committee — None

San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Wieeting — Wednesday - February 17,
2021

oo

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

3

q/\ui-



Cabazon Water District
December 15,2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

1

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street * P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 — 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

Director Wargo - Present
Director Sanderson - Present

Calvin Louie (General Manager) - Present
Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Absent

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report
o Balance Sheet
e  Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
Main Reports:
+ Balance Sheet — depicts what the District owns and what the District owes.
* Profit & Loss — shows monthly revenue and expenses.
* Profit & Loss Budget Performance — shows how the District is performing against the budget, and the condition of
the District fiscal year to date.

Balance Sheet:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

SI\\ﬂ/



Cabazon Water District | 2

December 15,2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

The District's combined Cash with Chase and LAIF balance was $1,291,743 at month end.
The District's total liabilities were approximately $914,178 at month end.

Profit and Loss: - Year to date is 42% of the year

4, Commodity Sales: This is variable income from water consumption charges. YTD (Year to Date) is trending above
budget at 62% due to higher consumption in the summer months.

32. Workers Compensation: The district makes worker's compensation installment payments in the first part of the
fiscal year. By November, workers compensation will be paid in full through 5/1/21. YTD is at 75% due to
timing of workers comp payments.

48. Engineering Services: This account includes the engineering costs for District activities. YTD trending above

. larget at 62% due to an unexpected amount of new development and the tank recoating project.

51. Gas: This account includes the gas costs for the Broadway office. YTD is trending below target at 11% due to

69. Temporary Labor: This account includes costs for the NBS rate study. YTD can trend over/under budget due to
timing of activity.

83. Safety: This account includes safety equipment purchases. YTD activity is a safety haress purchased in
November for $1.3k.

94. Miscellaneous: This account includes other non-operating expenses. YTD is over budget because of Covid
testing for employees preformed in October.

As of November 30th, the fiscal year-to-date net income is $117,788.
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 17:20 Hr. made by Director Sanderson and 2" by Director Wargo.

Director Wargo - Aye
Director Sanderson - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 17:20 Hr. on Tuesday, December 15, 2020

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

o) wr



'7/w1-

Cabazon Water District | 3

December 15, 2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188
Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL

Director Martin Sanderson - Present
Director Diana Morris - Present
Director Sarah Wargo - Present
Director Maxine Israel - Present
Director Robert Lynk - Present

Calvin Louie, General Manager - Present

Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present

Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Present

Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Present (in closed session only)

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

3[(07-

1



Cabazon Water District
December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committee on
November 17, 2020
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of November 17, 2020

Motion to approve following consent calendar item(s) (a.) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Minutes/Warrants of November 17, 2020, and (b.) Regular Board Meeting Minutes/ Warrants of November 17,
2020, made by Director Sanderson and 2" by Director Wargo.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

UPDATES

1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Israel / Director Morris)

Nothing to report.
*Went directly to Closed Session next*

2. Update: Manager's Operations Report (by GM Louie)
> Edison PSPS (Power Shutoff) Events: nothing changed; still on lookout for

these events in order to prepare.
Engie Solar Power: not feasible for the District at this time.
COVID-19: No new changes/nothing new to report.
Public Education Video ~ SCADA Alert Response: nothing new to report;
having trouble getting vendor to upload video (nonresponsive).
Dolores Property for Theerachtrat: GM and Field Crew Lead to determine
location/cost of each fire hydrant installation, and to confer with property
owner in regards to paying their share for the installation. Working with legal
in preparation of a cost share agreement.
Majestic Properties (Maxine and Date): new property owner has not applied
for water services/contacted the District as of yet.
> 50100 Main St. Property: Field crew to begin scrapping old materials in

preparation for the move to the new District yard.
> Chick-Fil-A project on Seminole (Old Hadley's building): Waiting on input
from Engineers (both District's engineers and Chick-Fil-A's). Still in the
planning stage at this time.
California Water Meter Tax — may be brought up again in 2021.
BB&K Joe Ortiz Moving On: The District's labor attorney has accepted
another position, and will be replaced by Elizabeth Han.
> Cabazon Post Office: District crew transported large boulders to post office

property per their request to block cars from parking in their planter beds.

T 4 YV VYVV

vv

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

2

‘?/\Lﬂ/



Cabazon Water District
December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

3

> San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency: Their board decided to NOT pursue
reducing their 7-member board to five members.

> Cabazon Office Dinosaur: the Dinosaurs eyes were recently stolen.

> Teleconferencing Capabilities: Google Meets was brought up, but their
platform is at a paid basis. Management to look into other options for
teleconference/board meeting calls.

CLOSED SESSION @ 18:16 hr.

(1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Potential Litigation (1 case).

OPEN SESSION @ 18:27 hr.

Nothing to report; no action taken.
NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: Report of the Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2019-2020, as
Presented by Fedak and Brown, LLP. (by Fedak & Brown — Byerrum)

e Audit went well; positive results — no material weaknesses found. Chris Brown
gave the audited financial statements overview and answered any questions
that were brought up.

e No motion was made, but the Board thanked Fedak & Brown for the presentation
and moved on with the meeting. There were no objections to the presentation
made by either Board or Public. It was the consensus of the Board that the
audit presentation was approved.

OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: NBS Water Rate Study Review and Discussion (by NBS)

e Overview: The Board previously selected a 30% fixed (meter charge) / 70%
variable (water usage charges) plan which was up for formal adoption during
the November regular board meeting. Due to a failure of votes and a
complaint from two Cabazon residents, it did not pass. This December
meeting was to determine what direction the Board wanted to head with the
water rates.

e  Approximately nine Cabazon residents called in during this meeting and
expressed their preference on the rate options. Four residents in particular
expressed that they would specifically fike the 30/70 rate structure, while
other residents noted that any of the proposed structures would benefit
them.

e The customer that complained previously explained that she would like the
rates to be more equitable, and when asked which rate plan specifically she
would prefer she answered either the 50/50 or 40/60 plans would be more
reasonable.

o  All customer concems and questions were listened to and addressed where
applicable. The board did its best in trying to make this as transparent and
understandable to the public as possible. Everyone appeared satisfied with

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

‘D/uw



@&

O

Cabazon Water District
December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

4

the discussion (no objections were raised, and everyone was able to
express their opinions and ask questions/have questions answered).

» The board also discussed the pros and cons of each rate structure
considered (30/70, 40/60, and 50/50). It was agreed by all that they would
like to lower the water rates for customers as responsibly and practically as
possible, while maintaining their responsibility of keeping the District in good
financial health (which is their obligation to govern).

Motion to approve a 50% fixed / 50% variable rate structure to be presented to the public and formally
approved during the February 16, 2021 Board Meeting (as per Prop 218 notice requirements) made by
Director Lynk and 2 by Director Sanderson.

Substitute motion to approve a 40% fixed / 60% variable rate to be presented to the public and formally
approved during the February 16, 2021 Board Meeting (as per Prop 218 notice requirements) made by
Director Morris, 2" by Director Israel.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

NEW BUSINESS

2. Discussion/Action: Reimbursement to Board Directors for taking COVID Test related to District
business. (by Director Wargo)

o While attending to District business, one of the Directors and her children
(who were with her) were potentially exposed to COVID-19. This Director had
to pay to have her and her children tested out of pocket. This discussion was
whether the District should reimburse her for her out-of-pocket expenses,
since she was potentially exposed while performing District duties.

Motion to approve the COVID-19 reimbursement made by Director Morris and 2 by Director Israel.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Abstain
Director Israel - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

3. Discussion/Action: Transfer of funds from the District's General Account to the District's LAIF
(Savings) Account. (by AGM Lemus)

e Itwas requested that $80,000 be moved from the Districts General Account
to the District's LAIF (Savings) Account, so that it may incur interest in the
District's benefit.

Motion to approve the transfer of $80,000 from the District’s General Acct. to the District's LAIF Account
made by Director Wargo and 2" by Director Morris.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Hlu.a’?/



P

Cabazon Water District
December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

4. Discussion/Action: Non-business Hour Water Emergency Response Fee Review (by GM Louie)

o This item was only discussed; no action taken. Essentially, the GM wanted to
know in what circumstances the District could charge a customer an after-
hours call-out fee if the customer did not request a call-out, but there was a
potential liability to the District if there was a leak detected/running water.

o The Board asked the General Manager to confer with legal and then to report
back to the board if further discussion/action was required.

e The GM requested that an Ad Hoc committee be formed to discuss this issue
in the near future. Director Israel and Director Wargo volunteered to be part of
this ad hoc committee.

*No motion made at this time.
*Note: The GM gave his Manager’s Report at this time.
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda ltems

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

o Suggested agenda items from the Public.
o Suggested agenda items from Management.

o Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

5

12{ b1



13/!(47/

Cabazon Water District | 6

December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

> Director Wargo mentioned she would like the District to look into paying for Google
Meets, Zoom Services, or something similar for future Board Meetings (to have the
capabilities to screen share, etc. during a meeting).
2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)
3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

> Director Morris is to speak with GM Louie regarding an Easter Egg donation for the
Spring Celebration next year.

MISCELLANEQOUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

Finance & Audit Workshop - Tuesday - January 19, 2021, 5:00 pm

Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday — January 19, 2021, 6:00 pm

Personnel Committee — None

San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting - Wednesday — Dec. 16, 2020

apop

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 20:24 hr. made by Director Morris and 2 by Director Israel.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Lynk - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 20:24 hr. on Tuesday, December 15, 2020

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Govemment Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519






9wz

Cabazon Water District

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

@ B

1 ASSETS
2 Current Assets
3 Checking/Savings
4 General Bank Account-Chase $ 279,373
5 Payroll Bank Account-Chase 37,526
6 Trust Account-Chase (Cust. Deposits) 6,262
7 Local Petty Cash 100
8 Total Checking/Savings 323,262
9 Accounts Receivable 220,887
10 LAITF 843,648
11 Bank of NY Trustee Accounts 56,872
12 Prepaid Expenses 15,752
13 Inventory 94,015
14 Total Current Assets 1,562,928
15 Fixed Assets
16 Total Fixed Assets 13,130,969
17 Accumulated Depreciation (5,993,048)
18 Net Fixed Assets 7,137,921
19 TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,700,849
20 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
21 Liabilities
22 Current Liabilities
23 Accounts Payable $ 14,183
24 Other Current Liabilities
25 Misc. Short Term Liability 10,000
26 Customer Deposits - Co 1 7,250
27 Customer Deposits - Co 2 4,386
(7 ; 28 Total Customer Deposits 11,636
& : 29 Accrued Vacation Pay 9,437
30 DWR-HS Payable - Current 40,763
31 Current Portion Zion's Bank Loan 82,872
32 Accrued Payroll 11,311
33 Accrued Payroll Taxes 838
34 Accrued Interest 3,647
35 Accrued Expenses 3,000
36 Total Current Liabilities 188,130
37 Long Term Liabilities
38 DWR-H Loan Payable (2026) 238,187
39 Zion's Bank Long Term (2023) 172,026
40 RCEDA Loan Payable 300,000
41 Total Long Term Liabilities 710,213
42 Total Liabilities 898,343
43 Total Equity 7,802,505
44 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8 8,700,849
=)
|
O

*No assurance provided on these financial statements These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantiatly all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States not included.



s } W2
Cabazon Water District

Profit & Loss
July - December 31, 2020

FY 20/21
Dec-20 Current YTD Budget YTD (50%)
1 REVENUES
2 OPERATING INCOME
3 Base Rate - Water Bills $ 77450 $ 459,165 §$ 939,800 49%
4 Commodity Sales 33,784 239,565 329,700 73%
5 DHPO Contract 13,504 96,703 168,000 58%
6 Fire Sales - Water Bills 461 2,765 5,900 47%
7 Fire Flow Income - 1,710 - 0%
8 Penalty Fees - Water Bills - 2,345 31,000 8%
9 New Account Fees - Water Bills 160 1,215 1,600 76%
10 Returned Check Fees 60 120 500 24%
11 Basic Facilities Fee - 40,152 - 0%
12 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue - - 113,600 0%
13 TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 125,419 843,740 1,590,100 53%
14 NON-OPERATING INCOME
15 Property Taxes 3,733 4,520 60,900 7%
16 Cell Tower Lease Income 2,129 12,774 25,600 50%
17 Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income - - 7,300 0%
18 Interest Income - - 1,526 19,600 8%
O 19 TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME 5,861 18,820 113,400 17%
20 TOTAL REVENUES 131,280 862,559 1,703,500 51%
21 EXPENSES
22 PAYROLL & BENEFITS
23 Directors Fees 600 5,200 15,000 35%
24 Management & Customer Service
25 Customer Accounts '5,776 28,223 54,800 52%
26 Business Admin Manager 5,896 38,238 77,700 49%
27 Office Assistant 915 4,678 7,800 60%
28 General Manager © 6,862 44,896 89,200 50%
29 Total Management & Customer Service 19,449 117,213 229,500 51%
30 Field Workers 11,355 64,465 123,000 52%
3 Employee Benefits Expense
32 Workers Compensation 103 4,739 6,200 76%
33 Employee Health Care 4,465 46,127 94,800 49%
34 Pension 1,914 30,822 77,400 40%
35 Total Employee Benefits Expense 6,481 81,688 178,400 46%
36 Payroll Taxes 2,396 14,854 33,200 45%
37 TOTAL PAYROLL & BENEFITS 40,281 283,420 579,100 49%

e

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows, Substantially all disclosures
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.



| Lﬂ/ el
Cabazon Water District

Profit & Loss
July - December 31, 2020

; FY 20/21

Dec-20 CGurrent YTD Budget YTD (50%)

38 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
39 Facilities, Wells, T&D
40 Lab Fees 725 2,531 8,900 28%
41 Meters 1,030 1,080 4,800 23%
42 Utilities - Wells 8,528 47,369 - 96,600 49%
43 Line R&M Materials 394 4,928 72,500 7%
44 Well Maintenance - 3,544 37,800 9%
45 Security 1,444 9,375 24,800 38%
46 Engineering Services 650 35,812 56,300 64%
47 Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other 501 2,366 12,200 19%
48 Total Facilities, Wells, T&D 13,273 107,006 313,900 34%
49 Utilities - Office
50 Electricity 142 1,725 15,800 49%
51 Gas 88 210 1,100 19%
52 Telephone 856 5,086 10,200 50%
53 Trash Pickup & Office Cleaning 374 2,644 4,600 57%
54 Total Utilities - Office 1,460 15,665 31,700 49%
55 Office Expenses

Q 56 Water Billing System 177 1,064 2,100 51%
57 Supplies & Equipment 69 1,404 10,100 14%
58 Copier Lease & Printing Supplies 546 2,098 5,000 42%
59 Dues & Subscriptions 112 112 1,300 9%
60 Postage 872 4,396 8,100 54%
61 Printing & Publications - 292 6,300 5%
62 Computer Services 2,857 20,603 36,800 56%
63 Office Storage - 2,500 6,200 40%
64 Air Conditioning Servicing 418 2,508 5,100 49%
65 CA Water Systems Alliance - 208 2,500 8%
66 Office Expenses - Other - 136 2,100 6%
67 Total Office Expenses 5,051 35,320 85,600 41%
68 Support Services
69 Temporary Labor - 10,563 12,600 84%
70 Financial Audit 1,681 9,322 23,000 41%
71 Accounting 3,000 18,000 35,000 51%
72 Legal Services 5,720 23,205 71,000 33%
73 Bank/Payroll Service 523 2,640 5,200 51%
74 Website Support - 150 900 17%
75 General Liability Insurance 2,075 12,449 26,100 48%
76 Total Support Services 12,998 76,327 173,800 44%

O

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows, Substantially all disclosures
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not includqd.



77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87

88

89
90
91
92
93
94

-

Cabazon Water District

Profit & Loss
July - December 31, 2020

Training/Travel

Other Fees/SWRCB

Service Tools & Equipment
Shop Supplies and Small Tools
Vehicle Fuel
Employee Uniforms
Safety
Tractor Expenses
Equipment Rental
Service Trucks - R&M
Water Ops Phone & Internet

Total Service Tools & Equipment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Grant & Loan Processing Fee
DWR Interest Expense
DHPO Interest Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Miscellaneous

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

96 TOTAL EXPENSES
97 TOTAL INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL & GSA

98
99
100
101
102

103

104
105
106

107
108

DHPO Capacity Credit

CAPITAL PROJECTS
Main Street Improvements (Icehouse Imp.)
Meter Replacements & Other Capital
Well & Tank Repairs

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

DEBT - PRINCIPAL
Debt Service Principal - DWR
Debt Service Principal - DHPO (Zion)

TOTAL DEBT - PRINCIPAL
SGMA / GSA

109 NET INCOME / (LOSS)

O

177 ik

FY 20/21 :
Dec-20 Current YTD Budget YTD (50%)
212 496 4,500 11%
2,500 4,216 8,900 47%
240 3,920 9,300 42%
1,790 5,578 16,300 34%
- - 1,800 0%
- 1,290 500 258%
- - 3,700 0%
- 1,450 2,000 73%
247 3,791 14,500 26%
294 1,467 4,800 31%
2,570 17,497 52,900 33%
- 1,325 1,400 95%
- 4,121 7,900 52%
- 3,167 5,800 55%
- - 1,200 0%
588 2,262 1,100 206%
588 10,876 17,400 63%
78,933 550,823 1,267,800 43%
52,347 311,736 435,700 2%
(1,750) (10,500) (21,000) 50%
- (4,834) (20,000) 24%
- (20,399) (35,000) 58%
(109,825) (150,393) (465,000) 32%
(109,825) (175,626) (520,000) 34%
- (20,224) (40,800) 50%
- (41,436) (82,900) 50%
- (61,660) (123,700) 50%
- (5,390) (35,000) 15%

(59,228) $ 58,561 $ (264,000)

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.



: aM \/35

Manager’s Report — Regular Board Meeting — 01/19/2021 rev. 01/13/2021

Manager’s Report

UPDATES

Please note that in reducing the cost, most of the distributed documents to Board members, authorized
personnel, affiliates, and the public will be printed on both sides of the paper and in grayscale when

possible. Only Ppptq_s_{gguiring details and emphasis in a word(s) or phrase be written in boldface, italics,
underline, or highlighted.

Most of the outline will now be wider with photographs and related drawings will be inserted, instead of a
reserving a wide margin in the entire document.

1. Update: Manager's Operations Report
(by GM Louie)

a. Edison — Public Safety Power Shut-off

e 12/16/2020 to 01/13/2021 (the date of publishing this Manager’s Report) — County of
Riverside, Emergency Management Department (EMD) in coordination with
Southern California Edison (SCE) has not issued any Flash Reports for a Public
Safety Power Shutdown (PSPS) predicting the potential to de-energize selected
Cabazon circuits.

* SCE - Critical Power Outage Reminder — SCE also notifies their customers when they
have a planned Critical Power Outage to temporarily turn off your power so their field
crew or contractors are able to safely perform repairs to the grid.

The water district receives these SCE notifications in three (3) methods. U.S. Mail, email,

and text. Emails and text messages will generally have link that will take you to the
appropriate SCE website page.

Included in this Manager’s Report are recent SCE notifications of a planned temporarily
power shut off.

It provides the Outage number, estimating the time the power outage will occur, and the
estimated time the power will be restored.

On Outage #1133491, has indicated it will begin on 01/11/2021 at 8:00 am to
Ql/ 11/2021 and ending at 4:00 pm.

Page 1 of 9



&M 2/55

A follow-up notification was issued on the day of the planned Critical Power Outage.
The notification was titled Critical Power Outage Rescheduled. Instead of ending the
power outage at 4:00 pm, it extended it to 8:00 pm. This was issued on 01/11/2021, at
3:52 pm, eight (8.0) minutes prior to the initial prediction of the electricity being restored.

Later on the same date at 6:53 PM, SCE issued a Critical Power Qutage Restored
notification the electric power will be restored at 7:59 pm.

o On 01/06/2021 to 01/07//07/2021) Management drafted a Watch Procedures for SCE
Alerts & Events, including is a separate list of definitions and acronyms to assist the
District’s water operators and field crew to understand the EMD Flash Reports and SCE
PSPS spreadsheets.

For an example, Alert is a notification from SCE of a potential PSPS event. An
event is when a SCE CIRCUIT is actually being de-energized. Words and phrases
have different meanings in the various industries and businesses. Providing clarity
avoids any misunderstanding amongst the individuals involved with a particular
project. !

Another examples is in law enforcement and the military. These organizations uses codes
or when spelling a commonly misunderstood name or word. Over the two-way radio or
the phone, the person would phonetically spell the names or word to ensure precise
communication. Adam, Boy, Charlie are the familiar LAPD phonetic codes, or Alpha,
Lima, Romeo in which are used by the military, aviation, nautical, and other public safety
agencies.

b. Corona Virus — The District will continue to execute the following actions in regards to
COVID-19.

e 01/11/2021 — EOC (Emergency Operations Center) in coordination with Riverside
County Public Health and the District’s Management has the following updated COVID-
19 information.

e Management continues to take the following preventive and protective measures:

We encourage Board and this Community’s Water Team members to reassure any
concerned residents and water customers that may have concerns regarding the safety of
tap water. The transmission of COVID-19 through tap water is 99.9% untrue. The
measured dose of sodium hypochlorite (chlorine) kills most bacteria and viruses.

v" The lobby continues to be closed to the public until further direction from the State
and County Health officials.

v" Management will continue to protect the health of District employees.

v' Face masks are required.

v’ Abarrier is at the transaction window.

Page 2 of 9



GM 3 /%S

v" Customer Accounts Department will handle checks, money orders, and cash wearing
nitrile gloves provided by the District.

v' The current confirmed COVID-19 cases in the Community of Cabazon is 233, Deaths
—1, and Recovered — 157 as of 01/11/2021 on the Riverside County Public Health
website: https://www.rivcoph.org/coronavirus

v" This Community’s water district will continue to work with water customers that are
experiencing hardships in paying their water bills. There is an item on this agenda
on resuming penalties & interests.

v' Management has updated what other local water districts and companies actions in
response to COVID-19 as of 01/11/2021.

> City of Banning - City Hall is now open for over-the-counter payments;
however, face coverings and social distancing are required to enter the building.
Coachella Valley Water District — Offices are closed to the public.

Mission Springs Water District — Offices are closed to the public.

South Mesa Water Company — Hours or services may vary to the public.
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District — Offices are closed to the public.
High Valley Water District — Hours or services may vary to the public.

VVVVY

Public Educational Video — SCADA Alert Response

e Update on the General Manager’s Public Educational Video (PEV). Seeking out potential
webmaster is still on the plate to be addressed. Due to other projects that are more of a
priority and not to leave the District without a webmaster, Manage has earmark this goal
to be accomplished on or before the draft of the next fiscal year budget which the GM is
looking by April 2021. This will provide two (2) additional months for the Board to
discuss and formulate a united financial strategy to approve the FY budget of 2021/2022.

. Kim Theerachtrat — Property Owner of the undeveloped lot on the north side of Dolores
Ave., between Broadway St. and Cabazon St.

¢  On Thursday (01/14/2021), the GM with the Field Crew walked Dolores Ave., between
Broadway St. and Cabazon Street. to determine the cost and location of the fire hydrants.

*  Once this is determined, the District will provide a total cost to the property owner.
Majestic Properties new property owners (was in escrow). This are the four (4) units located
at the corner of Maxine Ave., Date Ave., and Lemon St. The new property owners has not
applied for water services and the escrow status is unknown.

Pecan St./Main St. (Hadley Ice-house) property (50100 Main St., Cabazon)

e Per the Field Crew, they will be extracting a majority of the scrap to recycling, if they are
eligible to generate recyclable funds for the District and begin dumping trash in a
construction bin. This phase of the project should be completed on or before the first two
(2) week of January 2021.

Page 3 of 9



GmM ‘-\135

g. Elizabeth Miffleton — Hattie Ave. — APN 528-092-025 - The GM and Lead met with Ms.
Miffleton. She is a realtor and developer. She is desirous in developing a residential
manufactured home. Her comments was $60k the estimated cost of running the transmission
water pipeline to her undeveloped parcel is overwhelming to her construction budget. The
$60k is divided into half for engineering plan checking, parts & material, and labor. This is
based on the estimate dated 06/16/2020 presented to Miffleton.

e Miffleton could have her engineer and construction crew design and install the
distribution pipeline as long as it meets water district standards. To ensure the design,
material, and installation does meet the current standards, she would have to adhere to the
following District rules, regulations, and procedures which is enforced to all water
customers.

> Plan check deposit.

» Construction site inspector deposit.

> Sign a potential agreement with the District for a fair reimbursement should other
parcels that may benefit from connecting a water service onto the portion of the water
distribution pipeline Miffleton paid for.

> At the Board’s discretion, the may direct the GM to work with the property
owner/developer to sign a fair payment agreement should the entire amgunt may not
be available. I will confirm this with the District’s legal should the Board decide to
permit the property owner to make installments.

h. Chick-fil-A & Esperanza project

e The District’s engineering and legal opinion is the developer is not obligated to
fund constructions to improve the water infrastructure if it is not related to
compliance to water district standards that affects their project. An example is
enlarging a water distribution pipeline to effectively serve the propose project
would be at the developer’s expense.

e However, District engineering and legal suggested that the District request that
drawings and constructions to include the residential water system to be
extended/connected with the new 12” pipeline. The excess cost for drawing and
installation will be credited back to Chick-fil-A.

i. Dinosaur — The eyes that were purchased and installed by Field Crew Lead Wolny was
stolen over the weekend of 12/04 thru 12/07. The enhanced perimeter security LED lights
have been installed.

j- Director Wargo suggested that Google Meet is a free conference call site with the
capability of sharing, viewing files, graphs, and videos. Director Wargo stated it was free if
the attendees were under one hundred (100). The District’s AGM briefly researched Google
Meet during the search of a free virtual meeting site. She said it begins charging if the
meeting is more than one (1) hour. The current platform that the District uses for
teleconference has recently been found to have similar features to Google Meets/Microsoft

Page 4 of 9



G s/ 25

Teams/Zoom, but at no charge (unlike the other platforms). Please contact the District if you
would like to be trained.

k. Production Well 4 — This has been the 2% phase of the water production redundancy
and back-up.

Between W2 (Robertson) and W5 (DHPO Seminole Drive), they represent this
community’s water system not only as the two Primary water production wells, but
they are able to back each other up in the event of a disaster. In the event W2 or W5
fail or are offline due the some other occurrences, then W4 would be the backup.

This why I have kept W4 in compliance with DWR water quality standards. It
maintains the certification of the State in the event I may have to use W4 to replace
one or both primary wells. As of the month of December, it has been brought to my
attention of two (2) potential failures.

* Morgan reported when he shuts off power to W4 electric pump motor, the
pump shaft no longer stops rotating. When this site of was first acquired, the
pump shaft would stop immediately when the pump motor’s electric power was
terminated.

e Thave discussed this concern with Legend (the contractor that has been with the
District for over ten (10) years and currently is performing the rehab. at W1).
Keith, President of Legend Wells & Pump provided me a quote of $9,098 to
mobilize the crane, crew and support vehicles to W4.

e Out of the total estimated amount, $816 will be for the teardown and inspection to
determine the cause of the current condition.

* Out of the total estimated amount, $1,050 will be for the video log at W4. A
written and digital copy of the report will be provided.

» Keith’s opinion, based on his training & experience feels there may be an internal
part broken in the electric pump motor.

e His (Keith) other thought from the description he received from the District’s
water operators is that one or more bowl assemblies may be separated. A bowl is
one of the parts of the impellers that creates a vortex to lift the ground water up to
the reservoirs. The community’s four (4) production wells only source is ground
water. Groundwater is water that exists underground in saturated zones beneath the
land surface. The upper surface of the saturated zone is called the water table.

1. Wolny recently reported that W5 (Seminole) waste water valve was discharging
water while it was running. I have left a voice message for Trosper of CLA-VAL as
0f 01/13/2021.

Page 5 of 9



C::Mle/%S

m. Progress report on Production Well 1

e The components in the well shaft at W1 has been pulled and scrubbing has been
completed.

Bailing during the brushing and swabbing process the debris that have been pulled into
the well fall to the bottom, it is then necessary to pull all of that out of the well. A bailer
is a specialized tool that allows the removal of the debris. Brushing removes debris that
clogs the perforation in the casing and swabbing the well pulls in slit and other debris that
lie in the water stratus. These procedures result in a greater flow of water allowing for
less drawdown in the well.

Page 6 of 9



& “]%6

e Completion date is earmarked in February 2021. This project is running ahead of
schedule.

n. Progress report on Tank 1

e This vendor is also ahead of schedule. l

Pictures above is K&S Job Site Inspector’s drawings of the progress made
of the interior and roof of Reservoir 1 (T1)

e Projected completion of the reservoir project is 01/15/2021. The only procedure
that is being held up is the disinfection of the interior of the reservoir’s floor,
walls, and roof.

e Management and the District’s engineering has made recommendations and the
GM shares the same opinion and concurs that any possibility of a backflow
incident during the disinfection process would certainly jeopardize the
community’s water distribution system.

e Simpson is agreeable to wait until W1 rehab. is completed and capable of
producing water. W1 pumps and disinfects its ground water source and directly
fills T1. Any potential contamination will be isolated by closed the 12” butterfly
valve which has also been repaired by the water district field crew.

Page 7 of 9



o. The District’s field crew has installed an alternative water source for the two (2)
contractors working at the well & tank site. We increased the pressure at the Apache
Trails PRV vault and is able to push potable water .

NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion: Mr. Lance Eckhart, General Manager, San Gorgonio Pass
Water Agency —
Introduction, Brief Mission Statement by Mr. Eckhart, and
Q&A (by GM Louie)

Mr. Lance Eckhart is the General Manager for the San Gorgonio
Pass Water Agency. He comes from the Mojave Water Agency as
the Director of Basin Management and Resource Planning for the
past 18 years. Lance and I had a brief phone conversation while he
was out in Bakersfield investigating other options in the reuse of

Page 8 of 9

GaM &,‘33



aM q[ss

agriculture water. I invited him tonight to speak to Cabazon’s
Board of Directors.

2. Discussion/Action: Tank #2 exterior roof recoating quote & Tank #4 exterior
recoating quote by Simpson Sandblasting (by GM Louie)

Simpson quote are as follows:
Reservoir 2
Exterior roof complete removal, epoxy 3 — 5 mils DFT, Sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT
Shell spot repair, pressure wash, spot prime 3 — 5, full coat epoxy 3 — 5, full coat
sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT, caulk exterior chime, wet blast
Price $109,482
Reservoir 4
Complete removal of shell, full coat epoxy, full coat of Sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT,
Roof, spot repair, pressure wash, spot prime 3 — 5 mils DFT and full coat epoxy 3 — 5 mils
DFT, full coat Sherloxane 4 — 6,, wet blast
Replace logo
Price $115,811
Total $225,293

3. Discussion/Action: Approval of Tank Diving Inspection for Tank 2, Tank 3, and

Tank 4; quotes received from Dive/Corr, Inc. & LiquiVision
Technology Diving Services (by GM Louie)

AWWA M42-13 Manual of Water Supply Practices: Steel Water-Storage Tanks
recommends that tanks be inspected, inside and out, at least once every three to five years.

Dive/Corr, Inc., commonly known as Diver Dan, whom I have used before for this
District. Their bid is $5,800

LiquiVision Technology Diving Services: Their bid is $9,450

4. Discussion/Action: Board Training: AB54 & AB240 Ethics Training (by AGM
Lemus)

OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion: NBS Water Rate Study Review and Discussion (by Board)

Page 9 of 9



Q™ |o/75.5

SCE PSPS Watch Procedures

1. Purpose

In the event of a Southern California Edison (SCE) Public Safety Power
Shut-off (PSPS) alert or event, the Cabazon Water District (CWD) certified
water operator or designated District employee assigned as the Standby (On-
call) Primary will coordinate their efforts with the General Manager (GM)
during the period of the SCE PSPS alert or event.

1.1 Please refer to the Definition and Acronyms list for clarifications.

1.2 Riverside County Emergency Management Department (EMD) receives
the regular PSPS notices and updates from SCE. EMD will either
interprets or republish SCE’s PSPS alerts or events in the EMD’s Flash
Reports. Each series of these Flash Reports are assigned a report
number in ascending order beginning with #001.

1.3 An alert is a notification from SCE of a potential PSPS event.

1.4 An event is SCE CIRCUITS actually being de-energized.

2. Summary

SCE will issue PSPS updates on a regularly basis when triggered.

Triggering a PSPS alert or event is generally caused by adverse weather

conditions or hazards, such as extreme winds or fires.

SCE in their PSPS notifications will denote it is an alerts or events.

2.1 Format of the EMD Flash Reports

Below is the basic format of an EMD Flash Report. It is either
interpreting or republishing SCE’s PSPS alerts or events updates.

Page 1 of 10



éamag 25

START OF EMD Flash Report format example.
REPORT NO. #001
DATE AND TIME: December 16, 2020 at 1600 hours
PREPARED BY: S. Rea (EMD22)

EVENTS/INCIDENT NAME:
DECEMBER 2'020 PSPS beginning 12/18/2020

ACTIVATION STATUS:

The Riverside County Emergency Operaflons Center (EOC) is at Duty
Officer status for this PSPS event. -

CUSTOMERS IMPACTED:
Riverside County: 0 customers

INCIDENT INFORMATION:
Due to projected weather conditions, Southern Cahforma Edison (SCE)
‘may need to activate a Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) to‘electrical
circuits in High Fire Risk Areas (HFRA) serving portions of Riverside
County. SCE is notifying customers on the affected circuits about ‘the
potential PSPS. SCE has bpened its EOC and activated an Incident
Management Team (IMT) to monitor conditions in real time. SCE relies
on forecast data provided by in-house meteorolo glsts fire scientists, and
other technical staff. Note that weather forecasts on radio and television
may provide different information. Due to the volume of potential
circuits, please refer to the listing below for status and periods of concern
for specific circuits in Riverside County. The event is expected to start
December 18, 2020 09:00am through December 19, 2020 3: OOpm The
event has two (2) circuits in scope with a potential to impact 6,952
customers in Riverside County. Erratic or sidden onset of hazardous
 conditions that jeopardize public safety may impact SCE’s ability to
provide advanced notice to customers. A shutoff could occur sooner than
anticipated, additional circuits could be impacted, or conditions could

Page 2 0of 10



GM l ll/gg

change, resulting in shutoffs no longer being considered for one or more
circuits.

CIRCUITS OF INITIAL IMPACT

Circuit: BLACKHILLS- City of Jurupa Valley; Unincorporated
Communities of Rubidoux; Camino Real

Circuit: RUSTIC- Cleveland National Forest; Atante

NOTE, this list is not part of Flash Report. SCE has issued the
following names for these CIRCUITS.

Fingal

Oowl

Poppet Flats
Purchase
Store

Stubby

N AN &8

IMMINENT DE-ENERGIZATION
No Circuits pending imminent De-Energization

DE-ENERGIZING CIRCUITS
No Circuits De-Energized

PARTIAL DE-ENERGIZED CIRCUITS
No Circuits partially De-Energized

Definition & Explanation

CIRCUITS listed are partially of this CIRCUIT temporarily shut-off or
have electrical power terminated.

IMMINENT RE-ENERGIZATION
No Circuits pending imminent Re-Energization

Page 3 0of 10



am a;/ .:,);5
PARTIAL RE-ENERGIZED CIRCUITS !
No Circuits partially Re-Energized

RE-ENERGIZED
No Circuits Re-Energized

Definition & Explanation

CIRCUITS listed have had their electrical power restored.

ALL CLEAR
No Circuits 1dentified

Web and Maps

* A map has been created for Riverside County business and residents to
show information related to PSPS activities within Riverside County, it
can be found here.

* PDFs of High Fire Risk Area (HFRA) circuit maps and GIS layers may
be found, by county, at www.sce.com/maps

» Information about SCE’s Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) program
is at www.sce.com/PSPS

« Access SCE’s non-PSPS outage information page at’
WWw.sce.com/outages _

* Access information on weather conditions at www.sce.com/fireweather

END OF EMD Flash Report format example.

3. Procedures

The assigned GWD FCL, WT I, WT I, or designee when assigned to a
detail as the Standby On-call Primary will coordinate with Management or
" Supervision when a SCE PSPS aler or eventis in progress.

There may be occasions where Management is unable to remotely monitor
the SCADA system due to power outage and/or physical respond to CBZ
because of contributing factors that is currently preventing Management
from responding to CBZ.

Page 4 of 10'



éMIL’/%S

3.1 The Standby Primary or designee and Management will be notify by
EMD or SCE PSPS notification of a potential PSPS alert or event by an
email. It is pertinent that the Standby Primary or designee and
Management is constantly aware of Flash Reports, telephonic calls, and
text messages during periods of a PSPS incident.

The Primary or designee and Management will communicate by way of
email or text to coordinate tasks and line of communication. Any
discussions and agreements made over a telephone or cellphone call
shall be immediately followed-up by an email to ensure all the parties
involved have full understanding of the verbal agreement and each
parties responsibilities.

a. Should Management is unable to physically respond, then the
Primary or designee will assume that responsibility.

b. Should the Management is unable to physically respond, monitor the
SCADA, and PSPS updates, then the Primary or designee will
assume those responsibilities.

c. The Management will identified the preferred method of
communicating. Due to cellphone signal strength vary from location
to location, audio communications may not be available. Email or
texting, text message is preferred if the matter is urgent. Weak
cellphone signals seem to mostly affect audio and not data
transmissions in most cases.

d. Parties involved shall identify the cellphone number and method in
which audio and text messages is to be called or sent.

e. Copies of all emails pertaining to a SCE PSPS, EMD, or District
personnel involved in a PSPS incident shall copy the following CWD
personnel, GM, AGM, FCL, WT, and FCW. The CAL will only be
included if a WO is required or some issues is water service account
related.

3.2 Management and the Primary or designee will receive the initial SCE
PSPS or EMD notices of a PSPS alert or event. Both the Management
and the Primary or designee will initially confirm receiving the first
PSPS notifications. If the Primary or designee receives the initial SCE
PSPS or EMD notices of a PSPS alert or event first and not have

Page 5 0f 10



GYYHS_) 25

- received an email, text messages, or call from the other party involved,
then the Party receiving the PSPS should immediately notify the other
_party in the previous agreed method of communication. This action
~ should be executed by the Party receiving the initial PSPS notification
within thirty (30) minutes if an acknowledgement has not been received
from the other party involved.

Once communication has been established, the responsibility will be
- established between Management and the Primary or designee as
directed in 3.1.

3.3 CWD personnel overseeing the PSPS shall physically respond when
necessary, monitor each and every notification issued by either SCE or
EMD. If Management is not the party responsible for monitoring SCE
PSPS or EMD notices of'a PSPS alert or event, then the CWD personnel
who isassigned that responsibility is to notify Management by the

‘agreed method of communication as directed in 3.1 (a thru d).

3.4 In the event of a De-energized CIRCUIT that affects water production or
the distribution system, the responsible CWD personnel assigned to
oversee the PSPS ‘alert of event, shall take the following actions.

a. Ifthe De-energized CIRCUIT is a Partial De-energized, (specifically
it is the Fingal CIRCUIT), most likely the CWD HQ will have no

"' electric power. This power outage will result in inability to remotely

~ view or control the various apparatuses in water production and
distribution system through the SCADA computer program.

b." Should this occur, the assigned CWD personnel shall physically
respond to CBZ to verify that W2 and W5 is not affected and will
produce water to replenish the reservoirs and supply potable water to
the community. ;

c. The arrival time for these physical response to CBZ will be on or
before 2145 hr. each evening the PSPS De-energized events is
adversely affecting CWD’s water production and diStribution system.
These efforts will be coordinated with Management and follow-up
‘with an email copying those as listed in 3.1 (). =

Page 6 of 10



6M le|a g

d. It should be noted, otherwise changed by authorized CWD personnel,
the general set TOU are as follows:

W1 — 2355 hr. till 0755 hr. (power available) (T1 water level call for
pumping and termination of pumping.)
Begins pumping when the reservoir water level reaches 27.0
feet.
Terminates pumping when the reservoir water level reaches
29.0 feet.

W2 — 2355 hr. till 0755 hr. (power available) (T2 water level call for
pumping and termination of pumping.)
Begins pumping when the reservoir water level reaches 27.0

feet.

Terminates pumping when the reservoir water level reaches
29.0 feet.

W3 — Offline with sanitary capped installed.

W4 — 2200 hr. till 0755 hr. (recommended power availability)
Backup production well to be manually operated.

W5 —2200 hr. till 0755 hr. (power available) (T2 water level call for
pumping and termination of pumping.)
Begins pumping when the reservoir water level reaches 27.0
feet.
Terminates pumping when the reservoir water level reaches

29.0 feet.

3.5 W2 safety procedures when manually re-energizing the WPF. These
procedures shall be implemented in the event a power outage occurs due
to a PSPS event, planned, or unplanned.

a. The SCADA will alert by way of email or text message to
Management, District issued cellphones, and District iPad power
outage and low batteries. (As of 01/01/2021, Byrd SCADA
engineer is planning to program these features which was lost.)

Page 7 of 10



Gm 11| 3S

. Battery backups for the burglary and flowing alarms will last from
four (4.0) to ten (10.0) hours. When the alarm monitoring station
calls or sends a Robocall to the CWD personnel listed on the
alarm notification list is one indication of an unplanned power
outage. If this occurs, Management or the Primary/designee shall
immediately confirm remote access to SCADA.

. If remote access to SCADA fails, Management will be notified
immediately by a tclephone/cellphone call or text message in the
predetermined method of communication as stipulated in 3.1
should a CWD non-managerial staff be on the watch.

. Electric power interruptions, whether it is a PSPS event, surge,
planned, or unplanned power outage, each production well facility
must have a State certified water operator or a designee under the
direct supervision or by cellphone to manually inspect all electric
connections to ensure they are in order and that the water pump
shaft is not spinning.

. The State certified water operator or a designee under the State
certified water operator directions, shall open up the control panel
- to ensure all electric sub-breakers are in the OFF position. If not,
they are to be manually switched to the OFF position.

. 'When this condition is verified, and there are no visual evidence
of damage, the MAIN breaker will be reset with the sub-breakers
switched back ON in the reverse order it was switched OFF.

. The electric pump motor may now be manually or remotely
activated.

. Whether W2 or W5 are pumping solely or similtaneously, the
productions well(s) are replenishing two (2) one million gallon
(IMG) reservoirs (tanks), identified as T2 and T4.

e These two tanks HWL are 31.0 feet.

* T2 signals W2 and/or W5 to START filling both reservoirs (T2
& T4) at 27.0 feet.

e T2 signals W2 and/or WS5 to STOP filling both reservoirs (T2
- & T4) at 29.0 feet.

e Each foot of T2 and T4 équates to approximately 32,258
gallons which means the production wells must produce 64,516

Page 8 of 10



6"")6/ 25

gallons of disinfected potable water to replenish one (1) foot in
the two (2) water tanks (T2 & T4).

When calculating the period of time this would take to
replenish T2 and T4, the following considerations must be
included in a practical estimation of pumping time.

W2 pumps on the average of 1000 to 1150 gpm.

WS pumps on the average of 820 to 850 gpm.

Shall the production wells (T2 & T4) be manually or
remotely set to pump solely or simultaneously?

The decision to run which production well solely or
simultaneously will be made by the CWD State certified
water operator in concert with Management based on the
next day’s DEMAND.

> Historical data for W2 and W5

V VYV

A\

o W2 pumping solo — approximately two and a half hours
(2.5 hr.) to three hours (3.0 hr.) to fill one foot (1.0 ft.) in
each reservoir which equates to two foot (2.0 ft.) with
both T2 and T4 are interconnected.

Please note that W2 is programmed to pump from 2355
hr. to 0755 hr., Monday thru Wednesday, and 2200 hr. to
0755 hr., Thursday thru Sunday.

o W5 pumping solo - approximately three and a half hours
(3.5 hr.) to four hours (4.0 hr.) to fill one foot (1.0 f.) in
each reservoir which equates to two foot (2.0 ft.) with
both T2 and T4 are interconnected.

Please note that W5 is programmed to pump from 2200
hr. to 0755 hr., Monday thru Sunday because of the low
gpm (-280 to -300 gpm less than W2)

o Factors to be included, but not limited to the presence
DEMAND of residential, commercial, and industry water
use during non-business hours. Please remember, W2,

Page 9 of 10



Gm ‘0\] 25

W4 (when activated), and W5 produces water not only to
fill the reservoirs, but is also distributes the water into the
water distribution system. This should be factor to be
included in the water operator’s estimation.

In additional to the regular DEMAND, other factor
should include, but not limited t0 special operations and
Matich is producing aggregate and asphalt pavement
material. Robertson Readi Cement plant has their own
‘production wells. Matich leases a space in the Robertson
plant. Robertson may not sell water from their private
production wells per California water right laws.

W1 is the only production well in CWD current water
system that feeds directly to the reservoir (T1).

3 6 When in doubt always ask another CWD employee.

3: 7 SCE PSPS notifications ‘are issued in an excel formats. (See attached
spreadsheet.) R

a. The SCE PSPS notification in an excel format 1s not always attached
! to an EMD Flash Report.: : W

b. The SCE PSPS notification in an excel format requires the reader to

manually sort for the unincorporated communities (CBZ is an
- unincorporated community) and the Incorporate city/cities CBZ may
share a CIRCUIT in the spreadsheet’s drop down menu.

c. The EMD Flash Report format breaks down the area of concerns. De-
energized CIRCUITS are separate under the ¢orrect category and
highlighted in RED. It is in Managements opinion that the Flash

*Report is reader friendly. However, each CWD personnel may select
cither report as long as the CWD goal is met.

Page 10 of 10



M 20( 25

SCE PSPS Watch Procedures rev. 01012021

Definition and Acronyms

bl 1 ra-bve el o

= o

10.
11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18

22.
23.

Activated — To energize the electric pump motor at a production well.

alert is a notification from SCE of a potential PSPS event.

ALL CLEAR —No CIRCUITS affected at this time.

Assistant General Manager (AGM)

Backup — Second to be called by Dispatch, return calls to the RP, and the second to
respond to CBZ when requested by the Primary, GM, AGM, or CAL.

Cabazon (CBZ)

Cabazon Water District (CWD)

call — a specific reservoir requesting a specific production well(s) to produce disinfected
ground water to fill to a preset water level and terminate at a preset water level by
transmitting a radio signal and receiving by the designated production well(s). The radio
signal is then interpreted by the SCADA computer program which will then initiate the
process of energizing or de-energizing the electric well pump motor.

CIRCUITS — SCE owns and operates numerous CIRCUITS throughout California. CWD
has the following CIRCUITS that affect not only the community’s resident and
businesses, but the water production and distribution system.

Customer Accounts Lead I (CAL I)

Deactivate - To de-energize the electric pump motor at a production well.
DE-ENERGIZING CIRCUITS - CIRCUITS listed are temporarily shut-off or electrical
power terminated.

DEMAND - An accurate estimation of water demand helps to determine the quantities
of water and moments when the water will be used therefore generating various demand
patterns. The demand arises mainly for residential, institutional, industrial and public
uses.

Designee — A District employee assigned to a specific detail or task by Management or
Supervision.

Detail — A job assignment that is a continual within a predetermined period of time or
days.

Dispatch — Contract answering service

EMD’s Flash Reports are assigned a report number in ascending order beginning with
#001.

. event is SCE CIRCUITS actually being de-energized.
19.
20.

2].

Field Crew Worker I (FCW I)
Field Crew Lead I (FCL I)

Flash Reports - Flash Reports are assigned by EMD. Each Flash Report is
numbered in ascending order beginning with #001.

Gallons Per Minute (gpm)
General Manager (GM)



Gm 'Ll\ 2S

24. Cabazon Water District Administration Facility/Headquarter (HQ) — 14618 Broadway
St., Cabazon CA 92230

25. High Fire Risk Areas (HFRA)

26. IMMINENT DE-ENERGIZATION - CIRCUITS listed is projected to be temporarily
shut-off or have electrical power terminated.

27. IMMINENT RE-ENERGIZATION - CIRCUITS listed is or are within a pre-determined
time frame to have electrical power restored.

28. Local Network Operation (LNO)

29. Management — GM or AGM

30. PARTIAL DE-ENERGIZED CIRCUITS - CIRCUITS listed are partially temporarily
shut-off or have electrical power terminated. Special attention to Fingal Circuit. When
this circuit is partially de-energized, it affects the SCADA server at the CWD HQ, but
does not affect W2 or W5. This requires a physical response beginning the day of the
PARTIAL DE-ENERGIZED CIRCUIT to visually

31. PARTIAL RE-ENERGIZED CIRCUITS - CIRCUITS listed is or are within a pre-
determined time frame to have electrical power restored that were partially de-energized.

32. Parties — Groups or individuals involved with a task or detail.

33. Periods of Concern (PoC)

34. Primary — First to be called by Dispatch, return calls to the RP, and the first to respond to
CBZ. :

35. Production Well #1 (W1) — 50020 Seminole Dr.

36. Production Well #2 (W2) — 13984 Apache Trails

37. Production Well #3 (W3)

38. Production Well #4 (W4)

39. Production Well #5 (W5) Ve

40. Public Safety Power Shut-off (PSPS)

41. RE-ENERGIZED - CIRCUITS listed has had their electrical power restored.

42. Reservoir 1 (T1) — 50020 Seminole Dr.

43.Reservoir 2 (T2) — 13040 Millard Pass Rd.

44. Reservoir 3 (T3) — 15320 Elm St.

45. Reservoir 4 (T4) — 13433 Millard Pass Rd.

46. Riverside County Emergency Management Department (EMD)

47. Robocall - A robocall is a phone call that uses a computerized auto dialer to deliver a pre-
‘recorded message, as if from a robot.

48. Southern California Edison (SCE)

49. Standby — On-call

50. Supervision — FCL or CAL

51. SCADA —System Control and Data Acquisition

52. Task— A job assignment to‘be performed.

53. Triggered is a PSPS alert or event is generally caused by adverse weather condltlons or
hazards, such as extreme winds or fires.

54. Time of Use (TOU)



am 221755

55. Watch — A pre-designated period of time or days to monitor and/or take corrective
actions to achieve a specific goal in water production or field operation.

56. Water Technician I (WT I) — State certified water operator in Distribution Grade 1

57. Water Technician II (WT II) — State certified water operator in Distribution Grade 2

58. Water Technician III (WT III) — State certified water operator in Distribution Grade 3

59. Well Production Facility (WPF) — well production site with an enclosed by chain link
fence or block wall containing a water pumping and disinfection apparatuses in the
outdoor or inside a cement block building.

60. Work Order (WO)






M 24 } 23S

Calvin Louie

— — ——
From: Calvin Louie
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 3:42 PM
To: ‘Ellen Koumparis'; David Wolny (dwolny@cabazonwater.org); Clay Morgan
Cc: Elizabeth Lemus
Subject: RE: Current MOU & SCE PSPS Alerts and Events
Attachments: Nightly Well Watch 01072021 mem.doc; SCE PSPS Watch Procedures rev 010320.docx;

SCE PSPS defninitions acroynms rev. 01032021.docx

Good Afternoaon All,

On Wednesday, 01/06/2021, a Staff meeting was conducted in which the entire District staff (Lemus, Koumparis, Wolny,
Morgan) attended.

A draft of the Watch Procedures regarding the SCE PSPS Alerts and Events was presented. To follow up on this topic, on
01/07/2021, a memorandum titled Nightly Well Watch was emailed to everyone involved. As advised, there are
procedural directives and policies that are issued that are considered as a living document as with the two previous
directives titled SCE PSPS Watch Procedures and SCE PSPS Definitions & Acronyms.

The other question raised was to clarify how MOU Article 8 (Compensatory), Article 9 (Overtime), and Article 10
(Standby & Call Out) applies to compensation when required to perform District during non-business hours or Holidays.

Ms. Elizabeth Han, who is replacing the District’s previous labor attorney had the following comments.

1. Ms. Han stated she, “concur with your (the GM) opinion that Article 10 of the current MOU only applies to the
regular Standby and Call-Out for non-business hour water emergencies and not the SCE PSPS alert or event.”

2. She also wrote, “the SCE alerts and events come from the County of Riverside Emergency Management
Department and are regarding the Southern California Edison public safety power shut-off, this would not be
characterized as a District emergency (although ignoring these alerts could have the potential to become a
District emergency as it could /mpede the DIStI'ICt s water productlon and dlstnbut:on system /f the proper

3. Ms. Han contlnues in regardmg to meet & confer ‘an obllgat/on to meet and confer regarding including this
definition because the duty to meet and confer is only triggered any time management intends to make a
workplace change and that change is likely to affect the represented employees in some manner. That being
said, the District js still'required to notify the union of this modification and meet and confer over any potential

impact including this definition may have on the employees in question.”

I will be drafting an email to Ms. Delgadillo of SEIU regarding this matter. In the meantime, should any District employee
in the bargaining unit be assigned to monitor a SCE PSPS Alert or Event Watch, that employee or employee(s) will be
compensated in accordance of Article 8 or Article 9. It will be that employee’s choice.

Thank you very much,

Calvin Louie
General Manager

clouie@cabazonwater.org




Gan s I'g s
Bus: (951) 849-4442
FAX: (951) 849-2519

This email sent and any files transmitted with it may contain privileged or otherwise confidential information. If you are not the

intended recipient, or believe that you have received this communication in error, please advise the sender via email and delete the
email you received.



1/12/2021

M Google Meet

Google Meet (formerly Hangouts Meet) Pricing

Choose a plan that works for you

am 2(0,:55

Individuals can host secure video meetings for free with Google Meet. Teams can use Google Workspace
Essentials to get advanced Meet features plus Drive, Docs, Sheets, and Slides designed for business.

MEETING FEATURES

1:1 meeting length (maximum})

Group meeting length - 3+ participants
(maximum)

Meeting participants (maximum)

Number of meetings

Join from a browser

Invite external participants

Native mobile apps

Live closed captions

Share your screen and present

Adjustable layouts

US or international dial-in phone
numbers

Meeting recording saved to Google
Drive

Hand raise

Polls and Q&A

Breakout rooms

https://apps.google.com/meet/pricing/

Free

Always free

Get started

24 hours

1 hour
(24 hours through March 31, 2021%¥)

100

Unlimited

Google Workspace Essentials

$8 USD per active userfmonth*

Try it free

24 hours

24 hours

150

Unlimited

Google Workspace Enterprise

Contact sales for pricing

Contact sales

24 hours

24 hours

250

Unlimited

1/4



Ar2/2021  Google Meet (formerly Hangouts Meet) Pricing Gz l 23S

€M Google Meet

Always free $8 USD per active user/month*
Contact sales for pricing
Get started ; Try it free Cantact sales

Attendance reports v v

Intelligent noise cancellation v

Live streaming In-domain : 100,000 viewers

st sinsdt Salf-halp Gallne and Sommumity folum 24/7 online suppo_ri and community 24/7 online support and community

forums forums

SECURITY & PRIVACY

Learn more

Anti-abuse features B I V4 : v : v

Encryption in transit and at rest v v v

2-step verification v : v v

Advanced Protection Program

Enroliment ¥ M o

Alert center ' v v

Vault: retain, archive and search data in

Drive v

Context-aware access v

Security dashboards . V4
 Security health ; v

Investigation tool v

Data Loss Prevention (DLP) for Drive : v

Endpoint management v

Data réglons v

Access Transparency ; Vv

CUSTOMER SUPPORT

Self-help anline and community forums {_w T ;_/"M eI =g Ve

https://apps.google.com/meet/pricing/ ‘ )]



1/12/2021

N Google Meet

24/7 Standard support in multiple
languages

24/7 Priority support (1 hour target
response time for critical issues)

Designated Google advisor

Premium Support with Technical
Account Manager

COLLABORATION FEATURES
Google Drive storage

Shared drives

Drive File Stream

Google Meet (formerly Hangouts Meet) Pricing

Always free

Get started

15 GB per user

$8 USD per active user/month*

am 18| a3

Contact sales for pricing

Try it free Contact sales
v v
v
v
(minimum 1000 seats)
Available for purchase
100 GB per user
Unlimited
(up to 2 TB pooled)
v v
v v

*You will only be billed for active users each month. An active user is anyone added to your customer account who hosts or joins a video meeting or opens a file in Drive. Other users, including those outside or

inside your company, aren't counted as active users. There is a minimum charge of one active user per month. A valid form of payment is required to start using Google Workspace Essentials

++for Gmail accounts.

*Google Workspace customers may have access to additional features for a limited promotional period.

Google Workspace M B & O i

An integrated suite of secure, cloud-native
collaboration and productivity apps powered by

Google.

Includes Meet, Gmail, Docs, Drive, Calendar, and more.

Get started Learn more

hitps://apps.google.com/meet/pricing/

Need custom email or classroom solutions?

G Suite for Education

A suite of free, secure tools designed to empower
educators and students as they learn and innovate

together.

Includes Classroom, Meet, Gmail, Dacs, Drive, and more.

Get started

Hit 'm your virtual Google Meet guide. | X { 1 f

3/4



1112/2021 1 Google Meet (formerly Hangotits Meet) Pricing Gm 29 I 23S

M Google Meet

https://anps.aooale.com/meet/oricina/ ata



am %o s

Calvin Louie

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

SCE@sce.com
Sunday, January 10, 2021 12:07 PM
Calvin Louie

Important: Critical Power Outage Reminder for CABAZON WATER DISTRICT | Outage #
1133491 on 1/11/2021

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

£ E Dﬁ 80 N Outage Center

Energy for What's Ahead™

Critical Power Outage Reminder

Dear SCE Customer,

Reminding you that we will perform critical work on the electrical system in the area. In order to
keep our crews safe, it is necessary to temporarily turn off your power so we can make
repairs to the grid. We understand that having your power out temporarily during this
unprecedented COVID-19 situation is an inconvenience, and are working to isolate outages to

the smallest area possible and complete the work as safely and as quickly as we can. We
appreciate your patience.

Outage Information

Outage # 1133491

1/11/2021 at 4:00 p.m.

Service will be affected at the following address(es):

14935 1/2 ALMOND ST PED
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX25-85
Meter:222014-013815

15320 ELM ST RSVR
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX33-25
Meter:256000-116418




6m 2\ 33

Outage Reason: Cable Upgrade

Things You Should Know

We will be performing critical work on the electrical system in your area that will cause the power
to be out temporarily. We must go forward with work necessary to protect public safety including
reducing wildfire risk, even during this unprecedented COVID-19 situation. While non-critical
work is being postponed, delaying this critical work could inadvertently create larger and more
dangerous risks. We will do our best to minimize the length of time you are without power. Due
to the nature of the work, our crew members are sometimes unable to maintain physical
distancing while making repairs and work together as a pod to minimize exposure with other
workers. If you see our crew members in your neighborhood, please do not approach them and
stay at least 6 feet away for safety. If crew members need to get in touch with you, they will call
you or knock on your door. Please be assured that the safety of our workforce, our customers
and the public remain our top priority.

Learn more on how to prepare for an outage. Stay updated on the status of your outage.

A

View The Outage Center

“Tips to Prepare

e At

If you plan- to operate an emergency generator during the outage, please call us at 1-888-759-
6056. Knowing this will help us protect our employees from possible electrical backfeed.

Stay Informed

To keep informed on the status of this outage, please visit sce.com/outage and reference the

outage number(s) above. You can also contact us through email at scepoc@sce.com or call us
at 1-855-683-9067. )

Sincerely,
Southern California Edison

This communication is for the exclusive use of addressee and may contain proprictary, confidential or privileged information. If you are not the
intended récipient, any use, copying, disclosure, dissemination or distribution is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
delete this communication and destroy all copies. Although SCEwill use its reasonable efforts to provide you with the best data that is currently
available, this outage dats is provided "as is," without any guarantee or warranty of any kind, express or implied. SCE does not warrant or assume
any legal liability or responsibility for the reliance, use, accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information.

Privacy Notice | Update Alert Preferences | Unsubscribe

This message is for informational purposes only. Please do not respond to it.
© 2021 Southem Califomia Edison. All rights reserved. .



Gm %1/35

Calvin Louie _O
_ N

From: SCE@sce.com

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 3:52 PM

To: Calvin Louie

Subject: Important: Critical Power Outage Rescheduled for CABAZON WATER DISTRICT | Outage

# 1133491 on 1/11/2021

SOUTHERN CALIFORAIA

E D ﬂ SO N“‘ Outage Center

Energy for What's Ahead™

Critical Power Outage Rescheduled

Dear SCE Customer,

We're sorry, we had to reschedule the critical outage in your area. We apologize for any
inconvenience and we appreciate your patience..

Outage Information

1/11/2021 at 7 59 a.m.

Outage # 1133491

' 1/11/2021 at 8:00 p.m.

Outage Reasdﬁ Cable Upgrade

Service will be affected at the following address(es):

- 156320 ELM ST RSVR
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX33-25
Meter:256000-116418

14935 1/2 ALMOND ST PED
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX25-85
Meter:222014-013815

Things You Should Know

1



&m %?:I‘SS

We will be performing critical work on the electrical system in your area that will cause the power
to be out temporarily. We must go forward with wotk necessary to protect public safety including
reducing wildfire risk, even during this unprecedented COVID-19 situation. While non-critical
work is being postponed, delaying this critical work could inadvertently create larger and more
dangerous risks. We will do our best to minimize the length of time you are without power. Due
to the nature of the work, our crew members are sometimes unable to maintain physical
distancing while making repairs and work together as a pod to minimize exposure with other
workers. If you see our crew members in your neighborhood, please do not approach them and
stay at least 6 feet away for safety. If crew members need to get in touch with you, they will call

you or knock on your door. Please be assured that the safety of our workforce, our customers
and the public remain our top priority.

Learn more on how to prepare for an outage. Stay updated on the status of yo_ixr outage.

Tips to Prepare

View The Outage Center

If you plan to operate an emergency. generator during the outage, please call us at 1-888-759-
6056. Knowing this will help us protect our employees from possible electrical backfeed.

Stay Informed

To keep informed on the status of this outage, please visit sce.com/outage and reference the

outage number(s) above. You can also contact us through email at scepoc@sce.com or call us
at 1-855-683-9067. S

Sincerely,
Southern California Edison

This communication is for the exclusive use of addressee and may contain proprietary, confidential or privileged information. If you are not the
intended recipient, any use, copying, disclosure, dissemination or distribution is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
delete this communication and destroy all copies. Although SCE will use its reasonable efforts to provide you with the best data that is currently
available, this outage data is provided "as is," withont any guarantee or warranty of any kind, express or implied. SCE does not warrant or assume

any legal liability or responsibility for the relianc'e}fuse, accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information.

Privacy Notice | Update Alert"Preferences | Unsubscribe

This message is for informational purposes only. Please do.not respond to it.
© 2021 Southem California Edison. All rights reserved. :



am %4( %S

Calvin Louie O
R I SR

From: SCE@sce.com

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 6:53 PM

To: Calvin Louie

Subject: Important: Critical Power Outage Restored for CABAZON WATER DISTRICT | Outage #

1133491 on 1/11/2021

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

«~ E D H SO N QOutage Center

Energy for What's Ahead™

Critical Power Outage Restored

Dear SCE Customer,

We would like to inform you that power has been restored in your area.

Outage Information

Outage # 1133491

-'-.-' ey
/2021 at 7:59 a.m.

Service at the following addfess(es) should be restored:

Service was restored

15320 ELM ST RSVR
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX33-25
Meter:256000-116418

14935 1/2 ALMOND ST PED
CABAZON, CA 92230
Service Account:3-XXX-XX25-85
Meter:222014-013815

Outage Reason: Cable Upgrade

Things You Should Know



am o fas

Critical outages include work where it has been determined that a failure of equipment could be
near-term, which could cause significant damage or endanger public safety. We are prioritizing
critical work necessary to protect our communities from the threat of wildfires and to make urgent
repairs, even as we postpone less pressing upgrades. Our teams are working to minimize the
outage duration and impact to the fewest possible customers.

Stay Informed

If your'service has not been restored, or if you have any problems with your power, please email
scepoc@sce.com or call us at 1-855-683-9067.

Sincerely, . 1
Southern California Edison

This communication is for the exclusive use of addressee and may contain proprietary, confidential or privileged information. If you are not the
intended recipient, any use, copying, disclosure, dissemination or distribution is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please
delete this communication and destroy sll copies. Although SCE will use its reasonable efforts to provide you with the best data that is currently
available, this outage data is provided "as is," without any guarantee or warranty of any kind, express or implied. SCE does not warrant or assume
any legal liability or responsibility for the reliance, use, accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information. :

Privacy Notice | Update Alert Preferences | Unsubscribe

This message is for informational purposes only. Please do not respond to it.
© 2021 Southern California Edison. All rights reserved. ;






New Business

1.Discussion Item:

Mr. Lance Eckhart, General Manager,
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency:

Introduction, Brief Mission Statement by Mr.

Eckhart, and Q&A
(by GM Louie)

\6‘ b2






-

New Business

2.Discussion/Action Item:

Tank #2 exterior roof recoating quote and Tank #4
exterior recoating quote by Simpson Sandblasting
(by GM Louie)

1 12



Elizabeth Lemus

zol 12

( “trom:
- Sent:

To:
Cc:
Subject:

Calvin,

Travis Romeyn <tromeyn@bkriegerandstewart.com>
Wednesday, December 30, 2020 11:47 AM

Calvin Louie

Charles Krieger; Lorna Ewing; Elizabeth Lemus

FW: Reservoir 2 & 4

Per our discussion during this morning’s progress meeting, below is the cost proposal from Simpson for the additional
coating on Reservoirs #2 & #4. Note that they show the logo replacement on Reservoir #4 as an adder, so if it is not
needed then the cost for Reservoir #4 is the $115,811.

Thank you,

Travis R. Romeyn, P.E.
'] Krieger & Stewart, Incorporated
) | Shipping/Mailing: 3890 Orange Street #1509 | Riverside, CA 92501

Office: 3602 University Avenue | Riverside, CA 92501 | www kriegerandstewart.com
0: 951.684.6900 | F: 951.684.6986
C: 951.6753109 | tromeyn@kriegerandstewart.com

See our new address information below:

O ]

KR.IEGER & STEWART

Engineering Consultants

QX

Qur office hasn't moved, but where

and

to us

Krieger & Stewart, Incorporated
3890 Crange Street #1509

Riverside, A 92502

TENIGINS Wik

3602 University Avenue
Riverside, CA 925031

954 6246500 ohy
951.684-686 fax

WAL hEeErEni=izviart coen

]

From: Kattia Rios [mailto:Kattia@simpsonsandblasting.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 30, 2020 11:41 AM

- To: Travis Romeyn



[P
Cc: Larry Simpson; Ryan Simpson
Subject: Reservoir 2 & 4

. Good Morning Travis,

Per our conversation of this morning, below please find the revised price for the exterior redo on Reservoirs 2
& 4 for Cabazon Water District,

Reservoir 2
Exterior roof complete removal, epoxy 3 — 5 mils DFT, Sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT
Shell spot repair, pressure wash, spot prime 3 — 5, full coat epoxy 3 — 5, full coat sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT,
caulk exterior chime, wet blast
Price $109,482
Reservoir 4
Complete removal of shell, full coat epoxy, full coat of Sherloxane 4 — 6 mils DFT,
Roof, spot repair, pressure wash, spot prime 3 — 5 mils DFT and full coat epoxy 3 — 5 mils DFT, full coat
Sherloxane 4 - 6,, wet blast
Replace logo
Price $115,811
Logo $ 1,500
Total $117,311
_onould you have any questions, please feel free to give us a call.

—Thank you

Ya

Kattia €. Rios

Project Coordinator/Assistant Project Manager

QP-1/QP-2 Certified Contractor
Mbe/Sbe Business

14665 Rancho Vista Drive
nitana, CA 92335
.one (909) 829-0000
Fax (909) 829-0023

Oeu (951) 541-1416



221 1bT

New Business

3.Discussion/Action Item:

Approval of Tank Diving Inspection for Tank 2,
Tank 3, and Tank 4: quotes received from
(a) Dive/Corr Inc.
and
(b) Liquivision Technology Diving Services

(by GM Louie)



DIVE/CORR, INC

INDUSTRIAIL INSPECTION AND PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICES
P O BOX 30427
LONG BEACH, CA 90853
OFFICE - 562-439-8287
FAX - 562-438-7151

pate: 12/20/20

CABAZON WATER
PO BOX 297
CABAZON, CA 92230

guote #: 20188

QUOTE FOR THE UNDERWATER INSPECTION OF THREE (3) POTABLE WATER
STORAGE RESERVOIRS

TANK 1 - 1.0 MG ~ FULL INSPECTION
TANK 2 - 1.0 MG ~ FULL INSPECTION
TANK 3 - .50 MG - FULL INSPECTION

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK TO BE AS FOLILOWS:

=~y WNRE

2o

External inspection

Internal inspection of all surfaces

Pit depth measurements in areas of active corrosion
Damage from corrosion or other sources

Condition of all appurtenances

Site security

Measurement of sediment accumulation

General conditions with regard to health and safety
Physical evaluation of the cathodic system (if present)
Check for evidence of earthquake damage
Deficiencies in relation to current safety codes

CABAZON WATER TO PROVIDE:

1.

2.
3.

All keys necessary to access the site

and the roof hatches;

All exterior ladders to reach the roof;
Reasonable water levels at the time of
inspection to allow a thorough roof evaluation;



PAGE 2 OF 3

DIVE/CORR, INC TO PROVIDE

1) One dive team*

2) A decontamination procedure and materials;

3) All diving equipment - diving to be performed
with dry suits only;

4) Digital still cameras and underwater strobes;

5) Back up digital cameras and strobes on site;

6) All materials and supplies;

7) All jobsite travel;

8) Office report time

9) Experience in over 4,500+ water tank inspections

THE DIVER

* The primary diver conducting the inspection has over
thirty five (35+) years of diving experience and
has conducted more than 4500 tank inspections to date.
The actual inspector in the water has held the following
certifications:

1) AWS - CWI - QCl (Am. Welding Soc - Certified Welding
Inspector)

2) Nationally certified by exam through ASNT Level III (Level III
is the top level)
Level III - Ultrasonic Technician
Level III - Magnetic Particle Technician

3) Over 4000 hours of "in field" coating inspection

4) Diving instructor rating

5) Confined space training

6) B.S. Degree - University of Massachusetts

Other Certifications

Class “A” California State Contractors License #770523
CPR/First Aid (renewed yearly)

Member in the following Associations

AWWA - American Water Works Association

NACE - National Association of Corrosion Engineers
OCWWA Orange County Water Works Association

ICWWA Inland County Water Works Association

SCWUA Southern California Water Utilities Association

'z‘-l/ iz



DIVE RR, IN

PAGE 3 OF 3

Dan Gross has been active in the underwater water tank inspection
industry since 1982 and has been injury free from inception of the
company to date.

TANKS DO NOT HAVE TO BE TAKEN OUT OF SERVICE

REPORT TO BE DELIVERED AS FOLILOWS:

Part #1 - A digital still portfolio illustrating present
conditions.

Part #2 - A written report shall accompany those photographs
describing the pictures with a summary and
recommendations.

Part #3 - A color narrated DVD showing the highlights of the
inspection.

Part #4 - Selected photographs showing the highlights of the
inspection to be printed.

TOTAL $5800.00

SINCERELY

DAN GROSS
CHIEF INSPECTOR

25/ %3



LiquiVisioN TEcHNOLOGY

DIVING

Office/tdsiling Address
711 Market Street

Klzmath Falls, OR §7601

SERVICES

Phone: {800) 229-6559 Fax: (541) 883-1381
liquivisionf@divingservices.com

wiviv. divingservioes.com

Western Opesations
835 Market Street
Klameth Falls, OR 976801

Calvin Louie
Cabazon CWD

P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, CA 92230

12/28/2020

Wk: 951-849-4442
Em: clouie@cabazonwater.org
CA142220R3T_

We are pleased to provide you the following firm quotation and outline of the conditions of our services.

additional fees may apply.

Price reflects Prevailing wages and is contingent on all work being completed on the same trip.
Filter bags are billed additionally at $200 per bag.
Dechlor is billed additionally at $15 per hour.
LVT estimates 2 days of work, if more time is needed multiple trips might be required and

Tank Type Dia. Hgt. | Maximum | Surface Price for | Price for | Price for

or (Feet)| Calculated Area Diver Diver Additional

Lxw Capacity (S.F.) Inspection |Cleaning &| Sediment

(Feet) (Gallons) Only Inspection | Per Hour

IMobilization Charge - Flat charge to mobilize and demobilize to your location. $495 $550

1. Tank 1 OG Welded 81 26 | 1,001,717 5,150 $3,060
2. Tank 3 OG Welded 65 21 521,012 3,317 $3,060
3. Tank 4 OG Welded 74 31 996,843 4,299 $3,060

Subtotal $9,675

iMul:itank Discount (after the first two tanks}). ($225)
Total *Plus sales tax if applicable $9,450
Scope of Work:

Removal of accumulated sediment from the floor of the tank. The effluent will be disposed of at the districts direction. A
final and comprehensive inspection will be performed documenting the condition of the entire structure and recorded on
DVD. Written documentation with digital pictures, descriptions of the images and any recommendations wilf be provided to
the district on a USB flash drive.

Our bids are based on a variety of factors that pertain to the length of time it takes to accomplish our work. The main
consideration is the amount of sediment that has to be removed, 4" of normal sediment is included in this bid.

initials

Entry hatch on top of the tank is at least 18" diameter.
The water level is kept within ten (10) feet of the top of the tank.
Tank dimensions are correct.
Scope of work is correct.
Customer has disclosed prevailing wage requirements to Liquivision Technology, Inc.

This job requires rates to be paid at prevailing wage: Yes

No

Please initial the line items below to verify that you have reviewed them.

1. Placement and disposal of effluent removed from the tank is done at the direction of the Customer.

Q- 2. Quotes for cleaning assume that the sediment is normal material (such as silt, flocculated material, insects,

manganese, rust, etc.) found in potable water tanks that is easily removed by our vacuum system. If the sediment is
difficult to remove such as large amounts of concrete chips, gravel, sand, rocks, detached coating debris, etc., then
our hourly rate shall apply for each hour (over the first hour) for removing this material.

lh’{ bz



'7:‘| L2

711 Market Street
Klamath Falls, OR 97601
Phone: (541) 883-6473

- L|qU|VISIOn TEChnOIOgy Fax: (541) 883-1361

3. Unless specified in quote detail we clean all submerged horizontal and angled berms or sloped surfaces 35 degrees
or less. Surfaces exceeding this angle such as the walls can be cleaned but must be listed separately in the quote
detail or estimated by the divers upon inspection. We do not clean surfaces that are out of the water.

4.  Ifany information provided to us is incorrect or if any problems exist that inhibit our ability to complete the job on a timely
schedule, then we will notify you of the problem and reserve the right to add on to the quote based on our estimate of the
additional time it will take to complete the work. Charges for time delays are $200 per hour. This paragraph only applies to
any problems that are your responsibility (i.e. rescheduling with less than 2 business days notice, set up and start of work
before cancelation, etc.) Charge for going remote (if required and not addressed in advance) is $550 per hour.

5. For coating repair in steel tanks we use a two part underwater epoxy. Each rust nodule or area of coating defect is
wire brushed to bare metal and epoxy is applied over the area. The epoxy chemically bonds to the steel, displaces
water, and remains intact with a greater bond than the original coating. All of our repair, sealing and coating materials
meet or exceed NSF 60 & 61 standards. Repairs are done at the districts direction for the rate of $550 per hour and
$40 per tube of Manus or epoxy.

6.  If dechlorination is required it will be charged at $15.00 per hour. If filtration is required then the filter bags will be
charged at $200.00 per bag. Unless specified LVT does not remove the bags they become the districts responsibility
to dispose of.

7. If payment is not made within sixty days of the date of the invoice, an interest charge of 3% shall begin to accrue each
month on the unpaid balance. This interest will continue to accrue each month until the balance is paid in full. To
avoid any interest charges, payment must be received or postmarked within the sixty days following the date of the
invoice. Statements will be sent each month to reflect the new balance.

Our cleaning procedure is accomplished utilizing our proprietary vacuum cleaner, the “LiquiVac™" (Patented). The
Liquivac™ pumps an average of 200 gallons per minute. It has a rotating soft bristle brush that scrubs the floor clean and
removes all sediment without creating turbidity in your tank. This is the only way to ensure that all biofilm is removed from
the interior surfaces without getting any of it mixed into the water column. This system also enables us to clean walls.

In a conscious effort to preserve our nations natural resources LVT will provide our reports to the district on USB flash
drives. If you require a printed and bound copy of the reports please notify our office staff. There will be an additional fee of
$125 per copy.

In over 20 years of providing diving services we continue to treat every customer as if they were our only customer. We
are dedicated to accomplishing every job with the utmost professionalism, safety and efficiency.

Please sign this quote and FAX both pages back to us with an approximate time frame of when you would like the work
done. If you have any questions please give us a call. We look forward to working with you.

Quote is valid for 90 days. Upon signature the work shall be accomplished at a mutually acceptable date within one year.

Sincerely, [ find the above and preceding page of contingencies and procedures
: 2 ? acceptable.
Far Accepted by: Date:
Cassy Maxwell -
General Manager §_ignature: Title:




’L?b‘ L2

711 Market Street
Klamath Falls, OR 97601
Phone: é541; 883-6473

B LiquiVision Technology

Billing/Change Order/Estimate Form

Calvin Louie 12/28/2020
Cabazon CWD Wk: 951-849-4442
P.O. Box 297 Em: clouie@cabazonwater.org
Cabazon, CA 92230 CA142220R3T_
Team Leader: Diver #1:
Diver #2: Diver #3:
Tank Type Dia. Hgt. | Maximum Surface Price for Price for Date
or (Feet)| Calculated Area Diver Diver Work
LxW Capacity (S.F) Inspection |Cleaning & Done
(Feet) (Gallons) Only Inspection
[Mobilization Charge - Flat charge to mobilize and demabilize to your location. $495
1. Tank 1 OG Welded 81 26 | 1,001,717 5,150 $3,060
2. Tank 3 OG Welded 65 21 521,012 3,317 $3,060
3. Ta|nk 4 OG Welded 74 31 996,843 4,299 $3,060

Price reflects Prevailing wages and is contingent on all work being completed on the same trip.
Filter bags are billed additionally at $200 per bag.
Dechlor is billed additionally at $15 per hour.

LVT estimates 2 days of work, if more time is needed multiple trips might be required and
additional fees may apply.

Subtotal $9,675
Multitank Discount (after the first two tanks). ($225)
Total *Plus sales tax if applicable $9,450
| Itemize work: Time or Quantity: N - Extended:

Sales T_ax_if_aﬁ'y:

Total )]

Authorization Signature:

Estimation of cost for recommendations that LVT can perform.
Recommendations: Estimated Labor . Total Estimate

Total B




7"‘] 12

711 Market Street

Ligui VisioN o L S

Toll Free: (800) 229-6959

Phone: (541) 883-6473

ECHNOLOGY Fax: (541) 8831361
DIVING SERVICES liquivision@divingservices.com

POTABLE WATER STORAGE TANK INSPECTION, CLEANING, and REPAIR

STANDARDS AND QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

STANDARD: REASON FOR STANDARD:
Use of Divers: This allows the water tank to be left in service, full of water and in full operation

during inspection, cleaning, or repairs procedures. This saves considerable time,
money, and resources. The old method of cleaning tanks required emptying
them and sending a crew inside the confined space to accomplish the task. This
was costly, time consuming, and inconvenient.

Our method of using divers will save up to 70% in cost and time.
Compliance with
Regulatory Agency
Standards: A must in today’s world of DEQ, EPA, State Health Departments, or OSHA,
fines and regulatory compliance red tape. More importantly, municipalities are
faced with the threat of lawsuits over a myriad of issues. Animportant area of
- concern is the maintenance of drinking water systems and the dangers and costs
C associated with this maintenance. We comply with all of the regulations and
standards that we have identified, as follows:
: e (OSHA CFR1910.401(A)(2)(LV)(B) - Commercial Diving Standards

e OSHA CFR 1910(g)(t) - Commercial Diving Operations

e OSHA CFR 1910.00 - Safety and Health Requirements

e OSHA CFR1910.146 — Permit Required Confined Spaces

e CALOSHA TITLE 8, SEC. 6050-6063 — California Commercial Diving
Standards

e CALOSHA TITLE 8, SEC. 5156-5159 — California Confined Space
Regulations

e NIOSH 87-113 — Confined Air Space Regulations

¢ NACE - National Association of Corrosion Engineers
ANSIV/AWWA D101-53(R86) — Inspecting and Repairing Steel Water

Storage Tanks
e ANSI/AWWA D102 - Painting and Inspecting Steel Water Storage
Tanks
- . g e ANSIVAWWA C652-92 Disinfection of Water Storage Facilities
LVT Diver Support Trailer houses control ¢ ANSI/AWWA D104-91 (C) - Inspection of Impressed Current
panels with two T.V. screens, two DVR Cathodic Protection Systems
recorders and live voice communications e ANSVAWWA D130-97(M25) - Maintenance of Flexible Membrane

between the diver and dive controller. Covers and Linings

ASTM D3359-92a — Testing of Coating Adhesion to Metallic Substrates
NSF 60/61 — Approved For Use in, or in contact with, Potable Water

All Dive Maintenance Technicians are required to know, understand and abide by
C these regulations, as well as meet any other regulatory requirements, at all times.



2o

Variable Volume Dry Suit:  This is an ANSVAWWA standard. A Dry Suit keeps the Diver’s body from having
any contact with the water column. From a regulatory agency standpoint and from
a common sense approach it is apparent that if the diver’s body comes in contact
with the water then contamination of the water is a potential.

LVT utilizes commercial grade dry suits constructed of heavy vulcanized rubber
material that is resistant to tearing or puncture to ensure integrity and isolation of
the diver from the water column. This material is also much more suitable for
disinfection with a high chlorine solution. By virtue of the fact that this material is
| smooth and non-porous it is less conductive to harboring bacteria or other micro-

i organisms that may survive chemical disinfection.

Diver in Dry Suit and Hard A variable volume dry suit enables the diver to adjust the amount of air inside the
Hat | suit to accomplish positive buoyancy. This enables him to ascend or descend and
achieve vertical mobility.

Diving Hard Hat: The commercial diving hard hat keeps the Diver’s head and neck from having any
Camera, _ Li _ contact with the water column. It prevents the diver from contaminating the water
: | column with saliva or mucous.

In addition to contamination issues a hard hat allows the diver to have live full-time
voice communication with surface personnel. This is possible due to the fact that
he does not have to hold a regulator mouthpiece between his teeth. Therefore, the
microphone and speakers mounted inside the hard hat are as functional as they
would be out of the water.

Another advantage of the hard hat is that it allows for mounting live full-time video
camera and lights on the outside of it. This allows the diver to constantly video all
of his work without the need to use his hands to hold the camera or lights.

A hard hat diver has his air supply pumped to him via an air hose from the surface.

DSI Superlite 27 Dry Hard
Hat, mates to Dry Suit

A hard hat diver has his air supply pumped to him via an air hose from the surface.
This enables him to have virtually unlimited air and time underwater. The air hose
is part of several cables that form the “umbilical”. In addition to the air hose the
diver is connected to the surface with a video cable, two electrical cables for his
lights, a communication cable for the radio, and a second air hose for emergency or
other uses. The umbilical is practically indestructible with approximate pull
strength of 6,000 pounds.

The commercial diver hard hat, in itself is not an ANSI/AWWA standard, however,
a surface or external supplied air system is a requirement. OSHA regulations
require that commercial divers have their air supply compressor monitored or
tested for maximum carbon monoxide levels every 6 months or in the case of air
supply cylinders have each batch of cylinders tested when filled. LVT exceeds this
requirement by constantly monitoring all air supplied to the diver whether by the
compressor or by the backup high pressure cylinders.



'—3‘} W2

Full-Time Voice

Communication: This is an OSHA or CALOSHA requirement. The system allows for constant
communication between the diver, and all surface personnel. The dive controller in
the support trailer and the dive tender at the tank entrance point can
communicate at all times. In addition, municipal employees can communicate with
the diver at any time. It is apparent that full time communication with the diver
is an important safety factor. But for purposes of a more efficient inspection,
cleaning, and repair program this enables the diver to immediately discuss any
observations he makes inside the tank. Full time voice communication also
allows for, and is the only way to have accurate voice input live on video when
recording.

District personnel watching
LVT inspection.

Live Full-Time High

Resolution Color Video: Allows for constant viewing of diver’s work and observations made. This has
apparent safety considerations as well. It is impossible for the diver to do a
haphazard job or cause high turbidity in the water column while he is under
constant visual scrutiny. If a contractor cleans a tank without live video and
then goes back and video tapes the interior subsequent to the work, it is impossible

i to tell whether you have observed a complete cleaning of the whole tank or not.
( That is why LVT uses full time live video in conjunction with live voice

communication and recorded simultaneously with visual record.

Additionally, municipal employeeé can view every observation that the diver makes
at the time the observation is made. Any questions can be answered or directions
given to the diver by radio communication.

Dedicated Equipment

And Disinfection: This is an ANS/AWWA standard. All of the equipment utilized by LVT’s divers is
disinfected with a 200 ppm chlorine solution prior to entering a drinking water
tank. In addition all of the diver’s equipment is dedicated only to use in

drinking water tanks. When the equipment is not in use it is stored in a clean

area and kept away from contamination.

Diver being disinfected with
200 ppm chlorine solution.




=y
( /
—’

Cleaning with the
LiquiVac™;

Diver cleaning with the
LiguiVac™

Filter Bags:

LVT filter bags are 75’ long
and 3’ wide.

Repairs:

'?>7~’ 1L

P s U e o - vt T

*PLEASE NOTE THATLVT PA'I'E NT ON THIS TYPE
OF SYSTEM, ANY OTHER CLAIMS BY Al - -
THEY HAVE A SIMILAR DEVICE IS PQTENT H{_FRINGMENT*

e et

LVT’s unique patented cleaning device is the only of its kind in the industry.

Floor Cleaning is performed using our patented LiquiVac® underwater vacuum
system. This system was designed and built for the specific purpose of cleaning
drinking water tanks. The LiquiVac® has a rotating, soft bristle brush that is
completely enclosed in the aluminum housing. The brush scrubs the floor clean
while the vacuum neatly removes the sediment. By not creating turbidity, the
LiquiVac® helps to maintain the water quality. The LiquiVac® also removes the
biofilm growth underneath the sediment that other cleaning methods leave behind.

In the past, it was virtually impossible to allow a tank to remain in-service while the
walls were cleaned because of the amount of turbidity created while brushing them.
Now, the LiquiVac's® unique design allows it to be used on the walls as well. With
other options, such as column cleaning and pipeline cleaning, you can choose to
avoid the strain of draining the tank and still achieve a thorough cleaning.

If you have intakes or outfalls that need inspected or dredged, then LiquiVision
Technology has the equipment and expertise to perform the work. Our dive boat,
dive platform, and 4" floating dredge can be mobilized to your site in order perform
these services. When inspecting these areas we use the same high resolution

video recording and reports that you will find in our tank inspections.

LVT has the ability and expertise to also clean reclaimed water tanks, raw water
tanks, waste water structures, collector wells, intakes/outfalls, and grit chambers.

Filter bags are an effective solution for capturing the sediment and other debris that
is removed from your tank. The effluent is pumped into a bag. The bag allows the
water to seep through its pores while the sediment and other material stay trapped
in the bag. After all of the water has run off then the bag with the sediment and
other debris can be hauled to a disposal site.

LVT can also dechorinate discharged water with our dechlorination
diffuser.

LiquiVision Technology utilizes NSF approved materials for all

coating rehabilitations and repairs. For coating repair in steel tanks we use a
two part underwater epoxy. Each rust nodule or area of coating defect is
wire brushed to bare metal and epoxy is applied over the area. The epoxy
chemically bonds to the steel, displaces water, and remains intact with a
greater bond than the original coating. LiquiVision Technology also
performs retrofitting of new and existing appurtenances, renovation
projects, and component modifications.

With periodic inspection, cleaning, and touchup work, a steel tank can remain in
service for many decades without major renovation.

All inspections follow a standardized check-list including the following:



33] el

Exterior Tank Overall Appearance and Condition
Exterior Ladder

Side Vents & Screens

Entry Hatch

Roof Vents & Screens

Interior Ladder

Interior Walls & Coating

Floor and Coating

Floor to Wall Seams

Floor Seams and integrity of any previous repairs
Chlorine Injection System

Manual Level Indicator
Fill/Discharge

Overflow

Scour

Man Entries

Water Tap

Cathodic Protection

Support Columns

Ceiling

Measurement of Sediment and Debris

Inspection Reports are generated
and provided to the customers via
USB thumb drives or paper
bound.

The maximum interval for periodic inspections of the tank interior should normally be 3 years. It is usually advisable
to wash out the tank at the time of inspection.

(\,- Standards, Procedures
and Safe Practices Manual: This manual is required by OSHA and CALOSHA and must be present and
available to all divers at each location. LVT has compiled and publishes
a Standards, Procedures and Safe Practices manual that is followed by all
employees. A copy of the manual is kept in all dive support vehicles and is
available for inspection at any time. All LVT personnel are required to be
knowledgeable of this manual and are required to follow it at all times.

This manual describes in much greater detail all of the above standards and
includes many more that are not addressed in this summary. It includes
copies of all regulatory agency standards and regulations.

Summary: In over 35 years of providing commercial diving services, LiquiVision
Technology continues to satisfy every customer as if they were our only
customer. We are dedicated to accomplishing every job with utmost
professionalism, safety, and efficiency. Satisfaction is gnaranteed! We have
proven that our patented technology and methods are the superior system
for cleaning, and many of our customers use us as a ''sole source'’ annually.

Qualifications: LiquiVision Technology holds the following certifications:
®*  OR General Contractors License # 127877
* WA General Contractors License # 967KQ
*  CA General Contractors License # 812752
Ve ¢ ID General Contactors License # 012188-D-4
[ ]

Underwater Bridge Inspector



%‘-l/lcﬂ/

Tank Name
Your Water District
Report of Findings
From the

Cleaning and Inspection
Conducted on

Date

LiQUiVisiON
TECHNOLOGY
DIVING SERVICES

711 Market Street, Klamath Falls, OR 97601, (800) 229-6959 www.divingservices.com




Ty

s

AT 4 AT ST T B A ST St 8 £ Elarl A

L Inis Pagez Intentionally

ey

e

s =TT

o~
=

i

%‘5] 1L



[ 1L

liqm!iqﬁ(}ou TECHNOLOGY

CiicaMaling Address Western Operations Toll Free: (500} 223-6959
711 Market Streat 835 Market Street Phona: {541)883-8473
Kizmsth Falls, OR 87801 Kizmath Falls, OR 97601 Fax {541)883-1361
www divinoservices com fisuivision® divinasarvices com

Underwater Inspection
of
Reservoir Name

It will focus on issues of concern or areas that
detailed inspection, please view each video.

Color images of all plumbing fixtures, compgnents ah¢ areas o‘{ioncem were taken via

underwater digital camera. The images ghoulthgive yo c),é%r view of the conditions described.
The video may give you another view arid a cleaker under;
to look at more closely.

METHODOLOGY:

Dpm+ C@Igrine Solution Immediately Prior to Entering
ohtamination,of the water supply. All LVT equipment was
'i!ng the p,o/ta'éle water system.

Disinfection of All Equipmd
System: This process prey

HOT betweef surface and Diver: The system allowed for constant
nication betweey the diver, and' all surface personnel. In addition, customers were able to
communicate with the d}Ver at any tifme. For purposes of a more efficient inspection, cleaning, and

repair program, that engbled the/mver to immediately discuss any observations he made inside the
reservoir.

/
/
esolztion Color Video: Allowed for constant viewing of the diver's work and
is also enabled the district personnel to view what the diver in the reservoir was

Full-Time Live Hij
observations,
witnessi

TERMINOLOGY:

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 2



3’7(“::%

(_" Reservoir Name

When describing the features or areas of interest inside the reservoir, an image number is placed
next to the description that corresponds with the inspection findings. The diagram is shown in a
view looking from the top down. The entry hatch is referred to as the 12:00 o’clock position.

Following the diagram are pictures of the pertinent areas of the reservoir and the locations where
the pictures were taken. Each picture is descript and numbered.

The standards used to evaluate the condition of the reservoir include: Standard Method of
Evaluating Degree of Rusting on Painted Steel Surfaces — SSPC-Vis 2-82 & ASTM D 610-85
NACE Standard RP0196-96 & RP0388-2001 or Condition of Concrete In-service —~ ACI| 201.1R-92.

( OVERVIEW OF RESERVOIR INSPECTED:

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 3



'gaj w2

Reservoir Name

Customer Name: Reservoir Name:
Manager: Construction: OG Steel
Job Number: Capacity (gal.): 400,000
Date of Inspection: Diameteror Lx W: 52
Report Writer: Height: 24’
Diver: Floor Square FT: 2,123 R
Tender: Date Built: 1990

N/A —not applicable Excellent (Ex.) —like new condition, no repairs needed. Good — Cosmetic only problems,

repairs if wanted. Fair- Minor problems, repairs needed, not immediate. Poor —Major problems, structural or
like, immediate repairs needed.

1. Rust Grades

Grades % of Surface Rusted Description
10 0% -0.01% No rusting or less than 0.01% of surface rusted
9 0.01% - 0.03% Minute rusting, less than 0.03% of surface rusted
8 0.03% -0.1% Few isolated rust spots, less than 0.1% of surface rusted
7 0.1%- 0.3% Less than 0.3% of surface rusted
6 0.3%-1% Extensive rust spots, but less than 1% of surface rusted
5 1% - 3% Rusting to the extent of 3% of surface rusted
4 3% - 10% Rusting to the extent of 10% of surface rusted
3 10% - 16% Approximately one sixth of the surface rusted (16%)
2 16% - 33% Approximately one third of the surface rusted (33%)
1 33% - 50% Approximately one half of the surface rusted (50%)
0 50% - 100% Approximately 100% of the surface rusted

2. Weld Deformities

Unableto| Good Porosity {Incompletefincomplete| Undercut | Underfill | Overlap | Cracks [Convexity /| Spatter
Evaluate { Condition Fusion Penetration Concavity

UE GC PS IF P uc UF oL CK CC SP

3. Concrete Deformities

Unableto| Good Cracks | Blistering | Chalking De- Pitting | Popouts | Scaling | Spalling | Warping
Evaluate | Condition Lamination

UE GC CK BL CH DL PT PO SC SP WA
RECOMMENDATIONS:

Estimated Time -
Recommendation Hrs.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 4



Reservoir Name

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Repair and/or install fine mesh screens on exterior vents to limit the risk
of bugs and other matter from entering the reservoir.

Install weather stripping on entry hatch to limit the risk of bugs and other
matter from entering the reservoir.

Make spot repairs to exterior coating of the reservoir as needed. These
repairs should be performed only after prepping the surface
appropriately.

Repair liquid level indicator by replacing the cable that attaches the float
and tag. Consider replacing the indicator on the outside with a more
legible one. I[f the liquid level indicator is not needed then you may want
to consider removing it instead.

Replace liquid level indicator float with a more durable stainless steel
type float.

Repair liquid level indicator by reattaching the cables that guide the float
to the floor of the reservoir.

Repair coating failure on interior fixtures, floor and walls. Repairs below
the water line can be accomplished utilizing divers, the proper tools and
specially formulated, two-part epoxy.

Maodify the location of the inlet and/or outlet or install a mechanical
mixing system to properly mix the water in the reservoir. Improperly
mixed water can cause stale water with taste and odor problems as well
as low disinfectant residuals. In the case of chloraminated distribution
systems, nitrification may occur.

Please contact our
sales office for more
information.

Clean the floor in order to remove the accumulated sediment, to give a
better idea of the severity of coating problems noted on the floor and
allow for easier and better repairs.

Please contact our
sales office for an
estimate.

Clean the walls in order to remove the accumulated sediment, to give a
better idea of the severity of coating problems noted on the walls and
allow for easier and better repairs.

Please contact our
sales office for an
estimate.

Remove the existing exterior coating and apply a new coating. The
existing exterior coating was in such disrepair that it would not be cost
effective to attempt to patch all of the problem areas.

Liguivision
Technology does not
perform this service.

Remove the existing interior coating and apply a new NSF approved
epoxy type coating. The existing interior coating was in such disrepair
that it would not be cost effective to attempt to patch all of the problem
areas.

Liquivision
Technology does not
perform this service.

Perform a regular cleaning, inspection and repair cycle every 2-3 years
in order to ensure superior water quality and proper maintenance of
coating condition and appurtenances is performed.

Please contact our
sales office for an
estimate.

Other

Total Estimated Hours

Liquivision Technology - inspection Report ~ January 27, 2010 - Page 5

34 \nﬂ/



Ho/ e/

Reservoir Name

Reservoir Diagram

9:00 3:00

8:00

6:00 6
7
Drawing Not To Scale
Entry Hatch Overflow ® Support Column
. Drain/Scour \ Man Entry ® Water Tap
. Common Inlet/Outlet ~N Liquid Level Indicator Air Vent
® Reference Cells ® Cathodic Protection Anode

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 6



i wz

Reservoir Name

Image #1

Manual Level Indicator
12:10

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Manual Level Indicator
appeared to be in good

condition with minor
surface corrosion
observed, working

properly.

Image #2
Ladder 12:20

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Exterior Ladder
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion and
minor chalking
observed. Safety climb
appeared to be in good
condition.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 7



ll?—{ (P 2

Reservoir Name

image #3
Water Tap One 12:45

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Water Tap One
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion and
well insulated.

R A S Ay

Image #4
Inlet / Qutlet 1:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_8.

Description:
Inlet / Outlet appeared
to be in good condition

with minor surface
corrosion/delamination
and minor chalking
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 8



‘&%\ L

Reservoir Name

Image #5
Water Tap Two 1:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Water Tap Two
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion
/delamination and
minor chalking
observed.

+ Image #6
Man Way 5:30

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Man Way appeared to
be in good condition
with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
around bolts observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report —~ January 27, 2010 - Page 9



O

‘-HI.‘(DL

Reservoir Name

Image #7
Overflow 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Overflow appeared to
be in good condition

with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed.

et o Bk < 2

Image #8
Drain 7:00

Condition:
Rust Grade®_9.

Description:
Drain appeared to be in
good condition with
minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 10



LS

Reservoir Name

Image #9
Bottom Wall 9:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'__8.

Description:
Bottom Wall appeared
to be in Fair condition

with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed. Sealant
appeared to be
deteriorating.

Image #10
Top Wall 9:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_8.

Description:

Top Wall appeared to
be in good condition
with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 11

1\



6

Reservoir Name

Image #11
Side Vent 9:00

Condition:
Rust Grade' 9.

Description:

Side Vents appeared to
be in good condition
with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed.

B P i s e e

Image #12
Hatch 12:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

24 x 24
Description:
Hatch appeared to be
in good condition with
minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 12

Hu\ W




Reservoir Name

Image #13

Manual Level Indicator
12:10

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Manual Level Indicator
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion and
chalking around bolts
observed.

Image #14
Roof 3:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_8,

Description:
Roof appeared to be in
good condition with
minor surface
corrosion/delamination
and minor chalking
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 13




-~

Lf'b/aub

Reservoir Name

Image #15
Center Vent

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Center Vent appeared
to be in good condition
with minor surface
corrosion and chalking
observed. Fine mesh
screen appeared to be
in good condition.

Image #16
Roof 9:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_8.

Description:
Roof appeared to be in
good condition with
minor surface
corrosion/delamination
and minor chalking

observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 14



{

Reservoir Name

Image #17

Diver

Description:
Scott Rang

Image #18

Sediment

Description:
Sediment appeared to
be a light skiff about a
1/16 of an inch.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 15




&

Reservoir Name

Image #19
Ladder 12:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_5.

Description:
Ladder appeared 1o be
in fair condition with
minor to moderate
surface corrosion
observed.

Image #20
Reference Cell

Condition:
Good

Description:
Reference cell
appeared to be

properly suspended
with a minor crack in
it.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 16




S‘ “I?—

Reservoir Name

Image #21

Manual level Indicator
12:10

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Manual Level Indicator
guide wires appeared
to be in good condition
and properly secured to
the floor.

Image #22
Interior Wall 12:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

Description:
Interior Walls appeared
to be in fair condition
with minor to moderate
surface corrosion in the
coal tar coating.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 17



5’-’ iL2

Reservoir Name

Image #23
Interior Floor 12:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Interior Floor appeared
to be in good condition

with minor surface
corrosion in the coal
tar coating.

Image #24

Interior Inlet / Outlet 1:00

Cohdition:
Rust Grade' _6.

Description:
12”’Interior Inlet /
Outlet appeared to be
in good condition,
minor surface
corrosion was
observed.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 18



53

Reservoir Name

image #25

Interior Water Tap One
12:45

Condition:
Rust Grade'_5.

Description:
Water Tap One (1)
appeared to be in fair
condition with minor
surface corrosion.

Image #26
Water Tap Two 1:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Water Tap Two (1)
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 19

161



il ot

Reservoir Name

Image #27
Interior Wall 3:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

Description:
Interior Walls appeared
to be in fair condition
with minor to moderate
surface corrosion in the
coal tar coating.

Image #28
Interior Floor 3:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Interior floor appeared | i
to be in good condition | i3

with minor surface
corrosion in the coal
tar coating.

Ligquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 20



55/ 12

Reservoir Name

Image #29
Interior Man Entry 5:30

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Interior Man Entrie
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
staining and surface
corrosion observed.

Image #30
Anode

Condition:
Good

Description:
Anode appeared to be
properly suspended
and about 85%
remaining.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 21



=

'-SM{iu'z/

Reservoir Name

Image #31

Drain 7:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
6’’Drain appeared to
be in good condition
with minor corrosion
in the coal tar coating

Image #32

Interior Wall 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

Description:
Interior Walls appeared

to be in fair condition
with minor to moderate
surface corrosion in the
coal tar coating,

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 22



S’l/ 1T

Reservoir Name

image #33
Interior Floor 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Interior Floor appeared
to be in good condition

with minor surface
corrosion in the coal
tar coating.

Image #34
Interior Wall 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

Description:
Interior Walls appeared
to be in fair condition
with minor to moderate
surface corrosion in the
coal tar coating.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 23



59/ ez

Reservoir Name

Image #35
Interior Floor 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Interior Floor appeared
to be in good condition

with minor surface
corrosion in the coal
tar coating.

Image #36
Interior Column

Condition:
Rust Grade'_6.

Description:
10°’Support Column
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
to moderate surface
corrosion in the coal
tar coating.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 24



Sq/ T

Reservoir Name

Image #37
Center Reference Cell

Condition:
Good

Description:
Reference Cell
appeared to be

properly suspended
and in working order.

Image #38
Center Ceiling

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Center Ceiling
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion
observed. No evidence
of scaling from ceiling
was observed on floor
during the cleaning
process.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 25



LpO/‘U?/

Reservoir Name

Image #39
Ceiling 3:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Ceiling appeared to be
in good condition with

minor surface
corrosion observed. No

evidence of scaling
from ceiling was
observed on floor
during the cleaning
process.

Image #40
Interior Overflow 6:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_8.

Description:

10” Interior Overflow
appeared to be in good
condition with minor
surface corrosion
observed on top edge.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 26



Reservoir Name

Image #41
Ceiling 9:00

Condition:
Rust Grade'_7.

Description:
Ceiling appeared to be
in good condition with

minor surface
corrosion observed. No

evidence of scaling
from ceiling was
observed on floor
during the cleaning
process.

Image #42

Manual level Indicator
12:10

Condition:
Rust Grade'_9.

Description:
Manual Level Indicator
float appeared to be in
good condition and
properly suspended.

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 27

(al( ‘T




Reservoir Name

REFERENCES:

Standard Method of Evaluating Degree of Rusting on Painted Steel Surfaces
— SSPC-Vis 2-82 & ASTM D 610-85 (1989)

The graphical representations show examples of area percentages, which may be helpful in rust grading.

The use of photographical reference standards requires the following precautions:
1.

Some finishes are stained by rust. This staining must not be confused with the actual rusting
involved.

Accumulated dirt or other material may make accurate determination of the degree of rusting difficult.
Certain types of deposited dirt that contain iron or iron compounds may cause surface discoloration
that should not be mistaken for corrosion.

It must be realized that failure may vary over a given area and discretion must therefore be used in
applying these reference standards.

In evaluating surfaces, consideration shall be given to the color of the finish coating, since failures
will be more apparent on a finish that shows color contrast with rust, such as white, than on a similar
color, such as iron oxide finish.

The photographic reference standards are not required for use of the rust-grade scale since the
scale is based upon the percent of the area rusted and any method of assessing area rusted may be
used to determine the rust grade.

Rust Grades” Description Graphical Representation
10 No rusting or less than 0.01% Unnecessa
of surface rusted Yy
=
9 Minute rusting, less than 0.03% %
of surface rusted
T ——
oo & "_ ' ,
=2 e
8 Few isolated rust spots, less = o
than 0.1% of surface rusted i ¥ 15*
i .H;:"d;‘:*
7
8 2 & *
7 Less than 0.3% of surface & e
rusted £ 3053 7
6 Extensive rust spots, but less
than 1% of surface rusted

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report — January 27, 2010 - Page 28




P2

Reservoir Name

Rusting to the extent of 3% of
surface rusted

Rusting to the extent of 10% of
surface rusted

Approximately on sixth of the
surface rusted (16%)

Approximately one third of the
surface rusted (33%)

Approximately one half of the
surface rusted (50%)

Approximately 100% of the

Unnecessa
surface rusted v

Liquivision Technology - Inspection Report - January 27, 2010 - Page 29

[P






(94/ 12

New Business

4.Discussion/Action Item:

Board Training: AB54 & AB240 Ethics
Training
(by AGM Lemus)



C‘aS/ lu-’;_,

. S stk s e B

il

- . o - Sk i e T ot e b

Jan-June 2021 Registration Form

b~ is NO FEE toattend these wurksliéps. Please register in advance, as space may be limited, Priority will be given to smaller water systetﬁs. Please c&tnpléfe one form for
ol sonwhowill attend. You can also reglster online at www.rcacorg under Trainlngs and Events.

Vame:

mall; {All notifecations regarding workshop changes are made via email)
Jompany or Water System:

referred phone: OWork  ClHomeor L3 Mobile:  ( ) Preferred mailing address: [ Organization or EJ Home:
Vailing address:

Tty: State: Tip:

(ype of Water System: £ Community [ Noa-community €0 Non-community/Non-translent ~ CIN/A

Nater System ID&: Number of connections; Serves lass than 10,000 population: 3 Yes O No

Jperator Certification #(s): O3 Distribution {3 Treatment O Wastewater

SPECIAL NEEDS: If you have special needs addressed by the Americans with DisabllitTes Act, please natify RCAC at (916) 447-9832 ext. 1003 or mayres@rcac.org at least three weeks pilorto
2ach workshop you are attending, so that we may make accommodations for you,

{0VID-19 Response: We are monitoring the situation and will adhere to state and county COVID-19 guidelines/estrictions. All dassroom workshops are subject to change in an effort to
wnsure publicand trainer safety, and to comply with guidelines/restrictions.

%ease reglster me for the following workshop(s):

Online Waorkshops (one-part) Online Workshops (two-part}

01/06/201 I Wam.or 3 2pm. Pathagensin Drinking Water 01/0572021 O Wwam.&2pm. Asset Serles; CGapita) Improvement Plans & Google. ...
01132001 0 Wamor O 2pm. Water Quality Sampling nh20 0 wam.&2pm. Once Mare into the Bleach

01202021 O 0am. Budgeting for Smali Water Systems 012602021 D 10am.&2psm. Budgeting Analysts & Rate Setting

012072021 0O 2p.m. Customer Communications & Transparency 027200 O Wam.&2pm. Distribution System Operation & Maintenance

8 021 Owamor O 2pm. Surface WaterTreatment Rule 02/0272021 O 10am.&2pm. Operations Maintenance Serdes: Matntaining Water. ..
Ohew202l O 6pm, \l:‘.\y\l\ AB54 & AB240 02/03/2021 0O 10a.m.&2pm, Resitiency &Vulnerability Planning

02/09/2021 {1 10am.: Using MHI Data forWater System Management /232021 (3 10am.&2pm. Drought Contingency Planning and Water Loss
02/09/2021 O 2pm. CGapadity Building Through Partnerships 022472021 3 10a,m.&2pm. Asset Management & Capital improvement Planning
02/10/2021 O 10am.or O 2pm. Pumps, Motors & Energy Efficiency 03/03/2011 €1 10am.&2pm. Pumps & Motors Troubleshooting

02116/2021 1 Wam.or O 2pm. Completing the Electronic Annual Report 03/09/2021 O3 10am.&2pm, The Bullding Blocks of Successful Construction . ..
0217/202¢ O Wam.or O 2pm. Understanding Bacteriologice! Quality Standands 03/102021 D3 10am.&2pm. No Bad Bugs: Protecting Your System from ...
021872021 00 Wam.or O 2pm. Water Distribution Math Techniques 03/1772021 DO 10am.&2pm. Financial Policles & Procedures

03022021 O i0amor O 2pm. Recuitment & Retention 0373172021 OO 10am.&2pm. Groundwater Treatment Techniques

03/16/2021 O t6am.or [ 2pm.  Operations Plans 04/01/2021 O 10am.&2pm. Developing and Keeping Utility Personnel
B3/17/2001 O 10am. ABS4 & AB240 04152021 O 103m.&2pam. Navigating Public Meetings Virtually

03/30/2021 O3 10am.or I 2pm, Compliance Monitoring & Reporting 04/27/200 O 102m.&2pm. How to Prepare for Sanitary Surveys

04/13/2021 [ 10am.or L3 2pm.  RateSetiingfor Small Water Systems 0472872021 [ 102am.&2pm. Baslc Hlectrical Concepts

04142001 O 0am.or B 2pm. CrossConnection Controls 05/11/2021 [ 10am.&2pm. Water Operators & the Capital Improvement Plan
05/04/201 O 6pm. ABS4 & AB240 05/12/2021 O 10am,&2pm. Budgeting Analysis & Rate Setting

05/06/2011 O Wam.or O 2pm. GoSmall and Go Home 05/13200 [1 wa'.m, &2pm, Revised Total Coliform Rule & Level 1 Assessment
05/25/202% 3 Wam.or [ 2pm. Operating During Public Safety Power Shut-off 0527/ O Wam.&2pm, Source Water Protection

05262021 0 10am.or [ 2pm. Consumer Confidence Reporting Compliance 06/08/2021 3 10am.&2p.m. Financial Management & Accounting with QuickBooks
06/02/2021 O 10a.m. Beat the Cyanobacterial Blues 06/09/2021 1 10am.&2pm. Butlding Your Google Earth GIS Mode! & Map
gs/022001 3 2p.m. Water System Baslc Operations w i : AU 3

06157201 O 10am.or O 2pm.  GroundwaterWellswith iran XML AV = . ER
o160 O 10am. Arsesic Rele Compliance a MN§R021 Disinfection ByproductsRule..ceeeeeseiioiaaennnn. oveo. (Atascadero)
06162001 O 2pm. Dealing with Nitrates Contamination O 04/072021  Distiibution System Essentials ............ TR (Atascadero)
= : S O 04202021 Distribution System Repair and Installation Procedures. . {Sacramento Area)
{.‘ : Jusuttlcm ql!_est'ions_orpmﬁlems? (ontactthel’rainingbe’pa_mant: g ::”m:gﬂ mﬂammfnfmmmmwmmgmmmmi

| ‘Emall: registrationgreacory 5 : O 05/05/2021 Uty Bookkeeplng101............... e e (Furtuna)

. Phone: (916) 447-9832 ext. 1429 - Fax: (916) 372-5636 O 05122021  Emergency and Disaster Response Planning.................... {Ei Centro)

- Mall: RCAC- 3120 Freeboard Drive, Sulte 201 - West Sagamento, CA95691 | O 951372021 ProtectingYour ystem: iancilSafeguars............... v« (1 Centro)

| e i SIS b i O osne20n GIAPFal ............. OO DO D eserensess (Napa)




: =

(ou{ o2

Old Business

1.Discussion/Action Item:

NBS Water Rate Study Review and Discussion
(by Board)



(ﬂ/ W

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED
ADJUSTMENTS AND INCREASES TO
CABAZON WATER DISTRICT WATER SERVICE CHARGES

The Cabazon Water District invites the public to attend a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, February 16, 2021, at
6:00 p.m., to consider the adoption of a 5-year schedule of water rates. The public hearing will be held at the District offices
located at 14618 Broadway Street, Cabazon, CA 92230. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider all oral testimony
and written protests to, and the adoption of, the proposed rates. If adopted, the new water rates will go into effect for
services provided on and after March 1, 2021, and will be adjusted each January 1 thereafter beginning January 1, 2022,
and through and including, January 1, 2025.

REASONS FOR THE RATE ADJUSTMENTS AND INCREASES

The District is committed to providing the highest quality water at the lowest possible rates for our customers. To meet this
commitment, over the last five years the District has worked to manage operations and maintenance costs and maintain
lower water rate increases. Despite these efforts, there are costs that continue to increase that cannot be avoided. The District
engaged NBS consultants (NBS) to perform an independent water rate study and evaluate the infrastructure, programs, and
operations and maintenance costs of the District’s water services and the rates necessary to recover the costs of those services

Ofor the next five years. A cost of service and rate study demonstrates what it costs the District to provide water service and
the appropriate rates to fairly and appropriately allocate the costs of providing water to our customers. The cost of providing
water includes not only the water the District pumps, but the infrastructure that treats and delivers the water to ensure that
there is safe and reliable water to meet the demands of all of our water customers twenty-four hours a day, seven days a
week.

Based on NBS’s evaluation, it has been determined that rate adjustments and increases are necessary for the District’s water
service charges to enable the District to:

recover current and long-term projected costs of operating and maintaining the water system;

fund capital infrastructure improvements needed to repair and update the District’s aging water system;
maintain the operational and financial stability of the water utility;

comply with State mandated drinking and groundwater water regulatory requirements; and

avoid operational deficits and depletion of reserves.

PROPOSED RATES AND HOW THE RATES ARE CALCULATED

The proposed rates are calculated to recover the costs of providing water services and to proportionately allocate those costs
on a parcel basis among the District’s customers. The proposed water rate structure has two customer classes—Single
Family Residential (SFR), Non-Single Family Residential (Non-SFR). The District also provides water to one customer
pursuant to a contract. The proposed rate structure has three components—a Service Charge, a Volume Charge, and a Fire
Service Charge. The proposed rates are described in more detail below.

The proposed Service Charge is a fixed monthly charge calculated to recover a portion of the District’s fixed costs, such as
O meter reading, billings and collections. The proposed rates for the Service Charge are established on the basis of the size of
the meter (in inches) serving a property to recover the incremental costs of sizing facilities to sufficiently deliver water to
properties served by larger meters. The Volume Charge is a variable charge imposed per unit of delivered water, with one
unit equal to one hundred cubic feet (HCF), or 748 gallons, and is calculated to recover a portion of the District’s fixed costs

1



Lpg'l w2

and its variable costs of providing water service. The Fire Service Charge is imposed on Single Family Residential, Non-

~, Single Family Residential, or Commercial customers who are required as a condition of extending or initiating water service

/to install a private fire suppression system on their property, or where the customer or property owner has requested the
delivery of water to the property for the purpose of fire service protection. The Fire Service Charge recovers that District’s
fixed costs of operating and maintaining infrastructure for private fire service.

For Single Family Residential customers the current rate structure for the Volume Charge has three tiers which impose
higher rates as the level of consumption increases. Under the proposed rates, for Single Family Residential customers the
Volume Charge will consist of three tiers. The tiers are designed to recover the incremental costs to the District of serving
more water tqQ those who place higher demands and greater burdens on the District’s water system and resources. These
costs include, for example, sizing, operating and maintaining water pipes, reservoirs, pump stations and other related
facilities to meet this additional demand. Due to the varying consumption needs among Non-Single Family Residential
customers and the contract customer, and the relatively small number of these customers, the Volume Charge is a uniform
rate per HCF of water delivered during a billing period.

The amount of the Service Charge and the Fire Service Charge imposed is the same each month. The amount of the Volume
Charge imposed varies each month depending on the number of units of water each customer uses during the billing period.
The current rates and the proposed maximum rates and effective dates for the Service Charges, Fire Service Charges, and
Volume Charges are set forth in the tables below.

CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES FOR MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGE
($'METER SIZE)
Current Proposed Rates and Effective Dates
Rates as of 3/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025
Meter Size 12/1/2020
5/8 inch $68.10 $33.34 $34.35 $35.38 $36.44 $37.53
3/4 inch $98.24 $47.27 $48.69 $50.15 $51.66 $53.21
1 inch $158.51 $75.13 $77.38 $79.71 $82.10 $84.56
1.5 inch $309.21 $144.77 $149.12 $153.59 $158.20 $162.94
2 inch $490.04 $228.35 $235.20 $242.25 $249.52 $257.01
3 inch $972.27 $451.20 $464.74 $478.68 $493.04 $507.84
4 inch $1514.77 $701.92 $722.98 $744.67 $767.01 $790.02
Contract (10 $2233.06 $2300.05 $2369.05 $6,212.13 $6,398.49 $6,590.45
inch)
Construction $286.73 $473.21 $487.41 $502.03 $517.09 $532.61
Meters (3 inch)
CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES FOR MONTHLY FIXED FIRE SERVICE CHARGE ($/METER SIZE)
Proposed Rates and Effective Dates

Meter Size Current Rates 3/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025

4 inch $61.54 $34.05 $35.08 $36.13 $37.21 $38.33

6 inch $130.62 $70.78 $72.91 $75.09 $77.35 $79.67

8 inch $212.11 $119.76 $123.35 $127.05 $130.86 $134.79




O

‘aq/lu’b

CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES FOR MONTHLY COMMODITY CHARGE ($/HCF)

| Customer Proposed Rates and Effective Dates
Class Current Rates 3/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025
Non-SFR $2.96 $6.12 $6.31 $5.06 $5.21 $5.37
Contract $3.83 $3.94 $4.06 N/A N/A N/A
Customer
SFR S0
Current Tiers
Tier 1: 0-7 $1.53 $1.98 $2.03 $2.10 $2.16 $2.22
HCF
Tier 2: 8-14 $3.35 $7.00 $7.21 $7.43 $7.65 $7.88
HCF
Tier 3: 14+ $5.12 $12.84 $13.22 $13.62 $14.03 $14.45
HCF

PUBLIC HEARING AND PROTESTS

Any record owner of a parcel upon which the water service charges are proposed to be imposed and any tenant directly
liable for the payment of water service charges (i.e., a customer of record who is not a property owner) may submit a written
protest to the proposed rate adjustments and increases to the District’s water service charges; however, only one protest will

be counted per identified parcel. Any written protest must: (1) state that the identified property owner or tenant is opposed

to the proposed water rate adjustments and increases; (2) provide the location of the identified parcel (by street address,
assessor’s parcel number, or customer account number); and (3) include the name and signature of the property owner or
tenant submitting the protest. Written protests may be submitted to the Clerk of the Board by mail or in person at 14618 {
Broadway Street, PO Box 297, Cabazon, CA 92230, or at the public hearing (date, time, and location noted above). All
written protests must be received prior to the close of the public comment portion of the public hearing. Any protest
submitted via e-mail or other electronic means will not be accepted as a valid written protest. Please indicate on the outside

of any envelope mailed to the District Attn: Rate Hearing.

The Board of Directors will accept and consider all written protests and will hear and consider all oral comments to the
proposed rate adjustments and increases at the public hearing. Oral comments at the public hearing will not qualify as formal
protests unless accompanied by a written protest. Upon the conclusion of the public hearing, the Board of Directors will
consider adoption of the proposed rate increases as described in this notice. If written protests against the proposed rates are
not presented by a majority of the property owners or tenants of the identified parcels subject to the proposed rate increases,
the Board of Directors will be authorized to adopt the rate increases.



Lo a@ﬁﬁa pu
ﬁm&é @ﬁ#g

;u,, _

>_03m aley J91epn g
1214151Q 1918\ Uozeqe) |

‘Aee 1}
n ]
L L]

|
!

. 0202 ‘ST 419quiaydas
6::85 s,410123.1@ jo pibog




"l(‘ LT

N

$ O A

Apnis 93y ayl
JO MIIAIBAQ




-n—‘ "o ?

SISKTYNV!
DINYAs €
-10-150

NVY1d —\
TVIONVNIS

Apnjs a1ey e jo squsauodwo)




"»5) W

ue|d |eloueul




""“*l (LT

Cetathryy AR
B A

e BB 1 1

Ry “ il i &» b

e e e

saijlolild Suipung uejd |eldueuly




-;S/ fol

0€ aunf Suipug Jea) jedsiy

§20¢C {4V A €0t [4dsT4 10z 020¢
HNO'S

sajey Buisixg 1opun saNUAASY emmm

HN TS
sasuadx3 N30 I
NS

IN9'S

N 8'$

suonesiqo jenuuy

INO'TS

BN ZTTS

A 7'TS

N9 TS

TN 8°TS

ddueuajulelp @ suonesado |




'7(p( wl

=

'£2/9202 Ul ¥S/‘STS S ubo] YMQ 40f Juawdnd [pul4 ‘T

leuonen

€0L‘88S £7/270T A4 YSnouyl 15114 UOIZ

Junowly awel4 awi] 19°a
lenuuy

3JIAI3S 1gaQ




0€ sunr 8uipu3 Jeap jessid
S20T yaot €202 [44074

sajey SuIISIg J3pUN SANUIASY emmm

sasuadx3 B0 mm
8BS 3qeq

0202
- INO'S
- INTS
- A B'S
>
- IN9'S =
c
[
o)
- INS'S -
(-]
[-]
[~ 4
(=]
- INO'TS @
- INT'TS
N ¥'T$
[N 9'TS
IIN 8°T$

9JIAISS 10o(

il S ST

T

T

-

R Vs

AR

B R




'ﬂZJlua-

%4

"(xapuj uonnjful 3s0) UOINIISUO) YNT 42d) sa3DWISa 1502 [DUIBLIO 0} palddp 10aA 1ad 9%g fo uonolful sapnjoul ‘T

0TS‘ZZ S |SS8TT S |8TZ'Te $ |0S9'S9E $ | 000°0TS S 51500 wei3oid did :|eiol
3 3 2 00SYST & qeyay 1|ne/ eluog
# ] } : 000°S/ Jojesauasd s|qepod 1oy
GM '3 T O3 XOg J2SUB] 3 UOI}IBUUO)
i z - = 000°0ST qeyay T#quel
3 3 - = 000017 qeyay T# TT2M uononpold
3 3 - 0ST'80T ) Yonay Aijian 221M9S
y P - 006°0¢ ) aqu] Aq pax207 pue uoidas Yyaelaqg
0TS'Ct GS8TC 8TT'TC 009°0¢ 000°0¢ sjuswade|day J213|N Ja1eM
3 K i 5 000°ST 3 9]241D 1€ uelpAH ali4 21820|9Y
S S S |00STS $|0000C S (sidwj-asnoyad|) Auadold 133435 ule

€20¢ 7 [441]4 _ 120¢ 7

uoiydiidsaqg 3a3loag

wes3o04d juawanosduw| jejide)




“I“/ w7

saley Buiysixg Jopun senuandem=m
sasuadx3 B0 I

CRITEC AR B ] |

spefouqd [ended ==

0€ aunr Sujpu3 Jeap jersid

€e0e

[4derd

T20¢

ococ

- INO'S

N S'S

- INO'TS

N 0TS

N S'Z8

suonesijqo jenuuy

weis0.id juswanoidwj jeyide)

2

|
!




2o ke

L

SlosSe 1aU JO 9%9

e

e

Juswade|day
3 qeyay |ende)d

SPUn{ 9Al19SaY




8'} 12

,_R.N_‘

0€ 2unf Suipu3 Jeap [edsty
S20¢ ¥20¢ €¢0¢ (44114 10z 070t

souejeg 1981e) [BAP] e

3duejeq aA19saY 19518  WNWIUIA s
Jsuejeg yseD Suipu3l IR

- HNO'S

N S'S

9AI353Y 193Q pariisey =]

- NN 0TS

N S'TS

N 0TS

A S°2S

sajey paisnlpy Japun

}934e] 9AI9S3Y °"SA dduejeg yse) pajrafoid




_'3_[

0€ aunf Suipu3 Jeaj jeosi4
14 202 €20T zeot

sajey paisnipy Jopun sanuaAdY e e e
sajey Buj3sixg Japun SBNUBASY emmmme
sasuadx3y 30 I

NS Iqeq T

syafold [eyded =3

N O'S

N S'S

NN 0TS

N S'TS

N 0'CS

N S°TS

suonesijqo jenuuy

e —

9NU3aA3Y djey 0] saudawisnipy pajdafoid

o

o




17

3’»‘;‘ ez

SiISAjeuy 92IAI3S JO 1S0)




2;4/ L2~

51500 - 2500 $150)
Uo130930.1d |
Allpowiwies : ________mg_.“____ Jawolisn)

(I

Sjuawalinbay aNUIAY

uollesijisse|) pue uoljezijeuoidung

. B,
N { .
o S —



35, AP’

91

-

m_._m:m

$350) Alipowwo)

mumou EESm:u

%Y TT
%0'S

- -
93ejuadiad

Alogaje) u

'1U0J ‘UoI1eII}ISSE|) puUe uoljezijeuoidouny |

...__.__




sw{l‘w’lx

'Ll

UuoI12NJ31su0)

10eJ4iuo)d

Y4S-UON/|eldiawwo)

(44S) |ennuapisay Ajiwed a|3uls

— N o<

sasse|) Jawolisn)

& D © D &



8‘!{ ez

8l

usisaqg a1ey




g2

6l

paJal] pue wuiosiun/ield

- AupedeyainespAH 919N

S ©1eY

9|gell m>\_umx_n_ IAlleUlal|V €

}0e1U0) 3 UOIIdNIISUOD
e PR Sl

3013SIq 1938/
uozeqe) .10} siseg

34n32n0S kY 3|qelien

34n30n1S 318y paxid

|
|
|
|

sasdiey) a|qeldepn
"SA paxid4 Jo uoiedlo||y

__

sasse|) 4J9woisn) Jo #

sjusuodwo) udisaqg aiey

sjuauodwo) usdisag a23ey




6‘1‘ lu?

0SC9TY'T S | | 0ST9TY'T § | | 0sz'9tv'T ¢ Juswalinbay anuanay 19N

91’60 S 9/T'e0C S 9/T‘s0Cc S sajey uum._u:ou WoJy INUBAIY

%00T | PLO'ETC'T S|  %00T | vLOETZT S %00T | vLof€rT’T S| ~ leaog

%v°0 €60°S S %v°0 €60°S S %v°0 €60°S S $150) pajeay - uoi1a330.d 3Ji4

%0°S 98€'09 S %0°S 98€'09 S %0°S 98€'09 S $1S0) paje|ay - Jawoisn)

%9vZ | €vv'86C S %9°'VE osL'6ly S %9'vy LSO'TYS S EILHEE)

ﬂmou palejay - Ayoede)

595 ” o A ; 2 (s4eysouawinion)

% G9€'685s S %9°'8€ 850897 $ %9°82 TGL9vE S e (SR - TR

%v're | 98L%6SC S %v'IC 98.°65C m Sv.ﬁm mmn.mmN m $350D paiejay - Aupowwo)
ajqeueA %0L / PaXId %0E | EIELENAL A A2

(TZ-0202) sauawasinbay

anuan3ay 13N paisnipy

J 2A1DUIBYY IIDY

(T¢-020¢) siuswaiinbay
3aNUaASY 19N Paisnipy.

341D UI Y IINY.

ug

g._guaz

Ai1o3a1e)
|[euolldung




GID/ N PLe P

e

mﬂ % l i mﬁ

uollodnidisuo)

wJaoiun / 44S-UON / |e1djawwio)

2 Ec ol n,_ | e _

it ) wm-ﬂ_.-_ : i
E4fi e ﬂu_;_I -

aley d|qelien sse|) Jawolisn)
ajey a|geliep




ﬁ ¢é :
|
8T'TIS S6°0TS €9°0TS ZE01S 20°01S TT'ss PYHT €9l
(4740 €C'9S S0'9$ L8'SS 0L'SS GE'ES PYPY1-8 ¢J9ll
s 9T°es oT'es €0°CS 86'TS €S'TS PYL-0 TJ91L
yeaig pasodoid
((stawoisn) Y4S) ey pasail
V/N V/N V/N 90'vS ¥6°€S €8°€S aley peqjuo)
L8'YS ELVS 6S'1S 0T'sS S0°SS 96'CS (UoiIdNIISUOD + Y4S-UON) B1eY WIoHUN
:pawnsuo) 131\ JO Yy Jad ajey
E R ] T S O M e e s TR AT T WP Caa, (ot L . $2 k,‘.m \mw ﬂ. DOWILO) _
 BLVETS | O98'0ETS | SOLZIS | SE€CiS | O9L6IIS IHEizs [ 7T T, ¥ Umie s suouigs |
L9'6LS QE'LLS 60'SLS 16°2LS 8L'0LS 79°0€TS Yyouig
£€°8€S TC°LES €T'9€S 80°'SES S0'vES ¥5°T9S Yyouly
:sa8iey) a21A9s a4 Ajyjuopy
89°LL9S 98°/59S 69°8€95 60°0795 €0°7095 €/'98CS (Yyout g) s1233\ UOIPNIISUO)
0€'€61'8S 76°SvT'8s S/'S00'8S S0'69€°CS S0°00€CS 90°€€T‘cS (yau1 0T) PVEIUOD
SS'9T0TS ¥6°9865 61'8965 62°0€6S 6T°€06S LLYVTSTS Yyaui v
187995 08°€€9S v€°qT9S Tr'L6SS 70°085S LT'TL6S Yaui e
0S°6T€ES 06°6T€S 85°0TES €9°'TOES SL'T6TS ¥0°06YS Yyoule
ST'80CS 61°20TS 0€'96TS 85°06TS €0°68TS TZ°60€S yaul st
TT'LOTS 60°70TS 90°T0TS 71°86S 97’965 TS°8STS Yulg
08'99S S8'v9S 96°79S €1°195 QE'65S v2°86S Youi /€
69975 €TSS T6'EVS 7 NA) (0720872 01°89S Youi g/
mmmgm:u wu_?_mm _umx_n_ >_fco_>_

s3iey pasodoid

22/120C A

T2/020Z A4

saiey
ua.n)

3|NPIYIS 31y J91E/MN

saley pasodoid

| (a19e11en %0S / PaxId %0S)




6L VETS
L9°6LS
€£'8e$

19°2€SS

20°06L$
¥8°£0SS
10°4STS
¥6°791S
99'v8S
TT'€SS
€9LES

S°065°9S

98'0€TS
GELLS
TT°LES

60°LTSS
6t7'86£9S
10°£9LS
v0°€6vS
[A)< 74
0Z'8STS
0T°¢8S
99'1SS
v'9€S

60°SLS
€T9€S

€0°20SS
€T°TIC9S
L9VYLS
89'8LYS
STTwes
6SESTS
TL'6LS
S1°0SS
8€°GES

S0/TTS

GE'ECTS
16'2LS
80°'SES

Tv'L8VS
S0°69€°CS
86°CCLS
vL YIS
0T'SETS
[AN745
8E€'LLS
69°87S
SEVES

'9/°6TTS
8/°0LS
SOvES

TTELYS
S0°00€CS
26'10LS
0T'1SYS
9E'8TTS
LLYYTS
€T°SLS
LTLYS
veeesS

ec
St TS €0VTS 79°ETS CTETS ¥8°C1S (455 PY+rT €491l
88/S S9°/LS EvLS TTLS 00°LS GE'ES PYYT-8 ¢ 4911
zees o91°es otes €0°CS 86°TS €S°TS PY L0 T491L
yealg pasodoid

:(s1wo1sn) Y4S) a1ey pasall

V/N V/N V/N 20°1S v6°€S €8°€S aley Joeqjuo)

LE'SS TC'SS 90°sS TE'9S T9s 96°CS (uonPNIISUO) + Y4S-UON) d3eY WIoIUN

AR ARES
29°05TS
¥5'19$

€£'982S
90°€€T TS
LLYTSTS
LTTL6S
¥0'061S
TT'60€S
19°8STS
v2°86S
01'89$

ST/PT0T A4 | UT/€20T Ad | €2/T20C A4 | T2/TTZOT A4 | TZ/0Z0Z A4 . S91ey

sajey pasodoid

ua4n)

Ipawinsuo) 193e A O Joy 1ad ajey
i sabiby) Ajipowitio)
yurg
yauig
yaulyp
:s984ey) 92198 3414 Ajyluowy
(youi g) sa@19\ UONINIISUO)
(you10T) R1UOD
yaul ¢
yaul e
yaui g
Yaul g
yuit
YU /g
youi 8/s
:sa8ieyd 321u3s paxi4 A|yruon
CEL [T WENEILTH (ER (]

3|NPaYas aiey 1918\

(319eten %09 / paxid %0v) — Sajey pasodold




-

‘I%‘ JL

ﬁ ve
|
79°LTS TTLTS 19°91S ¢T91S S9°STS (4% PY+HT €d2iL
GE'6S 80°6S 188 89’8 1€°8S SE'ES PYYI-8 ¢4l
A4 A4S (1] r4Y €0°CS 86'TS €S°TS PYL0 TJ31L
yeaig posodoid
{(stowolsn) Y4S) a1ey pasaill
V/N V/N V/N 90'vS ¥6°€S £€8°'¢S 931ty pesjuo)
L8°SS 69°SS €5°9S 17°LS (rAVAS 96°CS (uonPNIISUO) + Y4S-UON) a1eY WoHIUN
:pawnsuo) 1312\ 0 Joy sad aey
sabiny) Ajipowwio)
6L VETS 98°0€TS S0°LZTS GE'ETTS 9/°6TTS TT°212S yaui g
L9°6LS SELLS 60°SLS 16°TLS 8L°0LS 79°0€TS youlg
€€'8ES TT°LES €T°9€S 80°SES SO'ES ¥5°195 yout
:saduey) 221A43S 414 Ajyruopw
€9°/8€S Y€9LES 8E€'GIES €L VSES (07874743 €£'98CS (Youi €) s12313|\ UOIPNIISUO)
09°/89VS LO'TSS VS TS 8TV VS S0°69€ TS S0°00€ ‘TS 90°€€C TS (you1 0T) PeENUO)
6°€95S 80°L¥SS YT TESS L9°STSS S9°00SS$ LLYTISTS Yyauiy
98°79¢S 6C°CSES €0°TvES 90°CEES 6€°CCES LT°TL6S yaur g
S V8TS AATAN T6°ELTS 98°89TS ¥6°€9TS v0°061S yauleg
¥9°L11S TTYITS 68°0TTS 99°L0TS 7S01S TT'60€S Youl st
16°T9S 0T"095 GE'8SS §9°95S 00°SSS TS°8STS Yyouit
79°68S 9°8¢S YE'LES ST'9ES 0C'SES ¥2°'86S Your v/e
Ly'8eS ¥9°LTS €8'9CS S0'9¢S 62°'SCS 01°'89% Youi 8/g
:s981ey) 201G paxi4 Ajyiuon
sabipy) 1233\ paxid

SC/VC0T A4 | vZ/€e0Z A3 | €2/2e0CZ A4 | ¢2/T20C A4 | T2/0202 Ad

s3jey pasodoud

sajey
juaLN)

3|npayds aiey 131e

(d1qelien %0L / paxid %0€) — Sajey pasododd

o




IS EVPTS
ze'ooz'ts
. Z1'L56S | AR e B 20
85°ThSS
LT'TS0'TS
oc'6.3S
75'90L5
8SVIYS |
18'099%
6€'855S [0
96'SStS |
85'987$
€LLYES
19'T0ES |
05'55ZS |
8T'¥8TS

6T°T6TS
€TELTS B |
9z'ssIs |
86'ZETS |
6'TITS
€0'607$ [
ST'SOTS |
8€°£0T$
96'88%
61'685 [l
wess |
16865 @

SECLs
81's.$ [
z0'8L$ [
TZi26s [0l
€L'SSS
81'19$
7999%
15°58$ |
STLES
0zT'Sv$
ST'ESS
8TLLS

Average
Summer

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)

e
9
c

S 9
2 £
A -
(48]

a X
E WV
O
O o
—d
= (T
0o o
—

T
b=
C o
= o
=
-gn:
o 3
1ol
v C
v o
e =
S
O

SFR Bill - Alt C (30F/70V)

| SFR Bill - Current
m SFR Bill - Alt A (SOF/SOV)

m SFR Bill - Alt B (40F/60V)

Average
—Winter—
Bill

e Alyauon




A

——

-
Q
)
:GJ
s €
w Cc
.:U
c <
i3
S &
J ~
~— . (7g)
T

(T
8{:
w O
;0)

(74}
- 0O
T
o O
AT L
Q A
£ g
£ £
UC

(«]
1S
-
=
QO

1'53"17917'['5

[
|
f
|

1 Commercial Bill - Current

@ Commercial Bill - Alt A (50F/50V)
M Commercial Bill - Alt B (40F/60V)
Commercial Bill - Alt C (30F/70V)

$1,400 -

ELILSTTS e
! S8°0S0°7TS
8L'V0T'TS
N 70TS6S

bV

L8'5T6¢

6Si86Y

Teees

S6'vPLS

l'a Ajyauoy

SiSH9!

Summer

L0TZISS

~LOT'8EYS

- LOT'#9E!
$0°5959S ;
bricob BEETTTAS
LOT'062S.
IT'TZYS
SOI0ZESHT =
00'6TES
_06'0EC
GS'LTZES

F//06 TS
8E'ESC J
l2v'zet

STE1ES
CGBLTS |
 62°ebeS

' DS981S
8/'79¢S
LESECSIY
196'20¢S |
| 8L'S9T5 §

Co UblLlS

STV ATS

8% /STS |

8T'9ETS |

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)




of \ur

CO_HQEBm:OU A91E M\

(LC
¢S EVP'TS | LT°2SOTS | T8099S €L LVES 6T 16TS 9|qeleA %0/ / PaXId %0€ - I WV
CE00CTS | 9€°6/8S 6€'89SS T9°TOES €CELTS d|qeleA %09 / Paxid %0 - 94 HV
ZT°'LS6S ¥9790LS 96°SSVS 0S'SS¢CS 9¢'SSTS 9|qeueA %0S / Paxid %0S - V HY
89°TYSS 8SVIvS 859°98¢CS 86'CETS juauun)
JAI1BUIDY|Y 91BY
uoizdwnsuo) Jaiepn
¢6°CTTS 96°88S SECLS €.°SSS ST'LES cCTES 9|qeluen %0L / Paxid %0€ - D WV
€0°60TS 6T°68S 8T°9LS 8T'19S 0Z'SYS LT6ES d|qeuen %09 / Paxld %0y - g MV
ST'SOTS r'68S C0'8LS 79'99S Q€SS CELYS 9|qelen %0S / Paxld %0S - V HY
8€'L0TS 16'36S 12°26S 15°98S 8CLLS 69°CLS juaun)

9AI11BUIIY|Y 33eY




“;’h/ e -

TOVIY'TS | 8LVOT'TS | L8VC6S S6'YYLS ¥0°'595S TT'TZYS 9|qeMeA %0L / PaXI4 %0€ - D UV
€L°LST'TS | ¥9'TS6S 69'86LS ¥S'SY9$ 6t'C6YS S0°0LES 3jqenen %09 / paxid %0v - 9 UV
S8'0S0'TS | 67'86LS TE€TL9S CT9vss v6'6THS 00°6TES 9|qeHeA %0S / Paxi4 %0S - V IV

0T°099S 0T'TISS OT'8EYS OT'¥9€S 0T'062S 06'0€CS juauny

uonrdwnsuo) 193epn

3AI1BUIDYY B1eY

uondwnsuo) 133epn

Q9LTES 9T'ETES 8L7T9TS ¢8'06T$ YT EETS 9T'L6S 8C'19S 9|qeHeA %0L / Paxid %0€ - D UV
LY"06TS ¢T8LTS LE'SETS STVLIS LT'STTS 99'v6S S6°€95 9|qeleA %09 / Paxid %0v - 9 UV
8E°€STS 6 EVTS 96°L0TS 8Y'LSTS 0T'LTTS L8165 9]qeleA %05 / Paxid %08 - V IV
rTets 05'98TS 8L'99TS 8T°9€TS 0S°CITS 0L'L6S juain)

3N11EUIBY|Y 31eY

S




a‘g/uu'l/

'6C




‘79/1(,1,_

'0€

|elid3eAl Adejuswadjddng




100/ iLZ

3>

H UoIYelyul 350D |eyide)

%C 9Sea7 JaMmol ||
o — T

%9 uoilejjuj syjauag

UOIIB|JU| 1SOD) |[B43UDND

YIMOeID) JaWoIsnd

sJojoe4 uonepul




Ry

N

wds oS¢ wds gzg Yauj €

wds 00T wds 00T You| S°T

wds ps Yauj T

wd8 os wds Qg Yau| /€

Yaulrg/s

e N




IO’L{ Ll

xs|x'paie|ndiuelN” ZOJDTOD 1Y0OdIYIOVYSN uozeqe) :Sa|l} 324N0S
‘Alyruow s||i1q @MD "6TOZ wody st uondwinsuo) T

%TT V6T U0119NI1SUO)
%E°SC [0S V¥ 10BIUO0D
%E"0C 099°GE |E12J9WIWO0D /Y4S-UON J3Y10
%b°€ES GT6'E6 |lerauspisay Ajiwe4 a|3uls

awinjo/ [e1o]

JO Juddiad

. ($94)

aWIN|oOA

sse|) Jguwiolsn)

sse|) Jawoisn) Aq uonndwnsuo) J3lepn




IO%' 1

ve

XS|X"paroindiubi~Z0IT02  LH40dIHIDYSN U0ZDGD) PUD XSIX'Z0ITOI AHVYWINNS SLIOJV NVYNI4 U0zZ0gDn) :S9|1) 924n0S

"elep 1awo1snd 6T0Z GMD @Yl uo paseq s| erep uondwnsuo) ‘g

‘uondwnsuod sswwns agesane si Yalym oy T 0131asiulod yeasq g 43i)

‘uozeqe) uj uoi3dwNsuod JOOpuU| dFeIBAR 4O 1BWIISS UR ‘UoidwNsSU0D 4a3uIMm aSel1ane 03 313sjulod yealq T 4a1] ']

%O0T | 166 = [ e
%0¢ 6T8°ST -- €401l
%€ 0Ev‘TC PYvI ¢491L
%LS 999‘¢€S PYL T 4911

uondwnsuo)

d4S [e1oL
}0 93ejuad.4ad

,uondwnsuo)y | _juiodseaig

pa1dadx3 Alyauon

191] Aq uondwnsuo)

uondwnsuo) J23epn pa43al] ¥4S




lo‘f/ L1

‘(@19ejiene jou eyep Aep yead) eyep Ajyiuow yead uo paseg T

10304
Mede)
YIUOIN XEIAl

%00T | seree | 899WT | e eto N
%e CC €€'T 126y 60L°C 10B4IUOD
%C'€E 9t 6TL 19T uoI3dNJIISUO)
%L'CC 69°'T ¥€0°S 26T |R10I9WIWO) /Y4S-UON 43410
%6°TS 7T T2¢STT 928°L |lennuapisay Ajiweq aj3uls

. ($y) (324)
asn Ajyauoi | @sn Ajyauo sse|D) 4awo3isn)
yead a3eaany

401084

Alyuon yead

sse|D) Jowolisn) Aq Sunjead




(06( %

Xsix'paie|ndiueN zOJTOD LYOdIYIODYSN uozeqe) :Sa|l} 224N0S
‘Alyruow s[|1g QMD "6T0Z 12qWiadaQ WoJ4 S13UN0) 433N T

 %0'00T [8T6 o koL
%10 T | | ..Um.bcou
%L'0 9 uoI3PNJIISU0)
%G°0 q S1919JA 9DIAISS 2414
%L'S 4s |B1243WWO0)/Y4S-UON 4310
%0'€6 |53 |elluapisay Ajjwe4 9|3uls

jero| ; S4919A
sse|D J2wo3sn)

JO1Uadiad | joJaqunp

sse|) Ag siowiolsn) Jo JaquinN

/

R e TR R TR







tocn
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section 1.  Purpose and Overview Of the StUAY........o.ccueeeeiieireeeriiinereerceisreresesssseesesesessesess 1
AL PUIPOSE ittt ree e s e s sre e s e e s s e e e raesbe s ba e ae e besobesabesnnneesnsesnessassnns 1
B. OVerview Of the STUAY ..ottt s sat et e s b s e 1
Section 2. Water Rate StUAY .......cocviiiiviiinieriiineitecreteirccensieesesssesassssessssssrossassesossssersssonsnsen 4
A. Key Water Rate StUAY ISSUES.......ccceerieerreteiisteirteieeresresneesessessesesesesassetessesseseenssneesens 4
B. FINANCIAI Plan...ciuciceeeienecetee ettt saestnesaeesaees st s s ee s aseseeessnessaaessnsseenssensane 4
C. COSt Of SEIVICE ANAIYSIS ...couirierireriiciecttseet ettt tsan e s e besseeseeneess et et eneeensensesaes 7
D. Rate Design ANAIYSIS ...cccuvveevierieiiiiieritteieee ettt esrssreestssreeesessbesseeneesnessesssanns 14
E. Current and Proposed Water RATES .......ccueveeeveieeiicriie et snecsrecesseeseeseneeeesesessessnnnees 17
F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Water Bills .........ccocuviveerireneiiiieeeeeereseerseesseeens 18
Section3. Recommendations and NEXt STEPS .....ccccviervceeerisnreersrssesseessssssnsssessssssssssssansenses 21
A. Consultant RecOmMmMENdatioNnsS......coceiirieriiiieeiiercrerceeserereeesseeesesreeseesseeeeneesanes 21
B NEXE SEEPS ettt eab et s s sesaeeessanesaresssaneneessesseeeeansneean 21
C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations .........c..eeceevevereeeeeseerereersreessesssesessssnns 21

Appendix: Detailed Water Rate Study Tables and Figures

Wl

—



i D&} el

TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Primary Components 0f @8 RGtE STUAY .....cuivvririniecreitice ettt e e sreste s vessessensessensesseressnaes 1
Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue REQUIFEMENTES ......ccouvveeriieriieriircececeeeeestsse st st veseseseee e eeeeseseseesaens 6
Figure 3. SUMMAry Of RESEIVE FUNTS .....ooviviiciiieiiniceiciee e eae et eeveeeensee s seessesssessesensesseessssssasson 6
Figure 4. Contract Charges and Projected REVENUE ......vcveeiuiirieeiee ettt ceeeseesreeseesesssas s stsssesnesssssesnsssnes 7
Figure 5. Cost ClassifiCation SUMMAIY.......c.ociiveiieininiriieiiee et sreeet e seseesre s e sseessessessesssessessessssssesessssnes 8
Figure 6. Allocation of Water Revenue REQUITEMENTS ........c.c.cvveveiieriviririereeiteseeeeeseseeeeeeseeesessesssesessssesssesseans 9
Figure 7. Water Consumption by CUSTOMET Class .....ccvvveeiriniinieiirente e cce s eeeeeeesss e reesesnessessesssssessssesane 10
Figure 8. Peaking Factors BY CUSTOMET Class.........ccuieeriieevirrirenieiere et seissessetesiereeeseeeseeesssessesasssssesessenseenssans 10
Figure 9. Single-Family Residential Peak Capacity All0CatION FACLOTS.......ovivverieeeeeeeeeeerveeeeeserssessseessreesesesenses 11
Figure 10. Number of Meters By CUSTOMEE Class ......ivvvveciiieieeiiesteeceineeereeeeeeestessesseesessssssesssesessssssssessenes 11
Figure 11. Cost Allocation MethOdOIOBY .......c.cceccieeiiceicit ettt e s e e e st e e e e e e s e seseassans 11
Figure 12. Capacity Related Costs (fixed Share) AHOCEtION ...c..oveceiieieeiceiecct et e ee e e e se e eseees e 12
Figure 13. Customer Related COSt AIIOCAtION ........coiiiiiiiiiii ittt eeeesesteeaeaeesenesssssessssssseesssrssnnes 13
Figure 14. Fire Protection Cost AIIOCAION ......cocvvciiiveiiiiiiiireeiiesesieeee et eveor e seeesseeeesesaesanesnessessssessnensasesmns 13
Figure 15. Commodity Related Costs AHOCALION.........cccvroirierierieeecriee sttt et e eessee s sees e e s esneasseeses 14
Figure 16. Capacity Related Costs (Variahle SHAre) ..........oieeeieiniiii it e e sees e s eneesrsssesesesans 14
Figure 17. Fixed Meter Charges FY 2020/21......ccuiviiiiiiiieeeceiieiereeeeeeeeseeesssesessessssssessesssesssssessssssssssssnssnes 15
Figure 18. Single Family Residential Commodity Related COSES ..uiiviiiriiiiiiiertinereeeeeeesreeereseresessressessessnnes 16
Figure 19. Single Family Residential Capacity Related Costs (variable Share).........c.ccocvvveeeeeereeeecseeeessseenns 16
Figure 20. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2020/21.........ccvuueuviureomeeeeeeesreesssseossesiesssssesessesesssssesssssoe e sses 17
Figure 21. Updated Fee Schedule for CONStruction CUSTOMETS ........c.evveuvvemieieieieeisteeeseeeeeeeeereeeesscssessssreessenns 17
Figure 22. Current and PropoSed Water RS .......c.ccciveviieiiiiireerrerseeseeeseresessesssessesssessssssssessssssesssssssseeseesss 18
Figure 23. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family CUSTOMEIS ....ovevuvvveereeeseeeeeeeeee e eeeesseesesesssseseesssseessesas 19

Figure 24. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial CUStOMETS .....cuveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeseereseeesseesssenes 20



@

|D°l[ et

Section1l. PURPOSE AND OVERVIEW OF THE STUDY

A. Purpose

Cabazon Water District (District, CWD) retained NBS to conduct an update of the 2017 water rate study for
a number of reasons, including meeting revenue requirements and updating the water rate structure. The
rates resulting from this study were developed in a manner that is consistent with industry standard cost of
service principles. In addition to documenting the rate study methodology, this report is provided with the
intent of assisting the District to maintain transparent communications with its residents and businesses.

In developing new water rates, NBS worked cooperatively with District staff and the District’s Board of
Directors (Board) in selecting appropriate rate alternatives. Based on input from District staff and the Board,
the proposed water rates are summarized in this report.

B. Overview of the Study

Comprehensive rate studies such as this one typically include the following three components, as outlined
in Figure 1:

1. Preparation of a Financial Plan, which identifies the net revenue requirements for the utility.

2. Cost of Service Analysis, which determines the cost of providing water service to each customer
class.

3. Rate Design Analysis, which evaluates different rate design alternatives.

Figure 1. Primary Components of a Rate Study

COST-OF-
RATE DESIGN

SERVICE ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS
Compares current sources and Proportionately allocates the Considers what rate structure will
uses of funds and determines the revenue requirements to the best meet the District’s need to
revenue needed from rates and customer classes in compliance collect rate revenue from each
projects rate adjustments. with industry standards and State customer class.

Law.

These steps are intended to follow industry standards and reflect the fundamental principles of cost-of-
service rate making embodied in the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Principles of Water Rates,
Fees, and Charges?, also referred to as the M1 Manual. They also address requirements under Proposition
218 that rates not exceed the cost of providing the service, and that they be proportionate to the cost of
providing service for all customers. In terms of the chronology of the study, these three steps represent the

1 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017.

- Cab Water District
QNBS “Woter Rate Study 3



order they were performed. Detailed tables and figures documenting the development of the proposed
rates are provided in the Appendix.

FINANCIAL PLAN

As a part of this rate study, NBS projected revenues and expenditures on a cash flow basis for the next five
years. The amount of rate revenue required that will allow capital projects to be funded and reserves to be
maintained at the approved levels, is known as the net revenue requirement. Although current rate revenue
covers all the net revenue requirements, rate adjustments -- or more accurately, adjustments in the total
revenue collected from water rates -- are recommended in order to fund planned capital improvement
projects and keep reserve funds at healthy levels. This report presents an overview of the methodologies,
assumptions, and data used, along with the financial plans and proposed rates developed in this study?.

RATE DESIGN ANALYSIS

Rate Design is typically the stage in the study where NBS, staff and the Board must work closely together, to
develop rate alternatives that will meet the District’s objectives. It is important for the District to send
proper price signals to its customers about the actual cost of their water usage. This objective is typically
addressed through both the magnitude of the rates, and the rate structure design. In other words, both the
amount of revenue collected and the way in which the revenue is collected from customers are important
to consider.

Several criteria are typically considered in setting rates and developing sound rate structures. The
fundamentals of this process have been documented in several rate-setting manuals, such as the AWWA
Manual M1. The foundation for evaluating rate structures is generally credited to James C. Bonbright in the
Principles of Public Utility Rates® which outlines pricing policies, theories, and economic concepts along with
various rate designs. The following is a simplified list of the attributes of a sound structure:

e Rates should be easy to understand from the customer’s perspective.

e Rates should be easy to administer from the utility’s perspective.

e Rates should promote the efficient allocation of the resource.

e Rates should be equitable and non-discriminating (that is, cost based).

e There should be continuity in the ratemaking philosophy over time.

e Rates should address other utility policies (for example, encouraging conservation & economic
development).

e Rates should provide month-to-month and year-to-year revenue stability.

The following are the basic rate design criteria that were considered in this study:

Rate Structure Basics —The vast majority of water rate structures contain a fixed or minimum charge in
combination with a volumetric charge. The revenue requirements for each customer class are collected
from both fixed monthly meter charges and variable commodity charges. Based on direction from the Board
of Directors, the rates proposed in this report are designed to collect 40 percent of rate revenue from the
fixed meter charges and 60 percent from the variable commodity charges.

2 The complete financial plan is set forth in the Appendix.
3 James C. Bonbright; Albert L. Danielsen and David R. Kamerschen, Principles of Public Utility Rates, (Arlington, VA: Public Utilities
Report, Inc., Second Edition, 1988), p. 383-384.

& Cab Water District
QNBS “Water Rate Study )



O

]Il lu/q/

Fixed Charges ~ Fixed charges can be called base charges, minimum monthly charges, customer charges,

fixed meter charges, etc. Fixed charges for water utilities typically increase by meter size based on meter
equivalent capacity factors.

Volumetric (Consumption-Based) Charges — In contrast to fixed charges, variable costs such as purchased
water, the cost of electricity used in pumping water, and the cost of chemicals for treatment tend to change
with the quantity of water produced. For a water utility, variable charges are generally based on metered
consumption and charged on a dollar-per-unit cost (for example, per 100 cubic feet, or hcf).

Uniform (Single-Tier) Water Rates — There are significant variations in the basic philosophy of variable
charge rate structure alternatives. Under a uniform (single tier) rate structure, the cost per unit does not
change with consumption, and provides a simple and straightforward approach from the perspective of

customers regarding their understanding of the rates, and for the utility’s administration and billing of the
rates.

Multi-Tiered Water Rates —In contrast to a uniform tier, an inclining block rate structure attempts to send a
price signal to customers that their consumption costs are greater as more water is consumed. Tiered water
rates are intended to represent the higher costs for customers that contribute more to peak summertime

usage and place greater demands on the system. The types of higher costs reflected, for example, in the
highest tier of the rate structure may include:

o Conservation program costs: intended to encourage customers to eliminate inefficient and wasteful
water use, and otherwise reduce consumption during peak periods.

* Replacement Water costs: when consumption exceeds the amount of the District’s allocated water
rights, the agency incurs additional costs for replacement water in order to meet that increased
demand. That replacement water comes at a higher cost.

® Energy costs: during summer months, the District may pay more in electric charges to pump, treat
and deliver water, and have a higher percentage of its energy bill in higher electricity “tiers”.

e Higher maintenance costs: peak periods tend to have higher numbers of service calls, capacity
costs, and system maintenance issues when the water system is running at peak demand.

- Cab Water District
QNBS *Water Rate Study 3



Section2. WATER RATE STUDY

A. Key Water Rate Study Issues
The District’s water rate analysis was undertaken with a few specific objectives, including:

o Avoiding operational deficits and further depletion of reserves.

¢ Generating additional revenue needed to meet projected funding requirements.

e Adjusting the rate structure to collect a greater share of revenue from variable charges and less
revenue from fixed charges.

e Continuing to encourage water conservation with a tiered rate structure.

NBS developed various water rate alternatives as requested by District staff over the course of this study. Ali
rate structure alternatives relied on industry standards and cost-of-service principles. The rate alternative
that will be implemented, is ultimately the decision of the Board. The fixed and volume-based charges were
calculated based on the net revenue requirements, number of customer accounts, water consumption, and
other District-provided information.

B. Financial Plan

It is important for municipal utilities to maintain reasonable reserves in order to handle emergencies, fund
working capital, maintain a good credit rating, and generally follow healthy financial management practices.
Rate adjustments are governed by the need to meet operating and capital costs, maintain adequate debt
coverage, and build reasonable reserve funds. The current state of the District, with regard to these
objectives, is as follows:

¢ Meeting Net Revenue Requirements: For FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25, the projected net
revenue requirement (that is, total annual expenses plus debt service and rate-funded capital costs,
less non-rate revenues) for the District is approximately $1.37 million, annually on average. If no
rate adjustments are implemented, the District is projected to see a $280,000 deficit in fiscal year
2020/21. With 3% increases to the net revenue requirement, the deficit drops to $265,000 for fiscal
year 2020/21.
¢ Building and Maintaining Reserve Funds: Reserve funds provide a basis for a utility to cope with
fiscal emergencies such as revenue shortfalls, asset failure, and natural disasters, among other
events. Reserve policies provide guidelines for sound financial management, with an overall long-
range perspective to maintain financial solvency and mitigate financial risks associated with revenue
instability, volatile capital costs, and emergencies. The District plans to accumulate approximately
$1,500,000 in reserves by the end of FY 2024/25. These reserve funds for the Utility are considered
unrestricted reserves and consist of the foliowing:
¢ The Operating Reserve should equal approximately 180 days of operating expenses, which
is about $707,000 at the end of FY 2024/25. An Operating Reserve is intended to promote
financial viability in the event of any short-term fluctuation in revenues and/or
expenditures. Fluctuations in revenue can be caused by weather patterns, the natural
inflow and outflow of cash during billing cycles, natural variability in demand-based revenue
streams (such as volumetric charges), and — particularly in periods of economic distress —
changes or trends in age of receivables.

g Cab Water District
ONBS " Water Rote Study. ‘



O

i\%‘ 1T

° The Capital Rehabilitation and Replacement Reserve should equal at least 6 percent of net
capital assets, totaling approximately $422,000 in FY 2024/25, which is set aside to address
long-term capital system replacement and rehabilitation needs.

e Funding Capital Improvement Projects: The District must also be able to fund necessary capital
improvements in order to maintain current service levels. District staff has identified roughly
$935,000 (current year dollars) in expected capital expenditures for EY 2020/21 through 2024/25.
With the recommended rate adjustments, these expenditures can be funded.

o Inflation and Growth Projections — Assumptions regarding cost inflation were made in order to
project future revenues and expenses for the study period. The following inflation factors were
used in the analysis:

o No Customer growth is expected over the 5-year rate period.

o Electricity cost inflation is 3.5% annually.

e General cost inflation is 2% annually.

o Salary cost inflation is 3% annually.

¢  Field Salary cost inflation is 2% annually.

o Benefits cost inflation is 6% annually.

e Fuel and Chemicals cost inflation is 3% annually.

e Cell Tower Lease revenue inflation is 2% annually.

e Maintaining Adequate Bond Coverage: The District is required by its bond covenants to maintain a
debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.2. Rate adjustments proposed in this study will allow the
district to continue to exceed this ratio. The benefit of exceeding the minimum debt coverage ratio
is that it strengthens District’s credit rating, which can help lower the interest rates for debt-funded
capital projects in the future.

¢ Impact of Annual Rate Adjustment Date: In the current year, the District will only collect three
months of the planned revenue increase for FY 2020/21 since rate increases will not be effective
until March 1, 2021. However, in future years of the rate plan, the financial plan modeling assumes
that rate adjustments occur starting on the January bill of each year. This means that only six
months of the planned revenue to be collected from the rate adjustment listed for one fiscal year
will be collected in that year. For example, there is a 3 percent adjustment in rate revenue planned
for FY 2020/21; meaning, the rates are developed to recover $1.42 million, which is a 3 percent
adjustment over the expected $1.38 million that would be collected without a rate adjustment.
However, because of the timing for when the rates will go into effect, the Financial Plan results in
$1.39 million in rate revenue for FY 2020/21.

Rate adjustments of 3 percent annually in FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25 will be needed in order to fully
fund all operating expenses, planned capital projects, debt service obligations and build reserves to the
recommended targets by the end of FY 2024/25". Figure 2 summarizes the sources and uses of funds, net
revenue requirements, and the recommended annual percent adjustments in total rate revenue
recommended for the next 5 years for the District.

4 Because of the mid-year adjustment to the rates, the full impact of each year’s adjustment does not affect revenue until the
following year.

- Cab. Water District
QNBS “Weter Rate Study 5



Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue Requirements

Summary of Sources and Uses of Funds
and Net Revenue Requirements
Sources of Water Funds
Rate Revenue Under Prevailing Rates
Additional Revenue from Rate Increases 4
Non-Rate Revenues
Interest Earnings
Total Sources of Funds
Uses of Water Funds
Operating Expenses
Debt Service
Rate-Funded Capital Expenses

5-Year.Prop 218 Rate Period

uq( e

FY.2020/21 | EY,2021/22"| FY.2022/23 | FY.2023/24 | FY.2024/25
$ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000
13,750 62,494 105,619 150,037 195,788
240,500 255,800 257,200 258,600 263,600
19,600 19,600 19,600 19,600 19,600

$ 1,648,850 | $1,712,894 | $ 1,757,419 | $ 1,803,237 | $ 1,853,988
$ 1,310,100 | $ 1,368,100 | $ 1,384,600 | $ 1,384,000 | $ 1,413,700
137,394 137,394 137,394 48,739 48,691
467,004 365,650 21,218 9,955 =

$ 1, 914 498

$ 1, 871 144

Cumulat/ve Rate Increases j _ 3. 00% 6.09%

| Surplus {Deflmancyl before Rate nc

$ 1,543, 212

$ 1,442,693

$ 1,462,391

12.55% 15.93%

]s {279398)15 {220744]|$ 108,588]5 210,507, |'$1 195,809

1. Revenue from rate increases assume an lmplementatmn date of March 1, 2021 and then January 1st, 2022 through 2025.
2. Total Use of Funds less non-rate revenues and interest earnings. This is the annual amount needed from water rates.

Figure 3 summarizes the projected reserve fund balances and reserve targets. A summary of the District’s
proposed 5-year financial plan is included in Tables 1 and 2 of the Appendix. The appendix tables include
revenue requirements, reserve funds, revenue sources, proposed rate adjustments, and the District’s
capital improvement program. As can be seen in Figure 3, given proposed rate adjustments, reserves meet

the minimum target by FY 2023/24.

Figure 3. Summary of Reserve Funds

Beginning Reserve Fund Balances and

5-Year Prop 218 Rate Period

Recommended Reserve Targets FY2020/21 | EY.2021/22 | FY 2022/23 | FY.2023/24 | FY.2024/25
Operating Reserve
Ending Balance S 334352 |S$ 176,101 ]S 390,307 | $ 692,000 | $ 706,850
Recommended Minimum Target 458,535 684,050 692,300 692,000 706,850
Capital Rehabilitation & Replacement Reserve
Ending Balance S 443,800 |$ 443,800|S 443,800 S 490,751 | S 844,988
Recommended Minimum Target 443,800 453,300 442,400 431,900 421,800
Debt Reserve
Ending Balance $ 60928|S 60928($ 60928|5 60928|% 60,928
Recommended Mm/mum Target A

CONTRACT CUSTOMER CHARGES

In January of 2012, the District entered into a contract agreement which set the initial rates and defined the
methodology of future rate adjustments for the Desert Hills Premium Outlets (DHPO). As defined by the

QNBS

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study



O

O

NSl 1Lt

terms of the contract, rates can only be adjusted by increasing the current rates {both the fixed meter
charge and usage rate) by the percentage adjustment imposed on residential and commercial customers?®.
To account for this restriction, the revenue projected from the contract customer through FY 2021/22 is
calculated and netted from the cost of service analysis. The contracted rates end December 31,2022, in
which this customer will switch to the commercial 10-inch meter rates. The calculation through FY 2021/22

is shown in Figure 4. The rates for the 10-inch meter past FY 2021/22 will be shown in later sections of this
report.

Figure 4. Contract Charges and Projected Revenue

Current ' Prdpdsed Rates

Contract
o2 FY.2019/20 |IEY,2020/21 | FY.2021/22
[1) [+)

Projected (ncrease.in Rate Revenue.per FinancialPlan:

Fixed Rate $2,233.06 $2,300.05 $2,369.05
Variable Rate $3 83 $3.94 $4.06
Estimated Consumption (hef) |7 Ta4s07| " aaso| T aasor
Estimated Fixed Revenue $ 26797 S 27601($ 28,429
Estimated Variable Revenue 170,462 175,576 180,843

|18 197,2591|'$ 203,176 | $1 12092721

Remaining Rate Revenue. | _ *|817177,7411[/$1,213/074 | 1,249,466 |
1. Current rates found in source fi le 10 Cabazon Water Dlstrlct Water Rate Study (4.13.17) Final.pdf, Page 50.

Contract rates end December 31, 2022 in which this customer then switches to 10 inch billing for commercial users.

Estimated Rate” Revenue froin CQntracg_C_pstomér

C. Cost of Service Analysis

Once the net revenue requirements are determined, the cost of service analysis proportionately distributes
the revenue requirementsto each customer class. The cost of service analysis consists of two major
components: (1) the classification of expenses, and (2) the allocation of costs to customer classes. Costs
were classified corresponding to the function they serve. All costs in the District’s budget are allocated to
each component of the rate structure in proportion to the level of service required by customers. The levels
of service are related to volumes of peak and non-peak demand, infrastructure capacity, and customer
service. These are based on allocation factors, such as water consumption, peaking factors, and number of
accounts by meter size. Ultimately, a cost-of-service analysis is intended to result in rates that are
proportional to the cost of providing service to each customer.

CLASSIFICATION OF COSTS

Most costs are not typically allocated 100 percent to fixed or variable categories and, therefore, are
allocated to multiple functions of water service. Costs were classified using the commodity-demand method
which is found in the AWWA M1 Manual®. in accordance with this method, budgeted costs were “classified”
into four categories: commodity, capacity, customer and fire protection. The classification process provides

5 Per Section 5c(i} and (ii).

§ Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017, p. 83.

- Cab Water District
QNBS “Water Rate Study ,



O

uLo( | (e~

the basis for allocating costs to various customer classes based on the cost causation (classification)
components described below:

s Commodity related costs are those that change as the volume of water produced and delivered
changes. These commonly include the costs of chemicals used in the treatment process, energy
related to pumping for transmission and distribution, and source of supply.

o Capacity related costs are associated with sizing facilities to meet the maximum, or peak demand.
This includes both operating costs and capital infrastructure costs incurred to accommodate peak
system capacity events.

o Customer related costs are associated with having a customer on the water system, such as meter
reading, postage and billing.

o Fire Protection related costs are associated with providing sufficient capacity in the system for fire
meters and other operations and maintenance costs of providing water to properties for private fire
service protection.

The District’s budgeted costs were reviewed and allocated to these cost causation components which are
used as the basis for establishing new water rates and translate to fixed and variable charges. Tables 16
through 20 in the Appendix show how the District’s expenses were classified and allocated to these cost
causation components. Additionally, each cost causation component is considered fixed or variable, as
summarized in Figure 5.

Figure 5. Cost Classification Summary

Revenue Requirements

=

S

Variable Costs

Commodity Costs

Ideally, utilities should recover all of their fixed costs from fixed charges and all of their variable costs from
volumetric charges. When this is the case, fluctuations in water sales revenues would be directly offset by
reductions or increases in variable expenses. When rates are set in this manner, they provide greater
revenue stability for the utility. However, other factors are often considered when designing water rates
such as community values, water conservation goals, ease of understanding, and ease of administration.

Based on the District’s projected costs, the Cost of Service Analysis (COSA) resulted in a distribution that is
approximately 79 percent fixed and 21 percent variable. The District’s current rate structure collects
approximately 64 percent of revenue from fixed charges and 36 percent from variable charges. The Board of
Directors has chosen to move forward with a rate structure that will collect approximately 40 percent of
revenue from fixed charges and 60 percent from variable rates. However, a share of the District’s capacity
costs will need to be collected from the variable rates in order to reach this rate structure. Thus, capacity
related costs (which are normally considered fixed) will be collected from both fixed and variable rates.

Figure 6 summarizes the allocation of the net revenue requirements to each cost causation component. The
projected revenue from the contract customer, as shown in Figure 4, is included Figure 6.

: Cab Water District
ONBS *Water Rate Study | 2



Figure 6. Allocation of Water Revenue Requirements

COSA Results
Functional Unadjusted Net Revenue

Category Requirements (2020-21)
79% Fixed [/ 21% Variable
|'s 200786 | 21.4%

' Commodity - d Ca
Capacity - Related Costs
- (volumetric share)
Capacity - Related Costs
{fixed share) _
Customer - Related Costs S 60,386 5.0% S 60,386 5,0%
S 5,093 .4 5
S11213,0741[ 100

3 : 0.0% |S 468058 386%

S 887,808 73.2% $ 419,750 34.6%

_ 203,176 $ 203,176
Net Revenue Requirement |'sT1}416,250 $1,416,250|

CUSTOMER CLASSES

Customer classes are determined by combining customers with similar demand characteristics, types of use
and, in this case, the constraints of a contract into categories that reflect the cost differentials to serve each
type of customer. This process is limited by the desire to not overcomplicate the District’s rate structure.

For Cabazon Water District, four customer classes were analyzed: single-family residential, non-single family
residential’, private fire and the contract customer8. All non-SER customers (excluding the contract
customer) were placed in one customer class because these customers include a wide range of usage
characteristics:

1. They are using more water on average per account.

2. They generally have higher peaking factors than single-family residential users.

3. Their water usage varies greatly among these customers based on the specific type of customer and
meter size.

4. There are an insufficient number of customers of each specific type to determine general class
characteristics.

The amount of consumption, the peaking factors and the number of meters by size are used in the cost-of-
service analysis to allocate costs to customer classes and determine the appropriate rate structures for
each. The District’s most recent consumption is summarized in Figure 7, peaking factors in Figure 8 and
Figure 9, and number of customers by customer class is shown in Figure 10.

Commodity related costs are costs associated with the total annual consumption of water by customer
class, as shown in Figure 7.

7 Non-5FR class consists of multi-family, government, commercial, construction, industrial and irrigation customers.
8 The development of rates for the contract customer is described in Section 2-B of this report.

- Cab Water District
QNBS *Water Rate Study :



Figure 7. Water Consumption by Customer Class

Percent of
Total Volume

Customer Class

Single Family Residential
Non-SFR

Government Meters
Commercial Meters
Industrial Meters
Irrigation Meters

Fire Service Meters

Construction

et

e AzTs09

Contract 44,507
1. Consumption is from 2019. CWD bills monthly.

B [T

Peaking factors for each customer class are shown in Figure 8. A “peaking factor” is the relationship of each
customer class’ average water use to peak (generally summer) water use.

Figure 8. Peaking Factors by Customer Class

AVErage | peak Monthly | peak Monthiy | Miax Month
Customer Class Monthly Use 0l Capacity
(hcf) pec(hict) Factor Factor
O Single Family Residential 7,826 11,521 1.47 66.7%
Multi-Family Residential 112 158 1.42 0.9%
Government Meters 183 320| 174 1.9%
Commercial Meters 964 1,209 1.25 7.0%
Industrial Meters 0 0 N/A 0.0%
Irrigation Meters 1,711 3,338 1.95 . 19.3%
Fire Service Meters 2 9 3.86 0.1%

1. Based on peak monthly data (peak day data not available).

Additional capacity factors within the single-family residential class are shown in Figure 9. The “additional
capacity factor” represents the cumulative peak consumption in each tier. No additional capacity factor is
assigned to Tier 1 water use, as this represents a base level of consumption by customers in the lowest tier,
therefore no additional capacity costs would be incurred if all customers stayed within the Tier 1 threshold.

< Cab Water District
QNBS *Water Rate Study 10



v 0 ptio O R
~ > 0 D O
Tier 1 7 hcf 53,666 57%
Tier 2 14 hcf 21,430 23%
Tier 3 - 18,819 20%
T o | S | B 030150 | R L0

1 Tier1 reak point set to average winter consumption, an estimate of average indoor
water consumption in Cabazon. The Tier 2 break point is set to 14 hcf which is average
summer consumption.

2. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data.

The number of customers for each customer class (also known as customer allocation factors) is shown in

Figure 10.
Figure 10. Number of Meters by Customer Class
Number of Percent of
Customer Class i
Meters Total
Single Family Residential 854 93.0% (
Private Fire 5 0.5%
AII Other Meters 59 6.4%
: _Total S e PR 100.0%
Cr 1. Meter Count for December 2019. CWD bills monthly.

COSTS ALLOCATED TO CUSTOMER CLASSES

Costs are allocated to each customer class based on the customer characteristics of each class in order to
reflect the cost differentials to serve each type of customer. Figure 11 summarizes how the costs for each
cost causation component from Figure 6 are allocated to each customer class.

Figure 11. Cost Allocation Methodology

sAllocated based on the total number of meters! |

: sAllocated based on the hydraulic c_apacit_y of fire meters'_

I

Commoadity. : e A SR S s
R:[a?e?i Co-"'\;'t' *Allocated based on water consumption by customerclass |

AL S LS e A 2

dokJeda bR e st D o L

CapacityjRelatediCosts sAliocated based on peak consumption by customer class

O (volumetric'share) R R S SR R R e
G Cabazon Water District
@ NBS Water Rate Study 11




iw‘ 12—

The costs allocated to each causation component are assigned to each customer class using the cost
allocation methodology described in Figure 11. This process is shown in the following sections, in Figure 12
through Figure 16.

Capacity Related Costs

The capacity related costs (fixed share) allocation is summarized in Figure 12. Capacity related costs are
those costs associated with constructing and operating the water system to ensure there is enough capacity
in the system to meet the demand of each meter connected. Larger meters have the potential to use more
of the system’s capacity, compared to smaller meters. The potential capacity demanded is proportional to
the maximum safe meter capacity each meter size as established by the AWWA?. The meter capacity factors
used in this study are shown in the second column of Figure 12.

A “hydraulic capacity factor” {column a in Figure 12) is calculated by dividing the maximum capacity or flow
of large meters by the capacity of the base meter size, which is typically the most common residential meter
size (in this case a 5/8-inch meter). For example, Figure 12 shows the hydraulic capacity of a two-inch meter
is 8 times that of a 5/8-inch meter and therefore, the capacity component of the fixed meter charge is 8
times that of the 5/8-inch meter.

The actual number of meters by size (column b in Figure 12) is multiplied by the corresponding capacity

ratios to calculate the total number of equivalent meters (column c in Figure 12). The number of equivalent

meters is used as a representation for the potential demand that each customer can place on the water

system and the percentage of capacity related costs (fixed share) distributed to each meter size by the
O Percent of Total Hydraulic Capacity.

Figure 12. Capacity Related Costs (fixed share) Allocation

VMieter Hydraulic Total R
i : = Number of 2 Total Allocated
Meter Size Capacity Capacity Equivalent <
1 Meters Hydraulic Costs
{gpm] Factor Meters
Capamty
Standard Meters
5/8inch 20 845 845 67% $282,473
3/4inch 30 21 32 3% $10,530
1inch 50 13 33 3% $10,864
1.5inch 100 5 25 2% $8,357
2inch 160 17 136 11% $45,463
3inch 320 10 160 13% $53,486
4 inch 500 1 ) 25 2% $8,357
- e et . 498 . 100% || $419,531 |

1. Perthe Prlncnples of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1 AWWA, 7th edition, 2017, page 338.

O

9 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017, p. 338.

y Cab Water District 1
ONBS " Water Rate Study 1



\7-‘/”47/

Customer Related Costs

The customer related cost allocation is summarized in Figure 13. Customer related costs are comprised of
those costs relating to reading and maintaining meters, customer billing and collection, and other customer
service related costs. The customer service costs do not differ among the various meter sizes; therefore, these
costs are spread equally among all meters. Each customer class is allocated customer related costs based
upon the percentage of total meters that are in that class.

Figure 13. Customer Related Cost Aliocation

Number of |\Percent of || Allocated

Customer Class
Meters' = Total Costs

Standard Meters
5/8 inch 845 92.1% $55,645
3/4 inch 21 2.3% $1,383
linch 13 1.4% $856
1.5inch 5 0.5% $329
2 inch 17 1.9% $1,119
3inch 10 1.1% $659 {
4inch 1 0.1% $66
Fire Protection

C '_ 6 inch 3| 03% $198

- 8 inch 2 0.2% $132

Total _|' e17| 100% | 60386

1. Meter Count as of December 2019.
Fire Protection Related Costs

The fire protection cost allocation is summarized in Figure 14. Only Fire Protection meters are allocated this
cost component. A direct allocation is made in the functionalization and classification step in the cost of
service analysis to represent their share of system capacity and other related operations and maintenance
costs. This cost is spread over the fire meters using the same methodology as used in Figure 12.

Figure 14. Fire Protection Cost Allocation

7 Percent of
Meter Hydraulic el Total Total Allocated
; i : umbero - © 2
Meter Size Capacity Capacity Equivalent ; j i
Hydraulic Costs

Meters
Meters :
Capacity

B

Fire Protection
6inch 3 46% $2,351
8 inch . 54% $2 742

1. Per the Pnncuples of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Suppty Practlces, M1 AWWA, 7th edmon 2017, page 338.

@,

- Cab Water District
QNBS “Weter Rate Study 13



Commodity Related Costs

The commodity related cost allocation is summarized in Figure 15. Commodity related costs are those costs
related to the amount of water sold and commonly include the costs of chemicals used in the treatment
process, energy related to pumping for transmission and distribution, and source of supply. Each customer
class is allocated commodity related costs based upon the percentage of total consumption by that class.

Figure 15. Commodity Related Costs Allocation

Volume .Percent of Allocated
(hcf) > |Total Volume|  Costs

Customer.CGlass

Single Family Residential ! d $185, 522
Other Non-SFR/CommerciaI

1. Consumptlon is from 2019. CWD bilis monthly.
Capacity Related Costs (variable share)

The capacity related costs allocated to variable rates for each customer class are shown in Figure 16.
Capacity related costs collected from the volumetric rate are allocated to each customer class based upon
their percentage of peak monthly use.

Figure 16. Capacity Related Costs (variable share)

Average
Customer. Class Monthly
Use (hcf)

Peak Monthly| Percent of Allocated
Use (hcf) 1 Total Costs

Single Family Residential 7,826 11,521 67% $312,174
Other Non SFR/Commerc:aI 3, 133 5,753 33% $155,884
17,2 400%" o

1. Based on peak monthly data (peak day data not available).

D. Rate Design Analysis

NBS discussed several water rate alternatives and methodologies with District Staff over the course of this
study, such as the percentage of revenue collected from fixed vs. variable charges and differentiating rates
by customer class. Based on input provided by District staff and the Board of Directors, the proposed rates
were developed. The following sections describe this process.

The rates proposed in this study make the following modifications to the water rate structure:

1. Update monthly fixed meter charges to collect 40% of the revenue requirement and update
volumetric charges to reflect collecting 60% of revenue.
2. Maintain the volumetric rates for Single Family Residential customers as follows:
a. Keep three tier rate structure
b. Keep current tier breakpoints
3. Keep all non-residential customers on a uniform volumetric rate, and impose a single charge for all
water consumed.

Cabazon Water District

@ NBS~ Water Rate Study 14



O

12> ez

FIXED CHARGES

The fixed meter charge recognizes that the District incurs fixed costs regardless of whether customers use
water. There are two components that comprise the fixed meter charge: the customer component and the
capacity component, as described in the previous section. Using the costs allocated to each meter size from
Figure 12 through Figure 14; Figure 17 calculates the monthly charge for each meter size.

Figure 17. Fixed Meter Charges FY 2020/21

. . Allocated
SEeem i Allocated® | FAllocated s |F = 9;?@- el
Number of . Fire

1 Gapacity Customer
Meters

Costs Costs

J Total Costs LR
Protection Charge

Costs

Customer Class

QONBS

S b s d e=btctd | fee/a/12
Standard Meters
5/8 inch 845 $282,473 $55,645 S0 $338,118 $33.34
3/4 inch 21 $10,530 $1,383 S0 $11,913 $47.27
linch 13 $10,864 5856 S0 $11,720 $75.13
1.5inch 5 $8,357 $329 50 58,686 $144.77
2 inch 17 $45,463 $1,119 S0 $46,583 $228.35
3inch 10 $53,486 $659 SO 554,145 $451.20
4 inch 1 58,357 $66 SO $8,423 $701.92
Fire Protection
6inch 3 S0 5198 $2,351 $2,548 $70.78
8 inch 2 $0_ 5132 $2,742 $2,874 $119.76
Total | = 917 | $419531 | $60,386 |$ 5003 |5 485,011 : '

1. Meter Count as of December 2019,

VARIABLE CHARGES

The District currently has a three-tiered volumetric rate for single family residential customers, and one
uniform rate for non-SFR customers.

Tier breakpoints remain the same as current rates and were set in the last rate study in 2017. The goals when
setting the tier breakpoints were twofold:

1. The breakpoint for the first tier was set to the 7 hcf'®, which is the average winter consumption for a
typical single-family residential customer. Given the limited irrigation that occurs in the winter, this
approximates average indoor use.

2. The breakpoint for the second tier was set to 14 hcf, which is equal to average summer consu mption
for a single-family residential customer. Average summer consumption is when water consumption
is highest for a two-month billing period.

3. The third tier includes anything above 14 hcf.

10 HCF is one hundred cubic feet of water.

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 15



(2‘4( 2

: The commodity costs (from Figure 15) within the single-family residential class are further allocated to the
expected consumption by tier, as shown in Figure 18.

Figure 18. Single Family Residential Commodity Related Costs

Expected Percentage of

Allocated
1| Consumption 2| Total SER

Costs

Tier
Breakpoint

e 1] ot

(th)' - ,ngsu‘mpt_i_on, [T "o S et

$106,013
$42,333
$37,176

water consumption in Cabazon. The Tier 2 break point is set to 14 hcf which is average

summer consumption.
2. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data.

The Capacity Related Costs (variable share) (from Figure 16) within the single-family residential class are
further allocated to expected consumption by tier, as shown in Figure 19. The “additional capacity required”
represents the cumulative peak consumption in each tier. No additional capacity factor is assigned to Tier 1
water use, as this represents a base level of consumption by customers in the lowest tier, therefore no
additional supply costs would be incurred if all customers stayed within the Tier 1 threshold.

O Figure 19. Single Family Residential Capacity Related Costs (variable share)
Monthly Additional

Description Consumption Capacity
(hef) Required (hcf)

Percent Allocated
of Total Costs

Max Tier 1 Capacity 2 ] 1]

Peak up to Tier 2 2 $107,738

1. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data.
Source files: Cabazon_FINAN ACCTS SUMMARY_C0O1C02.xIsx and Cabazon_USAGEREPORT_CO1C02_Manipulated.xisx

2. Capacity allocated to the first tier represents the tier break multiplied by the number of customers.
3. This is the cumulative peak consumption up to the tier break; it represents capacity required to provide service to a given tier.

4. This is the additional cumulative capacity to meet peak consumption at each tier.

Due to the varying consumption characteristics, non-SFR customers will maintain a uniform volumetric rate
because it best represents their cost-of-service. Using the costs allocated to each customer class in Figure
1516 and Figure 18 — 19, Figure 20 calculates the per unit volumetric charge for each customer class and

tier.

Cabazon Water District

@ N BS Water Rate Study 16



25\ 1.2

Figure 20. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2020/21

Allocated
Capacity

Expected Allocated
Consumption| Commodity

Charge per
Unit Sold

Customer Class Total Costs

(hcf) Costs Costs {(S/hcf)
B SR R | e | b o e e | e e et
Single Family Residential
Tier1 53,666 | $ 106,013 -|$ 106,013 $1.98
Tier 2 21,430 | $ 42,333 107,738 | $ 150,071 $7.00
Tier 3 18,819 |$ 37,176 204,437 S 241,612 $12.84
All Other Customers 37,594 | s 74,264 155,884 $ 230,148 $6.12
Total 131,509 |$ 259,786 468,058 | $ 727,844

CONSTRUCTION METER FEES

NBS also analyzed the District’s construction rates and updated the meter deposit fee, admin fee and the
recalibration fee on top of the monthly meter and water charges. Figure 21 shows the updated construction
meter fees. The meter deposit fee is based on the actual cost of the meter. The admin fee was calculated
from labor hours needed for application processing, account opening and delivery of the construction
meter. Lastly, the meter recalibration fee was also calculated based on labor hours needed to travel and
repair the construction meter. These fees are all inflated 3% annually after 2020/21.

Figure 21. Updated Fee Schedule for Construction Customers

Updated Construction Customer

Explanation of
FY2020/21 | FY2021/22 | Fv2022/23 | FY2023/24 | Fy2024/25 |FXPianationo
Fee Schedule Fee

Construction Meter Deposit

5258.86

$1,965.14 $2,024.09 $2,084.82 $2,147.36 $2,211.78 [1]
Administrative Fee $152.50 $157.08 $161.79 $166.64 $171.64 [2]
Meter Recalibration Fee $244.00 5251.32 5266.63 $274.62 [31

_Monthly Fees shown in Current & Proposed Rates
Explanation of Fee:
[1] Based on cost of replacing the meter in the current year, if it is not returned.

[2] Based on labor time and cost for: processing application, opening account and Installing meter. Assumes 3% inflation per year.
[3] Based on labor time and cost for repairing a malfunctioning meter. Assumes 3% inflation per year.

E. Current and Proposed Water Rates

The Cost of Service analysis is used to establish the rates for FY 2020/21. In the subsequent four years of the
rate study, proposed charges are simply adjusted by the proposed adjustment in total rate revenue needed,
to meet projected revenue requirements. Figure provides a comparison of the current and prosed rates for
FY 2020/2'1 through FY 2024/25. More detailed tables on the developed of the proposed charges are
documented in the Appendix. It is notable to mention that after the Contract rates are over in 2022, this
customer will then switch to the 10-inch fixed meter charge and the uniform commodity rate. Since-the

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 17

QONBS



120 iL2

Contract customer uses a large amount of water, the proportion of the variable rate will decrease when this
customer joins the other non-SFR customers in FY 2022/23.

Water Rate

5/8inch
3/4 inch
linch
1.5inch
2inch
3inch
4inch

4inch

Monthly Fixed Se

Schedule

Iéi 1) : I

rvice Charg

Contract (10 inch)
Construction Meters (3 inch)
Monthly Fire Service Charges:

0dity.Chi

cf of Water Consumed:

es:

Figure 22. Current and Proposed Water Rates

Current
Rates

$68.10
$98.24
$158.51
$309.21
$490.04
$972.27
$1,514.77
$2,233.06
$286.73

$61.54
$130.62

$212.11 $119.76

$33.34
$47.27
$75.13
$144.77
$228.35
$451.20
$701.92
$2,300.05
$473.21

$34.05
$70.78

Proposed Rates

$34.35 $35.38
$48.69 $50.15
$77.38 $79.71
$149.12 $153.59
$235.20 $242.25
$464.74 $478.68
$722.98 $744.67
$2,369.05 | $6,212.13

$487.41 $502.03
$35.08 $36.13
$72.91 $75.09
$127.05

$123.35

FV2022/23

$36.44
$51.66
$82.10
$158.20
$249.52
$493.04
$767.01
$6,398.49
$517.09

$37.21
§77.35
$130.86

Rate per h
Uniform Rate (Non-SFR + Construction) $2.96 $6.12 $6.31 $5.06 $5.21 $5.37
Contract Rate $3.83 $3.94 $4.06 N/A N/A N/A
Tiered Rate {SFR Customers):
Proposed Break
Tier 1 0-7 hcf $1.53 $1.98 $2.03 $2.10 $2.16 $2.22
Tier 2 8-14 hcef $3.35 $7.00 $7.21 $7.43 $7.65 $7.88
Tier 3 14+ hef $5.12 $12.84 $13.22 $13.62 $14.03 $14.45

FY 2024/25

Sl

$37.53
$53.21
$84.56
$162.94
$257.01
$507.84
$790.02
$6,590.45
$532.61

$38.33
$79.67
$134.79

F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Water Bills

Figure 3 and Figure 4 compare a range of monthly water bills for the current and proposed water rates as a
result of the initial rate adjustment for single-family residential customers (with a 5/8-inch meter) and non-
single family residential customers (the bill comparison for a commercial customer is also a 5/8-inch meter).
These monthly bills are based on typical meter sizes at various consumption levels.

QNBS

Cabazon Water District

Woater Rate Study

18



2] L2

Figure 23. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family Customers

Residential Water Bill Comparison
Currentvs. Proposed Rates (5/8" meter)

%1 SFR Bill - Current
¥ SFR Bill - Proposed

5
=
=
-
£
o

=

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)

. Cabazon Water District
QNBS

Water Rate Study 19



I'lf?l (2~

Figure 24. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial Customers

Commercial Water Bill Comparison
Currentvs. Proposed Rates (5/8-inch meter)

B Commercial Bill - Current

= Commercial Bill - Proposed

=
>
<
b
<
(o}
=

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)

o Cabazon Water District
ONBS

Water Rate Study 20



['ZQ( 162~

Section3. RECOMMENDATIONS AND NEXT STEPS

A. Consultant Recommendations
NBS recommends District take the following actions:

Approve and accept this Study: NBS recommends the District Board formally approve and adopt this Study
and its recommendations and proceed with the steps required to implement the proposed rates. This will
provide documentation of the rate study analyses and the basis for analyzing potential changes to future
rates.

Implement Recommended Levels of Rate Adjustments and Proposed Rates: Based on successfully meeting
the Proposition 218 procedural requirements, the District should proceed with implementing the 5-year
schedule of proposed rates and rate adjustments previously shown in Figure 22. This will help ensure the
continued financial health of District’s water utility.

B. Next Steps

Annually Review Rates and Revenue — Any time an agency adopts new utility rates or rate structures, those
new rates should be closely monitored over the next several years to ensure the revenue generated is
sufficient to meet the annual revenue requirements. Changing economic and water consumption patterns
underscore the need for this review, as well as potential and unseen changing revenue requirements—
particularly those related to environmental regulations that can significantly affect capital improvements
and repair and replacement costs.

Note: The attached Technical Appendix provides more detailed information on the analysis of the water
revenue requirements, cost-of-service analysis and cost allocations, and the rate design analyses that have
been summarized in this report.

C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations

In preparing this report and the opinions and recommendations included herein, NBS has relied on a
number of principal assumptions and considerations with regard to financial matters, conditions, and
events that may occur in the future. This information and these assumptions, inclu ding District’s budgets,
capital improvement costs, and information from District staff were provided by sources we believe to be
reliable, although NBS has not independently verified this data.

While we believe NBS’ use of such information and assumptions is reasonable for the purpose of this report
and its recommendations, some assumptions will invariably not materialize as stated herein and may vary
significantly due to unanticipated events and circumstances. Therefore, the actual results can be expected
to vary from those projected to the extent that actual future conditions differ from those assumed by us or
provided to us by others.

- Cab. Water District
ONBS Water Rate Study 21



{200 (2

Appendix: Detailed Water Rate Study Tables and Figures

g Cab Water District
QNBS *Water Rate Study



ZEJO T ‘ueld [ejoueuyy

N
N

(>

@i3-j0L | WO ALTSqU MMM GaM
SEN Aq pasedasd

9154949

‘I3 J0U st ofjed 331302 1G3P 0Z'T @ Laym sueah Syl o) paydde uaaq sey SujeuLio) [BUORIPUC)

21 3bod Jpdyuawaaiby a(os JuSWDISU[ YUDE SUOJZ :33.N0S ‘7T 4O O[1R1 281303 1GSP © LIEIUIRWI 3SNW JILISIC JSIBM UOZEQRD ‘SIUBUBADD JUBLIND J9PUN °5

‘pucAag pue

TZ/0Z0Z Ad U1 53502 dafoud 03 sasuadxs asay) 01 paydde sue ssope; Aseuoneyu) 198png ay3 wo ase sesuadxs uitesado 0Z/6T0Z A4 Y3nouyl £T/9T0T AJ YL ‘v
"SUINIRS 41V |BILOISIY UC Paseq paleinaled 5|3 “siedd JaY1o je Jog 's33BpNQ 19LISIT W) 0T/6TOZ Ad YSNOIY3 L1/9T0T Ad Jo) sBuwIES 159193U} €

*Je3A Y2e9 35T Ajnf 40 3iep uopeIUSUR|dW] LB SWNSSE SaseAIIU| Ry 2

‘40d"GINOYJdV 6T 8T'9 p100g 03 136png uozoqpl 0Z-6T Ad EZAS126pNg 9T ;3| Wody saindy pus seah pagaafoid ay) ase sasuadxs pue 3nuaABL 6T/8TOT A4

S2/¥20T Ad

‘q03 0ZAJ195png Qo) ‘xsix3abpng uozoqos paydopy T2-0Z A4 :$3])y 834N0S wioy) ase 1Z/020Z Ad y3noJyl 02/610Z Ad 104 sesuadxa pue anuansy ‘T
»0'6 098 | 944 s LT 3spaJouf aipy 4arfyy aboiano) 3gag
%E6°ST %SS°CTT %LT6 %60°9 %00°€ S3SD3.0U| aNUINIY [DNUUY WO ISBAIIU] IARDINULND
%00°E %00'E %00'E %00°E %00°E uawsnipy anuanay ajoy [ohuuy passfoid
6L 6 6 9 v 99 A7 6 86t ©SS = o D J 0j0 bay INIY 19
£65'T6E S [ 'bys'o9e 6 [l9oziwre $ [(1Sz'BsT) §[(8v9's9z) &) TR “(3pyaa)/sniding jenuuy’
T6E'TIV'T $ | €69°eV'T $ | TTZ'EVSTS | YHT'TL8'TS | 86L'PIG'T $ SpUNJ JoIE/ JO S35 (2301
1698y S| €69'85 $|C19'8ST S| vbO‘s0S S |B6EVOS S saim|puadx3 JayiQ :|eroiqng
: SS6'6 8T2'TC 0$9'S9€ ¥00°L9¥ sasuadx3 |eide) papuni-aley
" - - - - BIIAIBS K MaN
1698y S| 6EL'BY S| V6ELET S| ¥EELET S |vee'zET  § 30IAIBS 393Q Bunsixy
:saimpuadx3 13430
00L‘€TY'T S | 000'VBE'T S | 009'VBE'T $ | 0OT'89E'T $ | 0OT'OIE'T $ :sasuadx3 SupesadQ :jejoigns
00L8E 00L°8¢ 00z'st 00.4'65 00L6S sasuadx3 Supesadp-uoN
0ov'8s oov'LS 00v'9S 00b'sS 006'ZS juawdinbg g 5|00} 33135
00€6 00Z'6 00t'6 0006 0068 $334 13430
006y 008y 0oL’y 009t 00s‘y 19nes) / Buned)
00Z'vLT 008°0LT 009°£8T 00€'LLT 008'€LT sasuadx3 poddng
oov'ze 00E'T8 oov'6L 00,98 009°s8 sasuadx3 aayo
00€'SE 00v've 00S'€E 009'2€ 00LTE 3IU40 - SABN
009°6€€ 006°CEE 00v'9ze 00T'02E 006'ETE uoINGLISIQ ‘UOISSIWSURIL ‘S||BM ‘Santjioe
006049 $100S'vS9 & |00£'s€9 $|o0L'Tzs S |o0T'els S sasuadx3 jjosAeqd
o Sasuadx3 buppsado
spund 4230p fo sasf)
886'€S8'T $ | LET'E0B'TS | 6TV'LSL'T S | ¥68TTL'TS | 0S8'8Y9'T § spund Jo saunos [e30]
00Z'€8¢Z 002’842 008'9L¢ 0ov'sLe 00T‘09¢ anuaAay ajey-uUoN :(eroIqns
009'6T 009'6T 009°6T 00961 009'6T ¢ SUi0dU} 133U
000°L6 00£°S6 008'v6 00€E'v6 008'c6 ANUDABY SNOAUEJRISIN
009°99T $ | OOE'€9T S| 00p‘TOT S ) 00STOT §|O00L'9PT & aNuaA3Y 334
:anuanay oy-uonN
88L°0LS'T | LEO'SZS'T | 6T9'08Y'T | ¥6V'LEW'T | OSL'R8E'T Sasealnu| aiey Jayy anuanay aey :jeroigns
88.'6T £€00ST 619'50T b65'29 0SL'€T o 53503.2U] 330y Wiof anuanay
000'SLE‘T $ | 000'SLE'T $ | 000'SLE'T $ | 000'SLE'T S | 000'SLE'T  § S3)ey JUSLIND JAPUN BNUAAY SB|eS JAIBM
:anuanay ainy
spund 13307 Jo 334008

ve/€20T A3 | €2/ez0T A37| 2z/Te0Z Ad | T2/0207 A4
paj3afoid

19dpng
SLINIWIHINDIY INNIAIY 40 AYYININNS GNV NV1d TVIONVYNIE : T 318VL

poliad 338y JeaA-§

1 AUVINIAINS SINAWIHINDIY INNANTY I1VH

suo29fold dAIBSAY pue ueld |ePuBU
AQNLS 31vY Y3Lvm
1OI41S1a Y3LYM NOZVEYD



l*”-( G2

TEJO T ‘ue(d [epueuly

9152°929°008:3314-|0L | WO A0BSqU MMM :GIM
SAN Aq pasedald

'qo} suondwnssy ‘Xsix'gA Apnis 2oy Jof 3abpng uozpqn) 12-0Z A4 311 193pnq RIS J2d sajed ujules 153U S
*4J81S JO UOlepUALLILLIOIA] BY) I8 2Z/TZ0Z Ad AG sasuadxa Wig0 Jo sAep 0BT 03 S9suadxa WiRO Jo sAep 06 woJy Suiseasouyelie) snsasay Sugesado v
.>_u:0.r5u $@338) UO)O3UUCD 10) punj pIIIISaI ON 'E
*3335N43 PUOQ 3yl Aq PI3Y 3JB SPUNJ 353Y) SIIEIS YYD ‘JPAIMOY ‘PILUNSSE ARUSLING JUBWRIINDII 3AISU ON °Z
XS)X°33UD[Dq YSDI PADPAN 07 0E°9
# ‘T 360d Jpd syuawayoss (pjpunuld paypny 6T0Z-8T0Z Ad *S311) 94n0S WuIsiq s3d T2/0Z0ZA4 PUE 02/6EOT Ad o) ysed BujuuiBsg 1
%020 [ %020 %020 [ %020 [%0z°0 _ . 210y SBujuID3 153.334] jorudy |
5 s |- s|- s|- s |- s ;&..&&EE»&EEEU.%
- - - - - 5193014 |eade) Jo) SaAlasaY JO BSN :SSA
- - - - - anuanay aa4 Ajoede) snid
= - $ |- 5| - s |- $ ¢ BuB|eg BAI3S3Y SuuSag

3 5 s $ ] aoupjog bujpu3 13610}
92609 5 |82Z6'09 5 |826°09 5 |82609 S |82609 sl i ~ asuppg sniasay ygaq Bujpuz
- - - - - andasay SuniesadQ o3 snjding Jo Jajsuer) 5597
- - - - - suones|qo 3gag MaN woJs Suipung an1asay snid
826'09 $|8e609 $ 82609 82609 S| 87609 s ; 33UE|eg 3A1353Y Buiuuidag
EIVELEITR I Ele)
_isanasay papunsay

m 3ouoing Buipu3 19610 WUy

g aaupjpg buipuz
008°IZr S |006°TEY S| 00VThY S ’ S | 008°Evy S 53355V 19N fo %9) antasay 9y |pydDd
886'vy8 S| 1sL06v S | 008'Ehy S| 008'crt S| 008°Epy S| @aunjng aniasay 0jday W g3y fo3pdo) Bujpug
{o15'22) (006'TT) = - (966°2S) muum_o._n_ _mu_nmu J0J SaAlasaY JO 9S() 559
LyL'9LE 1588S 5 - - snjdang anasay SunesadQ Jo Jajsuedy :snid
TSL'06 S| 008'syy S| 008'€by S| O0B'EVy S| 96L'96¢ S asuejeg anasay SupuuSag
05890,/ S |000269 §|00ET69 S |0SOV8I S | SESESK s | , (W®0Jo SADP-QBT 01 uolisub.Ayj a3ubjog bujpu3 3ab10}
058902 S [{000269 S | ZOE06E $ | TOT'9LT § | ZsEWEE  § | 29UD{og aniasay Bupbiadp Bujpu3.
(Lt '9LE) {158°8S) - - - anJasay Juawadeiday |eyde) 03 InQ Jaysues) Ssa
L - - - - snjding aasasay 342 Jo Jajsuel} snjd
L65'16€ vPS‘09€ 90T'v1e (tsz’sst)  |(8¥9'592) {sasea.du) ajey JaYy) Mol YseD 39N snid
000'769 $ | coE'06e | TOT'9LT | zZse'vee | 000'009 | 2auejeg anssay Sujuuidag

aniasay buiiniadg

[ —( [ o oo S e, 5e> Sutaudeq oL

SZ/v20z A4 | vZ/€20T Ad | €2/2202 A4 | 22/T202 A4 | T2/0Z0Z A4 SINYISIY AILIIYLISIY-NN
paialoid ALIAILDY HSVD 40 AYVYINIANNS

polad 9iey ledA-§ AYYWINNS ONNJ IAH3S3Y © 2 318VL

SU01R[0.d DAIBSTY pUe UB|d [e]PUBLYY
AQNLS 3LVYH YLV
12141510 YLV NOZVEYD




i">?>[ 17

Z€ 40 € 's3|qe] pue syey)

9TSL'9£9°008:9944-[j. o WO AOTSqU MMM qam

SAN Aq pasedald
0¢ aunp Buipug Jeaj [easid -
Y4074 174V 4 €¢0¢ ¢eoe T20¢
I B = B S U O L el . - 0
s$31ey palsn[py JapuUN SINUIASYe ¢ o © 2
sajey Sunsg Japun SaNUIASY e
sasuadx3 30 N
221085 1990 EEEE
= sy99l044 |eEude) =) - 000°00S$

>

5

- 0000007 2

(R

]

g

B

g

000°00S'TS 7

eceejoeeociesd .
.oooc.ooo.ot.oocoooo.o.ooo e
000000°TS
ﬁ 000005°TS
sajey paseasdu| pue Sunsixg J12pun SNUINIY
"SA SJUDWAIINDBY INUINIY 431\
T L4VHD

s3jqe] Moday pue suey) Juaunsnipy ajey
AGNLS 3LVY ¥Y3LVYM
1181510 Y3LVM NOZVavd



(>4 l We'l

TE 4O ¥ ‘S3|qeL. pue syey)

9152°9£9°008:9944-{|0L | WOI"A0SSqU MMM Q3

SEN Aq paiedauid
0€ aunr uipu3 Jeap |edasid
£€C0c
T e 3. |w
2ouejeg 1084e] |e3P| =
9oue|eg 9AIDSDY 19848 WNWIU| A e
3ouejeg ysed Suipud
aAJasaY 1g2Q PatdISaY | ) - 000°005S
000'000°TS
000°00S'T$
o
o
‘“...... ‘r
- 000°000°2$
000'00S°2S
mummhm._. INIOSOY ﬂ@ﬁ:@EEOu@G
*SA sdduejeg ysed
T LiYHD

sajqel Hoday pue suey) Juawisnipy ey
AQNLS 31V ¥ILVM
1O141S1g Ha1VM NOZVEYDd

"

i



I?>‘S‘ 1.2

S’ 915/°9£9°008:98.4{ju.| WO AOTSQU MMM 3\

T€ JO § ‘s9|qe pue suey) SaN Aq pasedaid
0€ aunf Suipu3 Jeaj |esstd
Seoe c0¢ 14074 (44474 120¢
- %0
%0°€ %0°€E %0°'€ %0°€E %0°€E
%S
9NUB3AJY ey 03 syuawisnipy paliafoid
€ LHVHD

sa|qe . 1oday pue syey) Juaunsnipy ajey
AdNLS 3LVYH H3LVM
13141514 H3LVM NOZVEVD

S o S L ¥



(%(a{/&ﬂ

2€409‘(WB0) T UqIX3

9152°9/9'008:93.4-|{0), _ EOU.smmn:.SssB gqam
SAN Aq pasedaid

002'859'T 00Z'€S9‘T S | 008'1S9°T ¢ | 00L'0S9’'T | 0OT'SE9'T $ INNIAIY FTVIOL
009'6T 009'61 009°6T 00961 009'6T 3w0du| 3s319)U|
00026 00€'S6 008v6 00E'v6 008'€6 SNUBABY SNOBUE|(IISIN
009'99T DOE'€9T S| 00V2Z9T S |00STOT S {00L'9%PT S 3nuanay 234
:3NNIAY Y3HLO
000°SLE'T 000'SLE'T $ | 000'SLE'T & | OOO'SLE'T | 000'SLE'T § 3Nu3A3Y 3ley 1318 M
:3INNIAIY 3LvY
_ @espng | AYVININNS INNIAIY : ¥ 318VL
| poliad a1ey g1z dod
00Z'859°T 00Z'€S9'T $ | 008°TS9'T $ | 0OV'0S9'T S | 00T'SE9'T S INNIAIY FTVLOL
00L 00L 00L 00L 00L p.ied YAMQ - 3Wodu| 3sa133u|
00T 00T’ 00T 00T's 00T p.ed s|iig 1212/ 3WOdY) 15a493U)
008'ST 008‘ST $ | 008'stT $ | oog'st s | oos‘st S| Pied 41v7 wiodu| 3sa433u)
owoau] Isasau
00g'L 00g'L 00€'L 00€'L 00E°L T awoduj SupjessdQ-UoN snoaue|jads|n
009'L2 0012t 0099t 001°'9¢ 009°sT 41 3WOodu| 3sea JAMaL |j23
00v'0T 0020t 00z'ot 00z'0T 00z'0T T 3WOdU| JUBWI|NBS 18133 L
00LTS 00405 s | ooL‘os s | ooL‘os $ | ooL'0s g S 3NUAAY XE| - WIIOJEA PY
2NUaAIY SNoIUe[aISIN
006'STT 009°€TT 009°€TT 009°ETT 009°ETT 5 anuaAay xe] - saaj Ag puels
= - - - - T Awu_P_mm Z.wzv 934 son|jlded Jseg
00s 00s 00s 00S 00S T $334 }o3yD pausmay
009t 009t 009°T 009°T 009'T T 119 J21eM - 5334 JUNDIIY MBN
0098t 009'Ly $ | 00L9v S | cog'sy $ ] 000'TE S T s|iig J21eM - 5334 Ajjeuad
INUBARY 334
006'S 006°S 006's 006'S 006'S T s)lig Ja1eM - S3jes auy
000091 000°09T 000°09T 000091 000°09T T 32e83U0) OHIA
000'vTE 000'v1E 000'v1E 000°v1E 000'VTE T sajes Aypowwio)
001°668 00T‘'S68  $ | 001'S68 S| 0OT's6B S |00OT's68 S T s|itg 191e M 21eYy aseg
INU3AIY IEY J3IEM
5202 vzoT €202 F4414 1202 Siae WLl e
uopeyu)
193png (1SV23404 INN3ATY : € 318VL
[ poiiad a1ey 817 dosd
sosuadx3 pue anuaaay SupesadQ
AQNLS 31vY ¥3LVM
T LigiHX3 12141810 YILYM NOZYEYD




N\
3

e

2E 40 £ (W30} T HqIux3

9TSL9LI Ol i-IIOL | WODACBSGU MMM 1Q3M

SEN Aq pasedald
00S'0T0‘T S | 00V'L86 00L'v96 008'¢v6 000'€68 $ |elo1-qns
00T'€T 006°CT 009'TT oov'et 007'TT 14 18410
00609 $ | 002’65 005'8S 00v'LS 00£'9S S ¥ sasnes SupeauiBuy

UoRNQLIISIQ 'R SuUBLL ‘SHIIMN ‘D4 SNo3UeLRISIA
007’ 00T°E 000°€ 006°C 008°C 14 J3Y3Q - swLely
00T'T 001'T 001°T 001’1t 00T'T 2 sauoyd suwepy
005z sloot'ze 00L°12 00£1Z 006°0Z S 14 UOIUBARLG WD)
Aanoas
00L°€E 000°t€ 00p'ZE 008'TE 002'te 14 Jay3Q - a3ueuAnUIB []IM
000°L s | oos’e 0089 00L'9 0099 S o1 s|eanuayd
@sueuajuiep |lPM
00S°8L $ | 000°LL 00s'sL 000'vL 00S2L S 12 sjelale Jeday 1@ JUIR BUl]
10)9e43U0) Jjeday 1§ UIN auf]
00901 005201 005001 005'86 00996 ¥ S||3M - satin
00Z's 00T's 000's 006'v 008'v 4 T
00L's s | oos's 00€'6 001’6 006'8 S 4 S99 qeq
uopNquIsiq ‘voissiusuel ‘sjPM ‘sanljided
008 008 008 008 008 8 Sunsal |eslpay
000°€ 006°C 008°C 00 009'C 8 113 pue|ns
00TTE S 1 00V'1E 009°0€ 008'6Z 008'6Z S 8 alenpa pue yol4
‘339 ‘saxe] - asuadxg [joiAed
009'v8 Qot'e8 00L'6L oov'LL 0ov'LL 8 uotsuad
00£90T 009'70T 005'201 00S'001 008'v6 8 3Je) yijeaH sako|dw]
0099 s | 0059 00’9 00€E'9 00zZ'9 S 8 *dwo) s1axsom
asuadxy syauag aakopdwz
000°0LT S | 004991 00p'€9T 002°09T 000°€2T ) L SINIOM Pl
suojesadQ piaid
00S'L6 00L'v6 00616 007’68 00Z'68 9 Jageue [esausn
009'8 oov's ooz's 0008 008°L € juess|ssy uwpy “dwal
006'v8 oov‘z8 00008 ooL'LL 00L'LL 9 JaBeue\ |eJauan Juessissy
00865 s | oot‘ss oov'‘as 008'vS 008'vS S 9 SIUNOIJY J3W0ISND)
2)AIBS SI2UW0ISN) 7§ JudWadeuey)
00291 S | 006°ST 009'ST 00€'sT 000°ST S 9 5234 sJoyda.1q
sasuadxg jjoshed
siseg
s20¢ tvzoe €202 Tzoe 1202 NOLLdIYDS3Aa
uonejul
_ 338png | 1 1SYO34O0d ISNIdXT ONILYHILO ¢ S 318V
poLiag 3jey g1z doid
sasuadx3 pue anuaaay Sunesado
AQNLS 3LVY Y3LYM
T U8IHX3 1JIULSIA ¥ALVYM NOZVEYD



IBES{ ez

2E §0 8 (WB0) T Uquyx3

N

9152'9L9°008:9244-}|CL | WO ACBSquU smm :GIM

SAN Aq pasedasg
001'90€ 00S'00€ $ | o0g'vTE $ | ooz'o1E s | 00s‘vOE S felol-qns
006 006 006 006 006 14 JBY10 - 5394 JBYID
00T°C 00T 001t 001z 0012 14 S394 JajeM alels
00€‘9 0029 001’9 0009 006'S 14 saa4 Ajuno) apissany
- e s |- S|- Sl- S 1 saa4 aseajay usf) Ajuno)

$334 J2Y10
000'T 000'T 000°T 000'T 000°T v S|eay [anes)
006'€ 008°€ $100L'E S | 009 S| 00S°E S 14 Sujuies] / sieuwas
jonelL / Sujujesg
00Z'82 009°L2 00t'Le 009'9¢ 001'92 4 asuesnsuj Ajljiqey (es8uaD
006 006 006 006 006 14 Hoddns aysgam
009°s 005's 00v's 00€’s 002's 14 20IM3g [josAed
= B S- [ Si- S 4 safiey) aojues yueq
Moddns snoauejjaasiy
00T‘T 00T'T 00T'T 00I'T 00T'T v sadley) g saa4 - |da
0056 00t'6 00T'6 006'8 00’8 14 |auuosiad - [edan
009°TT 00v'TT 00T'TT 000'TT 008°0T 14 Jajem - jedal
00S'vS 00V'ES s | oov'es S | ooP'1S S | oov'0s S 4 {esaudg - |eda]
jeda
008°LE (10) WA 00t°'9€ 00L'SE 000°SE L Sununoday
000°ST 00S've 000'v2 00S'€T 000° L PNy jeoueury
G 2 S | oo0‘0T $ | oos'Tt s | 009zt S L Joqeq Aesodwa),
sasuadx3g yoddng
001z 001°T 00T‘C 001'? 001t 14 19430 - sasuadx3 23140
S 5 e 0058°C 005°'C ¥ (YSMD) 2auel||y SWwaisAs Jalep v
00s's 0ot's 00€'S 00zZ's 00T's v Supinsag Bujuonipuo) sy
= S o 00€'9 002’9 v ades01s YO
006°6€ 00T'6E 00€'8E 00S°LE 008'9¢ 14 532|A435 J3Indwo)
00L'9 0099 0059 00v'9 00g'9 ¥ suoped)|qnd 1 Supund
0068 00L'8 0058 00€'8 00T'8 b4 adeisod
006 00€'T 006 006 00E'T v suodyasqns 3 sang
00t's 00€°'S 00Z's 00T1's 000's ¥ saiiddns pue J3ido)
006'0T 00L°0T 00501 00E'0T 001°0T ¥ juawdinb3 g sayddng
0012 001 0012 001°C 0012 14 wajsAg Buy|ig Ja1EM
= ¥ S| $|- S|- s 14 8upinas wansAs wiely ail
sasuadx3 adpo
000's 006’y 008'% 0oLy 009y ¥ Bujuespd aayo / dmjaid yseu
000°TT 008°0T 009°0T 00v'0T 0oz'ot ¥ auoydajay
001t 00Tt 00T‘1T 00T'T 00T'T 6 sen
002'8tT 009'LT $ | oo0LT $ | oop'9t S | 008'ST S £ Ayduralg
9MPO - SAUMN
siseg
Erdi74 74174 €20¢ [44114 1202 NOILdIYIS3Aa
uopejjuy
_ 128png _ 9 114dvl
poLad aiey g1z dosd

T 1igiHX3

sasuadx3 pue anuanay upessdg
AQNLS 31VvY ¥31vm
10141S1Q HILYM NOZVEVYD

"



e ne>

TE 40 6 ‘(W'B0) T UqIyxa

9T62°929'00p wdigd-1|0L | WO A0SSqu MMM g

SAN Aq pasedalg

006'LIV'T 00T'T6E'T $ | 00T'S6E'T S | 008'TBE'T $ | 008'€ZE'T ¢ fe3oL
= =3 7 z 5 P.ed NOILYID3¥d3q
= 009°T 008'c 008's 008's pled asuadx3 35a133u] OdHA
00T’y 005'S s | ooL'e $ | 006°L S| 006L 5| pJed osuadxg 15a493U) YMA

5202 {24174 14114 2e0e T20¢ T “__HM“___ NOLLdIYIS3a

(€ LiIgIHX3 NI NMOHS) 3A08Y WOY3 GIANTIX3 SWaLI : 8 318YL

00L'ETY'T 000‘vBE'T $ | 009'VBE'T S | OOT'89E'T $ | 00T'OIE'T ¢ *dX3 ONILYYIdO-NON B DNILVHIJO IVL0L ANYYHD

000°SLE‘T DOE'SYE'T S | OOV'SEE'T S | 00V'BOE’T $ | oov'OSZ'T S3SN3IdX3 ONILVHIJO TVIOL ANVHD

00T'Z6 001'96 $|009's0T S |oOT'STT $|009TUIT $ |eyof-gng
000°SE 000's€ 000°S€ 000'SE 000'SE £T VNS / vsD
- il 00S°0T 00012 00012 pled 2 1PedAed 0dHa
00T'T 001'T 00T'T 00T‘T 00Tt €1 SNO3UB|2ISIN
002'T 00z't 002t 002'T 002t €1 asuadx3 3gaQ peg
oot oor't s | oor't s|oov't s | oov't s £T 824 Buissazoud ueo] YMa

sasuadx3 Sugesadg-uoN
g ke - = - v suopnelunwwoe)
00zZ's 00T°s 000's 006’ 008t 4 Jauialu| / Buoyd [{2D) sAQ Ja1em
00L'ST 00¥’ST 001'stT 008'vT 005'vT 14 UIN g Jieday - N1 AIAIBS
000'T 000°C 000'C 000 000'T v Jeluay Juawdinb3
00T’y 000"y 006't 008°€ 00L's b4 sasuadx3 Jojoed)
000'C 000°C 000 000 00S 14 Aajes
008'T 008'T 008'T 008°T 008'T v swojiun aakojdw3
00S'LT 00Z'LT 006'9T 009°91T 00€'9T 6 [2n4 apIysA
00T'0t 006'6 s |ooL's S| 00S'6 S | 00E'6 5 2 sjoo jlews g sajjddng doys

juawdinb3 1§ sjoo] aannIas

SZ0Z veoe €20C F4 {114 TZ02 sised NOILdI¥IS3a

uopeyu)
_ 128png L319vl

poliad a1ey 81¢ doid

T 1igIHX3

sasuadx3 pue anuanay Sunesadg
AGNLS 31VYH HI1VM
10184S1Q Y3LVM NOZV8YD



l"fOl 12

TEJ0 0T (INBO) T 1qIyx3

2202 ‘1€ Jaqwadaq uo payjdde aq jiim 1PpaJa 3587 “WaISsAs BY) 0 PBIJ2UL0D OdHA Uaym papiacid Aydeded jeuoippe o3 anp yoeqied OdHQ

G0

)

PY T2-DZ Ad ‘3|l 2IN0S WOy JEIs Ag papiroid sanjen uopeyu -

4

B XSIX

png uozoqod p

9162'9L9°008:3244-1|01 | WO ADSSqU MMM :GIM
SAN Aq pasedald

~Nm

"40d"GIAOYddV 6T 819 p400g 0 31a6png u0zoqud 0Z-6T A4 EZA™S13Bpng ™91 311y woyy saundyj pua teah pardafosd ayy ase sasuadxa pue sNU3A3L 6T/8TOT Ad
‘qo3 0ZA4126png qoD) ‘xsjx'19bpng uozoqo) paydopy TZ-0Z A4 53|} 321N0S WO,

3¢ 12/0202 A4 43N0 0Z/6TOZ Ad 104 SIsUaLXa pue anuaAay T

%00°0 %00'0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 [ uofie|eas3 oN
%002 %00 %00'T %00°C %00'C T asea Jamo |j2)
%02°0 %02°0 %0Z°0 %02°0 %02°0 1T awouj 152133u)
%00°€ %00°€ %00°€ %00°€ %00°'€ o1 sjealwayd
%00°E %00'€ %00°€ %00'€ %00'E 6 jand
%009 %009 %00'9 %00'9 %00'9 8 suofe3o||e syysuag
%00°Z -%00°C %00°C %00°'C %00°T L sale|es paly
%00°E %00'€ %00°€ %00°€ %00'€ 9 sale(eg
%00°2 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %0070 S sanuanay xe| Auadoid
%00 %00'T %00 %00'C %00°T ¥ uofe|ju| [BIBUSH
%0S°€ %05°€ %05°E %0S'E %0S'E £ Ayops)3
%00'€ %00°E %00'€ %00°E %00'S [4 sajey J93eM MaN
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00'0 %00°0 1 S9|eS JajeM

5202 vzoz £202 zz02 1202 il  SHOLIVA NOLLVIINI

uopejju|

SNOILAWNSSY ONILSYIIYO4 : 6 319V

sosuadxg pue anuandy Sunesado

AGNLS 3LVY YILVM

FECITE 1D14151Q Y3LVM NOZVEYD

e e 4



41 [ rea

ZEJO TT “(diD) ZNqIyx3

9TSL'9L9°00E oL | wodAoBsqu'mmm :qap
SON Aq pasedald

SPaas0id puog anuanay maN

(Aouapaifaq) snidins Gujpund (o3do

s

- [3 uboi yuong
s
$

wv|wl wniwn

'
wvwlivniwn
'

il wvniwn
W |wvwn

$350) 108(0.d |BJo)

D PN3ao 0 §d

015'2T 5581 812'TC 059°99¢ 000°02S

01s°2e ssg'tz ¢ | 8127e 0S9'S9€ 00002 $ spuny jeyde) Jo sa2inos |30

hid
RV
>

- SS6°6 81C'T¢ 059'59€ ¥00°'L9Y anuaAay aley
01522 006'TT - = 966'TS anasay Juswade|day pue uopelyiqeyay jende) jo asn
- - - - - SPa9201d puUOg SNUIAIY M3IN JO 3sN
) - - i - 8uipung ueo Jus
% & % = - sanIasay aa4 Andede) jo asn
= S |- S |- S |- S siuesn

SZ/v20T Ad vZ/ec0e A4 | €z/zzoT Ad 22/120T Ad _ :5334n05 Suipuny

payaloid 1SY23404 SNIANNH 1V1idvD
AYVYINAINS ONIANND Tvildv) : 0T 319V1

saimyjpuadxy uejd yuawanosdw jeyder)
AGNLS 31LVY H3ALYM
C LIgIHX3 12141510 Y3ILYM NOZVEVYD

,r...\\



ZE 40 2T “(diD) TAqYXI

I“W—//(ﬂ/

9152°9£9°008:3244-{0), | WO A0TsqU MMM QDM
SEN Aq pasedalg

SI|UIOUOIZ/ULIOT JUI' MMM 3BIINOS "X3PU| IS0 UORINIISUCT P402Y-smaN SupauBug ay) jo adesane Jeak QT JUa1iND JSOW 3y} UO PASE] S| JOIBYU| UORINIISUOD T

(92/5202-12/0202 40f) g1 diJ 1034-5 “xsixJabpng uozogo)

*(02/6102 40f) 03 0Z A4 326png qo) pue
paidopy TZ-0Z A4 :Saj) 934n0s ) punoy 51502 13{oud 3uawanosdwy) jeyded pajewyisy 1

£T°T 60'T 90°T 07T 00T 0202 wodj J3||dijniy 150D UORINIISUOD BAREINWND
%00°E %00°E %00°€ %00°€ %000 2 P4022Y SMAN Suuaauidug Ja4 ‘uoneyul 1500 UOIIINASUO) Jenuuy
S20¢ v20e €202 (4414 120 S3lqeeA Juwouod]
SNOILJWNSSY DNILSYIIYO : €T 318VL
01522 55812 $ | 812'12 0S9'S9E 000°02s $ (s1Djj0@ 1034-32n304) 53507 Wweadoad di) :[e1oL
- = = - - a8esany (9702-TZ0Z PaIeWNST) S150D dID mnd
= = - 005'vST & geyay jneA eiuog
22 = = o 000'sL Jo0jesauad d|qelsod 1oy GA 78 T 01 XOg Jajsuel) 1§ UoRIBUUOo)
- - - . 000°0ST qeyay T#oueL
- B 2 - 000‘otre qeyay T# TT2M UORINPOId
2 = = 0ST'80T B }onag AN 321138
N u 3 006'0€ & aqui Ag pay)do7 puel uoi1aas Yielaag
0152z SS8'TE 812'12 0090z 000°0¢2 sjuawade|day sa1a Jalem
= = B = 000'sT 5 313410 1€ JueIpAH 3414 91EJ0[9Y
. & S |- 00S'1S 000°02 S (s3dw-asnoyad() Auadoud 18a1s ule
SZ0T 20T €¢0¢ 720 1202 uonduasag 13foud
1 (SYV110Q ¥YVIA-3UNLNL NI) S1S0D WVYDO0Ud INFWINOUdINE TY1IdvD ¢ 2T 318Vl
000°02 00002 $ | 00002 000°SSE 00002 S (s10jj0@ 103 A-3ua1in7) S350 wesSodd did ‘3oL
- . 2 . = adesany (9Z0Z-TZ0T Palewns3) sisod did aimng
* " 4 000°0ST = qeyay 3nep ejuog
: o A - 000°SL 103)es3ua8 ajqenod J0) SM 73 T O3 XOg J3)SUBLL 3 UOIIBULDD
: g = - 000°0ST qeyay T#duel
g = " = ooo‘ove qeyay T# TT3M uolINposd
= = " 000°s0T o Aanag Auan ades
= - - 000'0E - aqul Aq pay207 pueq uonIas yaelaq
000°02 00002 000°0¢ 000°0¢ 000°0T syuswade|day 431N 1338
- . 3 - 000°'ST % 22410 1B JUBIPAH 3414 31EI0J3Y
% . S |- 000°0S 000°0Z S {s3dw-asnoyad)) Auadoud 198415 Ulew
SZ0T vz0z €20¢ zeoe 120z uondyinsaq 19afoud

< 1gIHX3

1 (SYVT10Q YV3A-LNIHUND N1) S1S02 WYYDOYd LNINIAOUIWI TVLIdVD : TT 318VL

WVHH0Ud LINIWIAOUDNI TVLIdVD

saJnjipuadx3 ueld Juawanocsduif jeyided
AQNLS 3LVY ¥3aLvm
1D141SIQ YALYM NOZVEVD




1‘{3‘ it

TEJ0 £T (3920) £ nqux3

9T6/°'9£9°008:3244. .| wo A0Ssqu mmm :qam
SaN Aq pasedasg

- s|- s|- s|- s$|- S 19b4p | aniasay 1gaq bunsixy
%021 %0cZT %021 %oct %021 juawiasinbay abpiano) jpnuuy buizsix3
16980 S| 6EL°8y S| V6ELET S | V6ELET S| ¥6ELET § 0In43s 193Q jonuuy bunsixy

SILVH ¥3LVM Ag Q3I4SILVS 39 OL SNOILVDIIE0 1930 TVNNNY ONILSIX3 : ST 319VL

Jpd-uawaaiby ajps Juawypisulyuog suoiz 1314 331nos papiroad usK) b
'9T/ST/TT 44€31s AQ paw.njuod 1gap Supisixa o) sjuawalinbas aA1asai oN ¢

Jpd uawaaiby 3)bs Juawy|pisu|~yuDg SUOJZ 13|l4 94n0S ‘suoiiedqo Allsed j[e Sapn|aul pue JusWIRIBY JUBWEISU| juBg UOIZ AQ 39S JUBWaNINDAS adesana]) ‘7

4pd'a3sIA34-31npays 130 YMQ :3)i4 32.n0s papinoid Jusyd T

SZ/ve0¢ Ad

€ 1I1giHX3

vZ/€20T A4 | €2/2202 Ad | 22/T20Z Ad

12/0202 Ad

5 $1- $|- $|- $|- $ ¢ (32uejeq puny |e103) Juawaunbay aAlasay
%0 %0 %02t %071 %0ZT . (JuswAed jenuue anoqe Juwy-$) uawasinbay adesano)
. $|- $|€0L'88 $|€0L'88 S |E0L'88 § 3JIAIRS 1qaq [ehuuy :eioiqns

- - 9791 SSL'e 1€8°S uawAhed 153131y
- S- S|iLot8 s eve'vs S|z juswAed jediuig

, YIS WIBJBY 3[eS Jusl|[eIsU] [EUCHIEN 3Sil] UOIZ

- s |- $|- $- s |- $ ¢ (92uejeq puny [101) JUBWaJINDAY aAIBSDY
%0¢CT %021 %02T %02T %02t . {(uswAed jenuue anoqe JUWY-$) Juawainbay adesano)
169'8y S |6EL'8y $|T69'8F S |T69'8y S |T69'8F $ 32135 33 |enuuy :jeloiqns

998°C 0Ty £8%°S TEL9 826 JuawWAed 1sas81u|
sze'sy S| ves'vw S|soT'er S|6S6Ty  S|egLor S JuawAed jedduild

1 9TP8S3 ON UeoT YMQ
1S3|npayas uswAeday jenuuy
SNOILVYDIT80 L8934 LIO1Y1S1A LNIINSSISSY

T 319vl

29)0195 1990
AGNLS 3LVY Y3LYM
1D141SId YILVM NOZVEVD



n-—lq/tw/

Z€ JO pT ‘uoneayisse|d g “Pung

9T5£'9£9°008:3944-1101 | WO A0TSqU MMM :QIM

SAN Aq pasedald
%9'0 %Z'6 %209 | %006 |[T100°s $|iL€'tL G| €co’tsy $ |oogovz S |o0L'66L  § |2101-GnS
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | WOOE | TC S = s|ot9o'te S |09te $ | ooz'tE 3 1310 - 2OUBUAIUIEW |IPM
%00 %00 %0'0 | %0001 - L S| - s | 0099 $ | 0099 $ si|WwaY)
JdueuIUe ]9
%L°0 %00 %E69 | %00E |TTS s| - s|ezz'os $|o0sL'tz  $|00S'TL s sjenaley Jieday 1 Jujei aun
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %0°0E - s| - s| - s| - $|- $ Ausdiswz yuay seday g LI aury
%L°0 %00 %E6S | %0°0E - s| - sl - sl - S|- $ Auadiawg uoidnasuo) Jjeday 1 WIN aur]
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %0°0€ - si|f = s| - s| - $|- $ uay Jeday 1§ UIN aur
%L°0 %0°0 %E69 | %00E B G sl - s| - $]- $ uonRIISUO) Jjeday g UIW aul
$01321)U0) Jjeday B LIN au
%L0 %00 | %E69 | %0°0E - sl - Sl sk - $1- $ vavos
%00 %00 %00 | %0001 s L $| - $ 100996  $|009'96 S SIIPM - S21IRN
%0 %00 %E'69 | %00E B | s| - s| - $|- $ adueudjuteiy 1 adeaspuer uelpapw
%00 %00 %00 %0'00T - S - S # S - $ |- $ J012BIIUC) BAIBS JOJRIBUBD)
%L°0 %00 %EG9 | %O0E |VE sl = $ | 9ze'e S| ovv't s | oo’y $ SIB1™/N
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %0°0E - s| - s| - silt . - s|- $ ajueuajulewy 13 Sujdedspue s
%L°0 %0'0 | %E69 | %O0E |¥9 | e $l9919  $|oL9c  $|o06'8 $ 384 qe]
uopINgIsia .co—mn__.:m:c._._. .m__ug .mu_a___umu_
%L0 %00 %E'G69 | %O0E |9 slf ©- $ | vSS s |ove s | cos S Bunsay (eapapw
%L°0 %00 %E69 | %00E | 6T S| - $1108T s|osL $1009C S 113 pue |Ins
%L'0 %0°0 %E69 | %O0E | viT Sil s s|ov9'oz  $|oves $ | co8'sz S 2JeJ)paIN pue vDI4
*333 ‘saxe] - asuadxg [josAed
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %00E |95S s| - S |vzo'es S |0TT'E S| 0OVLL S uotsuad
%L'0 %0°0 %EG9 | %00E |T89 s| - $|629's9 S |ovv'sz S |008v6 $ ase) YyjeaH aakojdurg
%L0 %0'0 %E69 | %00 |S¥ S|, = s | see'y 5098t $ | 00z'e s *dwo) s13jJoMm
aIsuadx3 syausg sakojdwy
%0 %00 %E69 | %00E |€88 st - s|s12's8 S |006'9€ S |000'€ZT S SIOM P31
suopesadQ piotd
%00 | %0°00T | %00 %00 - sil= - sk - Sills = Sili= 5 Japeay 919N
suopesad 31
%L0 %00T | %E'68 %00 | Ov9 $ | 0268 s|ova'se S| - $ | 00Z's8 S Jadeue jesaua
%L°0 %0'0T | %E68 %00 |95 s |o8L $ | v9s'e S [ 8 $ | o008, $ uelsissy ujwpy "dway
%0 %0'0T | %E68 %00 |8SS sloLL'e sluese S| - s|ooL'te s Jafeuey |eJauag JuelsISsY
%L0 %0'0T | %E68 %00 a Silarts siik = Sifi- Sl S JuelsiSsy uppy
%L0 %E"66 %00 %00 | E6E s|ov'vs S| - St 5 $ | 008vS S SIUNODY JBWOISN)
IAITG SI3WOISN) P JudwWIdeue
%L0 %00t | %E6L | %00T |80T $ | 0051 s |z6e8TT  $| 0097 $ | 000'sT $ 5934 s1034Q

sasuadxg jjosAed

s8] jO siseg

u013I3301d

aild

12/0202 Ad
sjuawalinbay

3nusA3Y |810]

sayiodaye) 198png

sasuadxy jo uone

9T 118Vl

sisAjeuy 3dAIAS JO 1S0)
AGN1S 3LVY H3ALYM
12184510 ¥3LVM NOZVEVD



1'45/ /et

TE 0 ST ‘uoijeayisse;) 1§ "yaung

9TSL9LY w - 8IS-[JOL | WOIAOTSqU MMM :GIM

{dvd) | (wod)
sjuawalinhay

anuanay |e10}

UOIIBJISSE|] JO SIseg _ Aaede) _ Alpowwo)

SEN Aq pasedaid
%L°0 %'l | %e6S | %82E [9T6T  $[089°%0z S |vee'oor $|ozz'ze $|ooziar  § {ejo1-qns
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %00E |1SC s$|oos’e  s|evzor $|o0s'0r  $|oo00'sE S Bununoioy
%L0 | %0°0T | %E6S | %00t |S9T $|00E'T s|sev'er $|ooes S |oo0'st $ UpNY jejpueuly
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %0'0E |06 slogz't  s|o'e  $|osc'e  $|oo9'TT $ Joge Aesodway
sasuadx3 ysoddng
%L°0 %00T | %EB6S | %0O0E |ST ${otz S| svz'T $ | 0g9 $ 1001 s Jay3Q - sasuadxg anyo
%L'0 | %0°0T | %E6S | %00E |8T $ | osz $lzsy't $|ose $ [ oos‘e $ (VSMD) 8auelly swaisAs Jatem v
%L0 | %OO0T | %E6S | %O00E |LE s |o1s S | €20E S| oSt s |oot's S dupyuag Suluoipuo) Jiy
%L'0 | %00T | %EBS | %00E {Sv $ | oze s{sL9’e  $]0981T s |ooz's $ 8ges015 33130
%L0 %001 | %E6S | %0°0€ 2 S| - s - sl - $i- $ peoy / 830
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %00E |¥9T s|osg'e  $|9tete $|ovo'tt  $|o008'9€ $ S8R5 J3Indwo)
%L0 %0°0T %E6S %0°0E = S - S - S - s$|- S SIUaYy 19 S95831
%L'0 | %00T | %E6S | %00E | St s | 0g9 $|seLe  $|0e8T $ | oog's $ suopeyqnd 1 upuig
%0 | %00T | %E6S | %00E |8S s|ot8 s|zos'vt s|oer'z  $|oor's $ adeisod
%L'0 | %00T | %E'6S | %00E |6 s | 0gT SITLL $ | o8 s | oog't $ suondyasqng 1 sang
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %0'0E |9S€ s | oos $|v96c  $.Jo0sT  $|000's $ sayddns pue Jaido)
%L0 %00 | %E6S | %00E | €L $ | oto'T $|286's  $|o0e0’t ¢ |00T0T $ wawdinb3 1 sayddng
%00 | %0001 | %00 %00 - s|lootz  s| - s| - s]00t'z $ waysAg Julig sarem
%L0 %0°0T %E'6S %0°'0€ - S = S S S - S| - S FupinuBg WelsAs wie)y a4
sasuadxz aYO
%0 | %00T | %EGS | %ODE | €E $ | oor S|zt s|oset $ 1009y $ Jujuea|) O / dmydid yses)
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %00E |€L s$|ozo't $|ev0'9  $|o90t  $|oozOt S auoydaja)
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %OOE |8 s|omt $ 1299 $ | ogg s | oot S sen
%L0 | %00T | %E6S | %OOE |EIT s|oss't sjs9g'6 s |owLv S |o008'sT $ Apuey
DYO - sAIRN
%00 %0'0 %00 | %0001 C S| - 3 slooe'zt  s{ooz'zr s 1BYy10
%00 %00 %00 %0°00T - S - S - S - S|- S SI0IBULIOIYD
%L'0 %00 | %E69 | %OOE | w0V S| - $|900'6e 5| 068'9T ¢ |00£‘9S $ s20)A435 Buiaauidu3
uopINgLIIs|q °g suels ] ‘sjiam ‘aes snoauepaasiy
%L'0 %00 | %E69 | %0°0€ = Si - S S| - Si- $ asea dinb3 oapin
%L°0 %0°0 %E'69 | %00E - $| - S| - sl - s|- H wJejy opny
%L°0 %00 | %E69 | %OOE - s| - s - s| - $|- $ sjeusIen
%L'0 %00 | %E£69 | %00t E sl - sl - sy - S|- S uawdinb3 / 8ujujel
%L'0 %00 | %E£69 | %00e |0z sl - s|love't  $|ovs s | oos'T $ 1330 - swuely
%L°0 %00 | %E69 | %00E |8 sl - $|zoL S | 0g€ $ {0017 $ S3Uoyd suuely
%L'0 %00 | %E69 | %00E |0ST S| - s108y'PT  $|0L2'9 ¢ |006'02 $ UONUIAII JWLD
Aundes

sali0dale]) 1adpng

PanuIL03 'sasuadxy JO UoIIeIIJISSB)D

L1 31avL

sishjeuy 331136 J0 350D
AGNLS 3LVY 1LV
10181510 YILYM NOZVEVD



v w2

ZE 40 9T ‘ucnedyIsse|) 13 IPUNI

]| coeise ]| [6S 96 L

I5]ifoon;0TvRNs] | [ooT/0TETIIST N

o ——t

915£°9L9'008:33.4-)|0L | WO A0ISGU MMM :GIM
SEN Aq pauedaig

Tasuadxji8uneladplieio T

[e301-qns

1e21J1S5€(] 4O SisEg

12/0202 Ad
sjuawalnbay
anuanay jeio)

%S0 %S'0 2T S|ove't ¢ |eovert $|osv'sL  $|oozeT
%L0 %00 1S¢ O S|evz'bz  $|00S0T S| 000'SE S VINDS / vSD
%L'0 %00 151 Siti - S|6vs'PT  $|00E9  $]000TT s Z¥eqAed OdHA
%0 | %00 - st - s| - sl - $|- $ WEYnsuo) agew)
%L0 | %00T & SIS S| - oINS S|- $ uoddns a)isgam
%L'0 %00 8 S| iss $|eoL s | oge $|oot't S snoauey(eas|N
%L°0 %E'66 6 $|tet'T || S s| - s |ooz't $ asuadx3 1q3Q peg
%L°0 %0°0 ot s| - s | o6 S |ozy $ | oov't $ 994 Bu|s5330.d UBDT ¥MA
%L°0 %E'66 - S| - o S - S|- S $§I3yY) pawniay
sasuadxg Bupesado-uon
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %0°0E = s| - Sl (A gifl = - $|- $ 4410 - JuBtudinb3 g sjooL adjss
%L'0 %0'0 %EE9 | %0°0E s sifi=" s| - Syl $|- 5 SUOREJIUNWILIO)
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %0°0E - $| - Sili- s| - $|- $ 19usau J3Indwo) sdp sazem
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00E |vE SilE- sloce'e S| ow'T s | oos'y $ 1BWalY| /auoyd 1123 sdo Jatem
%L0 %00 %€'69 | %00E |voOT s| - slovo'or  $|o0SEY S |00SYT S UIN 78 JjedaY - SYIrUL BIIAIBS
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00€ |¥T sl - s |98eT S | 009 $ | 000 S |e3uay uawdinb3
%L°0 %00 | %€69 | %00¢ 3 Sl - st - s| - $|- $ 12nd aoyjaeg
%L'0 %00 | %E69 | %00E |/LT ] | $|e9sc  $|otrt s |ooLe S sasuadx3 JorresL
%L0 %00 | %E69 | %00E |v s| - $ | ovE s |ost s | oos $ Aazes
%L0 %00 | %E69 | %OOE | €T Sl S| vzt s |ovs s | oos‘t $ swuoyun adkojdws3
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %0°0E |LTT s| - $|ese’tt  $|o68y S |o0E9T $ 134 3PYIA
%L0 %00 %E'GI | %0OE |L9 3 s|evv's  $|o6L't S |00E6 S 500 (lews 73 sayddns doys
uawdinb3 g s|00) axpues
%L'0 %00 %E6Y | %0O0E |9 S| ss s | ve9 sloLz s | 006 $ 430 - 5894 J3YI0
%00 %00 %00 | %0°00T B s| - sl - sjoot'z  $}oot't $ s394 131eM D1B1S
%L0 %00 %EGY | %00E |T¥ ]| R s|880%v  $|0LLT s | 006's $ 5394 Auno) apissany
%L°0 %0°0 %E69 | %00E - silé - s| - s - $i- $ 5224 asea|dy ua|] Aunod
s9a4 SANO
%L0 %00 | %EGY | %OOE |L s{ - S | €69 s | oog s | 000T $ S{ESWN janeuy
%0 %00 %E'G9 | %00E | ST ]l s|szv'c  $|0s0T $ | 00SE S dujuel) / sreujwas
%L0 %00 | %E69 | %00€ - $| - St - | i Sl $ toaelL / Bujuresy
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %0°0E | L8T S lifee- s|€80'8T  $|o0€gL  $|ooT'9e S uesnsu| Ajjiqer |esauan
%L°0 %00 %E69 | %00E |9 SN~ S| vz s oLz s | oos [ voddng asgam
%L'0 %0'0 %E69 | %00E |LE sl = s|€09's  $|095T s |ooz's S IS JjosAed
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00E & g| c- sli=a- Siu=- s|- $ sagiey) axwas yueg
uoddng snoaue|jaaspn
%0°0 %0°'S %0'S9 | %00 - $|ss $ st s | oge s |oot't $ sadiey) 13 saa - |eda
%00 %00 | %00L | %OOE - [ LS St - sl - $|- S 8ujpun4 ueot /ueso - |eda
%0°0 %00 | %00L | %0OE E sl = s|oso's  s|o19'c  S$|o0L'8 $ 12Ut0sIad - jedan
%00 %00 | %00L | %00€ . s| - Silich: Sk - s |- $ P4033Y JNignd WY Umoig - [e3a]
%00 %00 %00 | %0°00T - s - 5|~ s |oog'ot  $|ocosor $ Ja1em - {eda]
%0°0 %00 | %00L | %00€ 2 s| - ¢ |o8e’'se ¢ |ozi'st ¢ |00v'0S $ _sucwu-_m»”wo._
|

sajiodaie) 193png

nuiuo3 ‘sasuadx3 jo UoNE3ISSe|)

8T 318VL

sisAjeuy aJjaIas JO 350
AGN1S 3LVY HILVM
131491510 YILVM NOZvavd



m—‘[ Iz

9TSL'94. _4-8914-)j0) | wod'Aodsqu mmm qam

ZE JO LT ‘uoneayisse|d 13 "1oung . s8N Aq pasedaig
%60 %0'S %2°€L %p'T2 %0°00T anuanay Jo juadiad
9v6's $1005°'02  $|90S'9€0°T § | L62'€OE $|0SZOTYT § 3,03y BNUaADY I9N palsn(py
%0°€E aseaJdu| ajey paialoid 17/0207 Ad
000'SLE'T $ $a1eY JUBIIND I8 AINUDABY )Y paldafold

0SZT'9TY'T S| saseasu) ajey sayy ‘Aay aley 198.e) TZ/0Z0Z AJ
1[3A37 31eY JUalin) o) Juswisnipy

S35U3GXJ JO UONEINISSE]) 0 SIUILISNIPY
Panuiluo3 ‘s3suadxl jo uonesyisse|)

0z 3navl
UD|d jo1ouould Woif ¥33Y) 3, bay anuanay 1aN
%Y 1T 19:0°00T sjuawannbay anuanay fo uonvIO)Y

e e e

slsse'za ¢ $|'s6z'vse § | 86E'vSIT § SINIWIHINDIY ANNIATY 1IN
%00 %0'S | %TEL | %bIT s |(aL6) S s [iz61'y) S $ 2W03U| 35313}
%v'0 %0'S | %TEL | %yIC S |(e9€) $ S |teos't) ¢ $ awoou| Supesado-uoN snoauejjaasIN
%0 %0'S %TEL | %¥'TT |(LOT) $ |lpee't) s |(9ec'sT) ¢ |(zsv's) S [{oo9'sT) S 3W0dU| 85837 JaMOY |13
%0 %0'S %TEL | %YIT |(EV) $ |(g0s) $ |lsov'z) S |psT'z) ¢ l{oozor)  $ 2WOdU| JUBWSILS 481981
%0 %0's | %TEL | w1z |(€12) $ [(vese) s |9ot'Le)  $ ((8ss'OT) § [ooL'0S)  $ 3NUBAJY XeL - WJOo[eA PV
INUIAIY Sno3UE||IISIN
%0 %0'S | %TEL | wr'TT (L) S |(ss9's) S [{ovT'e8) S [(8ze'vz) S [(009ETT) S anuaAdy xey - 5334 Ag pueis
%40 %0'S | %TEL | %¥'TL - s| - sl - s - sl - $ (aa1u3s MaN) 934 sapjioe] Jiseq
%0 %0'S %TEL | %Iz |(2) s |(s2) $ |(99g) s ((zot) s {(oos) $ s394 I3Y) pausniay
%0 %0°S %CEL %y'TC - S - $ - S - S - S S)|ig J2IBA - 334 JUBPPU|
%b'0 %0'S | %TEL | WwyIE |(2) $ |(o8) $ fter't) S |(eve) $ |loo9'T) $ 1119 J21EM - $834 JUNO32Y MBN
%0 %0'S | %TEL | %v'IT - s - s - s - sl - $ 324 JUBWa)eISULBY UaN
%¥'0 %0'S | %ceL | %tz |logr) S {levs't) ¢ |(8s9'ze) ¢ |(eE9'9) S |(ooo'tE)  § s|iig Ja1em - 5334 Ajjeuad
%b'0 %0'S | %TEL | %viC - s - s - s - $| - $ jeAowsYy 1 ||e3sul Ja3aN
%b'0 %0'S | %CEL | %¥IT - Ol S| - S| - S| - S awoou| mojd a4
NUIAIY 334
s|itg Jo1eM - Sajes aui4
DN OHIG
sajes Ajpowwo)
s)jig Jazem 91ey aseq
aNUaAY ey 18M
5aNUINIY IVY-UON 5527
%y'0 %0'S | %CEeL | %viz [8e0'8 S| €0e's6 S |ist'rov't $ |ooo'ory $|86v'pI6T § SANINIFHINDIY INNIAIY TVIOL
%00 %00 | %0001 | %00 S sl - s {vo0'29r S - s|vo0'2sy  $ sasuadx3 |ejde]) papund aley
_ sy puedig [eyte |
%0°0 %00 | %0°00T | %00 |- $i- $ |veE'LET S| - AL SiuawAeg ad}AIS 1990 (€301
%00 %00 %0°00T %00 - S - S - S 0 S|~ s RN E R CEREIENY]
%00 %00 | %000T | %00 = s| - sieoL's8  $| - s | sos's8 $| IuswWaIBy B{eS JUSWIBISU| [BUONIEN ISIl4 UOIZ
%00 %0'0 | %000T | %00 g S| - {1698 S| - s | 169'81 S 9T#853 ON UEOT YMQA
" sjuawhed asias 1990
d \/ dV O d \/ dV O 0¢0
C13J3}0.d alua Doy odaje g
6T 318VL
sishjeuy a2jaIas J0 350
AQNLS 3LVY ¥3LYM
12141510 Y3LYM NOZVEYD




wa( 1z

ZE 40 8T ‘5101084 uonedojy

$1032D4 uonPIO[IY

9TS£'9£9°008:93.4-1101 | WO ACESqQU MMM :qIM
SgN Aq pasedaud

‘(jonuup *6°3) awn jo pojad paifidads

D 43N0 1310M fo (Mo}f) uondwnsuod |D10] 3yl YIM pP3IDII0SSD 31D SISOD 3sal| :S)S0D pain[ay Aypowwo)

*19243U0 Aq 385 S) US|Sap 318 SB PPN|INS JAWOISNI IDBIIUCD '
"UGIYX3 JAYIOUR U 135 934 |BIUDS J339W A|YIUOW B BABY SJIWI0ISAD UOJIONIISUC) ‘2

Xspx'pa3oindiuniN~Z0IT0D " LHOdIYIOYSN U0ZDGD) :s3|l 22n0S
“Ajyauow sjiig AMD '6T0Z Wodj st uopdwinsuo) T

LOS v ¢ Wenuo)
%00T 60S'TET _jexol
%S'T YE6'T , UoNINIIsuo)
%0°0 8¢ SJIDIBN 92IAIDS Bl
%9°ST TES0C sJ2191A uoneSiL
%00 = SI3I3N |elIsSnpu|
%8'8 79S'TtT SI313\ [e19J3WWO)
%L'T 02T SJ9I3IA JUBWIUIBA0D
%0°'T 8EE'T [e13uapisay Ajjwed-IynA

ST6'E6 |enuapisay Ajiwey a|8uls

SWN|OA . (4)
[B10] JO 3U243d| Bwin|op

SSej) Jawolsn)

101284 U0I1E20]|Y ALIGOWINOD 343 §0 Juswdojanag
TZ318V1

sisAjeuy 22jA19S JO 150D Ja3e M
AGNLS 3LYVY H3LVMWN
1D1ULSIa YLV NOZVvavd



z

i‘-{‘ll I

2€ J0 6T ‘s1030e4 UonEI0)|Y

5103904 Uo;IOO0[Y

9162°9£9°008 9344wl | WO AOTSqQU MMM :GIM
SEN Aq pasedasd

"PUDWAP SIY3 123W 03 Panbal sannf Jo 321s wnuixow 3y}
s Jujod 3U0 10 P3JINbaJ PUDWIBP WNWIXDUW 343 Y1IM P3IDII0SSD SIS0 51500 panyay Auiodo)

‘(a|qeyeae Jou elep Aep yead) erep Ajyiuow yead uo paseg ‘T

€ET TZ6'Y 60L'E enuo)y

%001 vLT'LT 6560T fejol
b4 Wy 6TL 191 uoIINIISUOD)
%10 98°¢ 6 Z SI913A 2IAI3S 3l
%E'6T S6°T 8€E’E TTLT $1313N uonesi|
%0°0 V/N 0 0 SI219 |elISnpu|
%0°L T4l 8 602'T 96 SIS [Bl3IBWWOD
%6°T vLT (1143 €81 SJ1919A JUBWILIBAOD
%60 Wi 89T [4n" jennuapisay Ajlwed-n Ny
TZS'TT 9z8'L jeljuapisay Ajwe4 3j8uis

{324)
asn AJYjuon SSE|) Jawo3sn)

103284

Yy} as
YT J032e4 L Bay)asn

AjUIuo(n dead | Ajyluon yead

YIUoIA XEIA 3desany
103284 Uo13E0||V (HLINOIN XVIA) ALIDVYdVYD 2431 o Juswdolanag

ez aavl

sisAjeuy a21A13§ JO 150D 133
AQNLS 1LVY Y31LVM
1OIY1SIa HILVYM NOZVEYD




iSo( >

Z€ 30 07 ‘5103084 uonedoy

5103004 UONIDIOjjY

9152'929°008:9944-10L | wod A0Ssqu mmm gom
SGN Aq pasedasd

‘Buyljig pup 363504 ‘Buippal-133apy Sa|dwiDx3 "WasAS ay3 uo SIAWOISNI fO UOII3[3P JO UOIIPPD Y3 YHM
AIDA 51500 353y ) “WSISAS 131DM Y] UO J2W0ISNI D BUIADY Y1IM P3IIDIIOSSD SISO : S1S0) pajniay Jauiosn)

Xspx"pa1pNdIuDIAITZOIT0D " 1YOdIYIOYSN " U0ZDGD) Sl 33IN0S
"Ajyauow s|j1g MO "6TOT J9qUIaIaQ WO 51 IUna) 413N T

816 __leor
T peqjuo)
%0001 | LT6 ot
%L°0 9 uoINAISU0)
%S0 S SI9I3N I21MIBS B4l
%C'T IT S1913N uoesii)
%1°0 T SI913 N jelasnpuy
%C'E 6¢ SII9N |EIIBWIWIO)
%8'0 L S1913 A JUBWIUIBAOL)
%10 14 jelauapisay Apwed-1nn
%TI°'E6 758 jerjuapisay Ajwey aj8uls

S1913 N
|e304 JO Juddad| ' SSE|D 18W0o1sN)
10 J3qLUNN

10124 UOIIBIO|Y YIOLSND 343 Jo Juawdojanag
€2 319VL

sisAjeuy 3210496 JO 350D Ja1em
AGNLS 31VY 431YMm
1D141S1Q Y3LVM NOZVEVYD



9TS£'929'008:98.44-jul | WO A0SSqU MMM :gapM

ZE JO TT ‘siuiodyjeasg J3|L Yd4S SEN Aq paJedald

\‘6“ iz

"J31} yoea je uoiidwnsuod yead 393w 03 Aydedes aAlIBNWND |EUOIIIPPE ALY SI SIYL ‘b
“Ja13 U2AIS e 03 adiasas apiaoLd 03 palinbal Aydeded syuasaidal 3l Hyeauq Jan 3yl 01 dn uojiduinsuod Yead BAIRINWND BYY S SIYL 'E
"S1aW0ISN3 Jo Jaquinu 3y3 Aq paljdiynuw yealq Ja1) ay) syussaldal 1213 1si 3y 03 paledojje Aydede) 'z
Xs|x'payo[ndiupiN~Z0IT02 LYOdIYIOVSN U0ZDGD) PUD XSIX'ZQITOI AHYINWNS SLIIV NYNIJ U0ZDqD?) :S8jy 321nos
*BIEP JaWOISND 6TOZ AM?D dY) uo paseq si ejep uopdwnsuo) T

sjurodypaag 4311 Y¥4S

%0°00T EVS'S x : : 1B301
%5°S9 0€9‘c T2S'TT ¢ € 4311 01dn yead €491l
%S VE €161 168°L ¢ C431L 01 dn yead [RLIE
%0°0 0 8L6'S . Mpede) T 1811 xew T8l

jejo] jo
SUELIEY:|

o (32Y) paJinbay
Ajpede)
jeuon

_{pu)
uondwnsuo)
Ajyauopy

uodi4asag

$1039e4 U011BI0||Y (HLNOIW XVIN) ALIDVdVYD Y3d 123uapisay Ajlwe aj3uis ayy jo juawdo|anag
Sz 319vL

Xxs|x'pa3ojndiubiN~Z0IT0I LYOdIHIOVSN U0Z0qoD pup xsix-ZOITOI AYYWINNS S0V NVYNIJU0zoqn) :s3)lf 33inos
‘elep JowWolsnd 107 GMD 241 uo paseq st elep uondwnsuod) ‘g

‘uondwnsuod Jawwns 33eI3AR S| YaIYym Oy HT 03 39S Juiod deauq g JaiL
"uozeqe) ul uoidwinsuod Joopul 3FeIIAR JO 3JBWNS3 ue ‘uondwnsuod Jajum afelane 03 19s Julod yeauq T Jat) T

%00T ST6'E6 (eaol
%02 618'8T = €491
%ET 012 PYPT 1
%LS 999°€S PYy/ T 4811

uonindwnsuo)

uondwnsuody ; Julodyeaig
y4S jejoi

paizadx3 Al4auo

30 93ejusdiad

431} Aq uondwnsuo)

vZ Navil

12/020Z Ad SYIWO1SND TVILNIAISIY ANV J1ONIS
Y04 SYO.LOVH ALDVAVI TYNOLLIAAV 40 LN3IWJOT3AIC

udisag aiey/sisAjeuy 231A13$ J0 150 123N
AQNLS 31LVY ¥31VM
1OIYLSIA Y3LVM NOZVaYD



Z€ 40 7Z ‘so1eY 1RNUO)

915£°9£9°008:9814-|j0] | WO ACSSqU MMM :GaM
SN Aq patedasd

‘sqe) sajey pasodoid 1 JuaLn) pue sagiey) paxy4 pasodold 3as

*SJ3SN |BIDIBWIWOD 10§ Buy([ig Youl OT 01 SIYINMS UY) JIWOISNI SIY3 YAYM Ul ZZ0Z ‘TE J9quaaqg pus salel 19e1uo)
‘05 abod ‘fpd'ipurd (£LT°€T v) APNIS 310y JSIDAM 1I013SIQ JFI0M UOZDGDH OT 3|1} 3IINOS Ul PUNOY S JUBLND T

Isaviereiis)|iZoeT eS| vLZiiius))

£73'08T
6zv'se S

LOS'tY

90'vS
S0'69€°TS

22/TTOT Ad
sajey pasodoad

Wslilesziiet sl
9/G'SLT 79v'0LT
1094 S| L6L'9T S
LOS'vb LOS'vt

v6°'€S £€8'€S
S0°00€°TS | 90'€gz'es

1 ualin)

anusnaylaieylsuiuielliay

Jali0Isnp I3 elzuoituoujianuanay a1edlpaieLiisy

BNUBADY 3|qRIBA Palew sy
anuaAay paxi4 palewns]

{10y) uopndwnsuo) palewisy

ajey ajqenen
a1ey paxi4

:UDjd [PI2UDUIH 43d 3nUBA3Y 310y Ul 3sD3JoUf PII3[oly

TZ/0Z0C Ad | 0Z/6T0C A4

}e13U0)

9¢ 319vVL

‘S31VYH LOVYHINOD 40 LNIWHO13A3IA
udisaq 21ey/sisAjeuy 329§ JO 150D 31BN

AQNLS 31V HILYMN
LIIY1SIA HALVM NOZVEVD

i S



e
/w,.\lnu 2€ J0 £Z abed

|63/ /

WoL-asqumwh | 9162°9/9°008
SAN Aq pasedaid

934 dn 335 JunoJdY Paala, 40f Jpd-(z) INOYddY 02 PT T 1Hoday jpuid~uozogo) Apnis 334 SGN T 3|1 24N0S 5,19141510 43d T
00°vrTs 994 uopeaqijeldy 4919 jeiol
oo'zets 00°27Z1$ JiedaJ J1932W 104 W3 e
00°CZTS 00°221S Jledal J313W pue [SAeS] 1O 3w Jjels
13wioisn) Anoy Jad
01 9dieyd 150D Joge]

sinoH Joqgey 394 uoneiqiessy 1313

334 NOILVYS8ITvI3Y Y313 40 LNIINJOTIAIA :8Z 318VL

",934 dn 135 3unoea3y paiaia, 10f Jpd (z} GIAOYddY 02 HT T 140day jpui4~uozogo) Apnis 334 SGN T 9|y 934N0S 19143510 43d T

0S°2ZSTS 884 aAREISIUJWIPY [e10L

00'19S 00°ZZ15 221440 Ule|n 01 AJBAI[RQ JRIBIAI UOIIINIISUO)
0s°0€$ 002Z1S UNo23y Sujuado
00195 00°2¢1$ Suissanoid uonedddy

J3Wwolisn) (Anoy 19d
SINOH 10ge] Si9W01ISN) MIN 10} 934 9AlIBIIS
01 adiey) 150D J0qge]

334 JAILVHLSININGY ¥313W 40 AINFIWLOTIAIQ -LT T18VL

sisAjeuy ajey uonINIISUO)
AQNLS 31VY HALVYM
LI1ULSIQ Y31V NOZYEYd



Q
N

s

Z¢ 10 ¢ abed

woo*AoBsqumww | 91.52'929'008
SN Aq pasedaigd

*1e9A Jad uoneyu) %€ sawnssy "1a3aw Sujuondunyew e Sujiedss Joy 3502 pue awil Jogej uo paseg (€]
*Jeah Jad uoBYU) HE SaWNSsY ‘1313w Jujeisut pue Junodle ujuado ‘uonedlidde Buissadosd 1Joy 150D pue aun) Joqej uo paseq [z]
*P3uJINIBI JOU 51 1) ) ‘ABDA JUBLIND BY) U] J9ISLW Y] Suideydal Jo 1502 uo paseq [T)

594 JO UOREUE[dXg

sajpy pasodold '3 Jualind uj umoys saad Ajyiuow

(€] [LR7445 £9°9925 988575 TE'ISTS 00°vvs 934 uolje.ql|easy 118N
[2] V9ILTS v9°9915 6£°'TI9TS 80°/51S 0s°ZSIS 294 anjjensiulwpy
[1] 8LTTZ'TS WA 24 Z8'¥80CS 60°'%20'2S YT'S96'TS usodaq Ja1ay uopdNIISU0)

334 awjj-auQ.
/ afnpayas 394
SZ/ve0C Ad | ©Z/E€T0T Ad | €2/220C A4 | TZ/1Z0C Ad | T1Z/020C A4 13WO015N7 UORINIISLOT Pasepdn

994

jo uoneuejdx3

SYIWOLSND NOILINYLSNOD H04 31NAIHIS 334 431vddn 67 319v1
sisAjeuy aley uonINIISUo)

AQNLS LYY Y3LYM

JORLSIA HILVM NOZVEYD

=z )




I ‘5‘5’ e

915L°9£9°00. . -4-110L | WOI'A0T5quU- MMM GIM

T€ JO S ‘seduey) paxyy pasodoud == S8N Aq pasedasg
05291V 0SZ'9TY dwanbay anuanay 18
9LT't0C $ 9/1's0C $ S9)EY DBIIUO) W) SNUBAIY

%00T YLO'ETZ'T § %00T VLO'ETT'T § i  |eao)
%0 €60'S S %0 £60'S S 51507 Palejay - U0NIBI0Ld 3|4
%0'S 98E'09 $ %0°S 98809 S $350) paiejay - JBwoIsn)

(aJeys paxy)

%9'vE osL'6ty  $ %T€L 808288 S 51507 patejsy - Aoeden

{aJeys oi38wnjon)
5150) parejay - Apeded
150D pajeay - Ajjpowwio)

%9°8€ 85089y § %00 = S

%v'IZ 98L'65¢ $ %v'IT 982652 $
8|qeleA %09/ paxid %0y  PEICEICINA RN E ERATA
{T2-0202) s3uawaiinbay (1Z-0202) sjuawa.rnbay Aso03a1E)

2NUBAIY 19N paisnipy. 3NUB3AIY 318N paisnipeun jeuonaun4

'S3a30Y pasodoid i 53Insay v¥Sod
SLNINIHINDIY INNIAIFY YILYM 40 NOILYIOTIV : TE 318VL

‘¢-5 a1qel 9-IN YMMY woJyy ae sajed MO} JaJaW 3DIAIBS Y 7
‘T-8 9jGEL T-W VMMV WO 28 S318I MO S8 T

oooce oov'y 00012 00z'y youi 0T
00°ovT 008t 00°0vT 0082 yui g
SI3I3YN I 5501 2uiqing
0008 009'T 00°0S 000'T yaui g9
00°'SE 0oL 00°'se 00s yaui
’ your g
008 03T 00'8 091 yaur z
00's 0ot 00°'s 0ot Yyour gt
052 0s 0S¢ 0s yaur ¢
0ST o€ 0ST (43 Yyoul /g
00'T (o174 001 0z you g/s

- -8/5 0
yaui-g/s 03 Y2ut-g/5 03 Ayedey

Aauajeninby Azuzjeainb3y EEET 3215 1913 N

219N pJEpuelS

0g 318VL

usisaq aiey/s|sAjeuy adAIBS JO 150D J3IEM
AGNLS 3LVYH HILYM
1D144S1Q Y3LVYM NOZVEYD




N
3
?

Z€ §0 97 ‘sedsey) paxyy pasodosd

Sabioy) paxj§ pasodoid

9T5£°9£9'008:99.4-{{01, | WX AOTSqU" MMM :GIM

SaN Aq pasedalg

%0°0 %001 YLO'ETT'T S %0°00T "TOE'LSET $ 1e301

%ZT %Y'E 691'TY S %C'T vI8'9T S UORINIISUO)

%rEL- %0°0 - S %VET SZSI8T  § joenuo)

%v°0- %S0 ove’s S %60 860°ZT S SI9IDN 2IIAIBS BIH

%Z°0T %S°LT ov8'cte  § %E"L Y91'66 S sIa18N uopesu)

%ZT- %0'0 99 ) %C'T LBY'9T S SI91RW [elIsnpuj

%y°I- %L £88'98 S %9°'8 L£9°9TT ¢ SID)3N [e1IBWWO)

%E0- %8'T SST'1T S %T'T TIE'8C ) SI9JaN JUBILIBAOD

%E0 %6°0 L20'TT S %9°0 888°L S |enuapisay Ajwes-pInN

%0t %."89 688'CE] S %L'Y9 LLE'BLE S |lenuapisay Ajiwey a3j8uis

e RS TR oo jo o |anuanoy 31
- EOzlo el (s 0/101GEN | SO . e LRI
O N ETEICC T I 6102 - anuanay ajey
SLNINIYINDIY ANNIAIY 40 AYVININNS IDIAYIS-30-1S0D : €€ 319V.L
2%0°00T %0 %S B3 66 %I

%00T VLO'ETZ'T $ | €60°S $ | 98€09 s |ost'ety $ | 85089y ¢ |98L%6ST S juswannbay snusAaYy JaN [eI0L
%V'E 69T'TY - S6E TLV'LT Z8b'6T 0z8'c uonRdNIIsuUo)
%00 - = - . L . enuo)
%9°0 ove’s €60°S 6CE 6T¢C L2444 SS SIIBN DIIAIRS 2414
%S°LT ov8‘eTe . veL I8 LY¥'06 LSS'0V s1a19 uonediy)
%00 99 . 99 ¥ 3 = SI919IN [ersnpul
%CL L8898 B 0T6°T 8LE'6T 65L°TE ov8'ce SI3}3N |e1Iawwo)
%8'T §ST'1T - 15517 9LLL 149'8 8vE'Y S1313|A JUBWIUIBA0Y
%6°0 L20'TT - €9¢ 6E8'E 8TV €¥9'C |equapisay Ajlwed-3nial
%.°89 688'€EE8 ¢ S | 8€2'98 ¢ |sse'6lz S| viT'ztE | Tes'ssT S [epuapisay Ajiwe4 9j8uis

4D
51500 pale|ay 24DYS PIxid AL
s3,bay 53,bay Ay 53500 pajelsy Ji433Winjo | S3S0) paiejay

':o:umuo‘_ ﬂmoﬂmw
3INUBAIY 13N 921A13S ) -13WoIsNn) >w_uﬂnm“_v u S350 pajejay | -Alpowwao) $3558|) J2WOISN)

13N S02 40 % 10150) -Aeden

sjusuodwo) uoneslyisse))
I e IR L S v e ) 3 (3190140 %09 / PaXId %0p) S1uawainbay anuanay 33N - S33oY pasodoid|
T2/020Z Ad - SIN3W3IYIND3IY INNIAIY 1IN QILSNFAV 40 NOILYIOTIV : Z€ 318VL

ugisaq a3ey/sisAjeuy IS JO 150D JANEM
AQNLS 31VH HALVM
12141S1Q Y3LVM NOZVEVD



1671 162

Z€ 30 £7 ‘sefsey) paxyy pasodoid

4-1101 | wodAoSsqu-mmm :qam
SEN Aq pasedald

91SL'9L9°0L

“Jajaw a4} Jo Ayeded dqnedpAy ays pue azis 233w Aq pajedolje ase s3sod Aapede) p
"5J9WOISND JO JIQUINUY {810} AL} AG S150 JBWOISND [B30] 3Y3 SUIPIP AQ JSWOISND LIEd 0] PIIEJOfIe ale SIS0D JAWOISND) 'E
T-g 3|qel ,s3610y) puo ‘5334 ‘sajoy Ja10M fo S3|dIduLd, “TIN JONUDIY YAMY 3]l 83Jn0S T

Xspxpa3oIndIuDN~Z0IT0D " LYOdIYIDVSN UOZDGO] Pud XSIX'ZOITOI AUYWINNS SLIDV NYNIJ 40200 isajy 33unog
*AyIucuws sjg QM) “6TOT 133l JO) SSB|I JDWOISND PUB IZIS A] SIBJW JO JAQUINN T

88S'6LY S 3 $ €w's S SvI'vs S E8S‘9Y S 9898 s ozL'tt $ €I6'TT $ BIT'BEE S sadley) 1939 AJYIUO WIDJ BNUIABY |€30L
TES'6TIY S | - LSE'S 98Y'ES £9v'SY LSE'8 ¥98°0T 0€S'0T €Lv'28¢ sagsey) Ayoede)
L5009 ¢ ¥ S 99 $ 699 S 6IT'T S 6¢¢€ $ 958 $ €8€1 S Sp9'ss S sadiey) Jawolsn)
sadiey) 1933N A[YIUOW WOJ) INUIABY [enuuy
885'6LY $ §150D J9J3A paxyd jelo]
TES'BIY 51507 Aydede)
£150°09 S $3S0D JBWOIsSn)
sadsey) 4213 AjyIuow 03 pRIedo)ly SIS0 paxid |[enuuy
€5'558'S$ | Z6°T0LS 0Z°TSYS SE°82Z$ LLYUTS ET'SLS LTLvS VE'EES adiey) Ja10N Appuopyjerol
¥0°058'SS | EV°969% TLSYYS 98'22Cs 6C'6ETS ¥9°69$ 6L°TVS 98°L2$ b {uruow/123y/¢) 51500 Aoeded
67°'SS 6°'SS 6t°'SS 61°'SS 6t°'SS 6'SS 6t°'SS 6t°'SS ¢ (AUoW/123v/$) s1s03 Jawoisn)
sadseys 2in19S paxid Ajysuon
SSZ'T - 14 09T 9T ST €€ [43 S8 SJ2)3N Judjeanb] jeo)
ooore 00'st 009t 008 00°'s 0sc 0s'T 00T . 401304 A320dD) 2noIPAK
(413 e T 0T LT S €T 114 Sv8 S3UN0Y /519391 €301
9 - - 9 - . - - - uonINIISUD)
11 = = - L T T G 4 sJa13 uonedul|
T . T N - » - - - SIBN [eLnsnpu|
6C = = [4 L € € T €1 SIIBW |EIDIBWLWO)
L - - T € - 1 = 4 S19313IN JUDWILIIA0D
14 = # o T ] T % £ [enuapisay Ajwed-gINN
58 2 = T 5 T L 0z | S8 jenuapisay Apwe 3j8uig

Yul 0T

yaul ¢

youi €

| 8zis pue sse|)

Yul g/t T yaul v/g ydui g/g

Ag SJB33IAl jO JBqUINN

(3190107 %09 / PaXid %0b) Siuauialinbay anuanay JaN - S0y pasodoid)

Sabioy) pax|d pasodoid

1Z/020Z A4 HO4 SIDYVHI IDIAY3IS ¥YIL1IW QIXI ATHLNOW 40 NOLLYINDIVD : vE 318VL

ugisaq aiey/sisAjeuy adnIas J0 350 JajeMm
AQNLS 31VY HILYM
1J141SIQ ¥31VM NOZVavd



(66, (2

T€ 40 8¢ ‘seSsey) paxniy pasodoig

9T52°9£9°008:2324-1101 | w02 noSsqu-mmm :qam
SaN Aq pasedasd

“J912W ay3 Jo Ajeded JynespAy ay) pue azis Jalaw Aq pajedojje dse s3sod Aypede)
‘SJIWOISNI JO JIGUINY [€10] 3Y3 AQ 53502 JBLIOISND |30} DY) SUIPIAIP Aq J2WO3SND LYIES 03 PRIEIOJE I 53501 JAaW0ISN) '€
*€-G 9|qel, %, 33unuauIoW puD bujisa] ‘UOIIDJDISU] ‘UDIIIAIBS - SIAIDN JAIOM,, ‘GIN JONUDW VMY 131l 92IN0S ‘2

XS|X'PIBINCIUON"Z0IT0I LYOdIYIOVSN 10Z0gD) pud Xsix' 7010 AYYWINNS SLIIV NVNIS U0Z0go) :Sajy 32in0s
“AlYIUOW Sijiq AMD "6TOZ S2qWaIaQ 404 SSE JDWOISNI pue 3zis Aq SI919W JO Jaquiny ‘T

er's $ | L8t $ 8ps'T (3= 5 ¢ sadiey) Ja19N AJJIUORN WoLy INUAAIY [EI0)
£60'S WLt TSE'T - safieyd Awdede)
62E s |eet $ 86T s - S sadsey) Jawoisny
safiey) Ja12|A A|YIUOIN WIOL) BNUBAIY [ENUUY
Ter's S 5150 J2ISINI POXI] €101
€60'S $3S07) U01}23)0.4d 34 '3 Ajdede)
6Z¢ S §150)) JaWwolsn)
sadieyd 4939 AJYIUOWN 03 Palel0||Y SIS0D Paxid jenuuy,
96118 8L°0L$ SO'VES " adliey) 219N MyIIOW (210]
LTYITS 0E'S9 S| 4582 $ , (Yluow/133y/¢) s3500 Adede)
6v°SS 6v°SS 6t°SS ¢ (Yuow/1y/$) s1s0D) Jawosn)
sadaey) aspuas paxid Apjuon
oes 082 ove P S} Juajeanb3 ey
ooort 0008 00°SE » 403904 Aondo) oynoipAH
S [4 £ e SJUN0JDY /S1818 N |e301
S 4 € - S1500 pale|ay - UOPIN0I4 3i4

(2190140 %09 /. Paxid %0p) s3uawanbay anuaaay JaN - S310Y pasodold|

12/020T Ad HO4 SIDYVHI IDIAYIS YILIW FHId ATHINOW JO NOLLYINDTIVD : SE 318VL

udisaq a1ey/sisAjeuy 3INIS JO 150D 133 M
AQNLS 31VYH Y3LYM
1O14LSI0 Y3 LYM NOZVEVD



m Z€ 0 62 ‘safiey) awnjop pasodoid

\6‘71‘

9TS£°9L9°008 - —4-)|0L | WO ACSSqU MMM :qam

SHN Aq pasedald
0€'S$ %89 969°L6v S | vLT'CIE S| 2¢es'sst  $ ST6'E6 jele)
v8°CIS %C'EE [AT:-R374 LEV'YOT 9.T'LE 618'ST - € 4811

00°LS %9'0C TLO'0ST 8€ELL0T EEETY (11528 ¥4 144 fL TR
86'TS %9171 €I090T S - S| €T090T § 999°¢€S

(324/3)

sa1ey paiall

INUINRY B1eY
JLI3WN|OA
18301 0 %

sadieyd
‘|OA Wouy
3,bay "A3y
_W 198ie] |e30]

5350
paudissy
Ayaede)

53507 2 (HA/PY)
paudissy uondwinsuo)
Alpowiwo) 1318/

sajey pasai]

yealg 41|
|enuspisay Ajiued4-s)3uis

(3/qD110/ 9609 / x| %0y) siuawalinbay anuanay 13N - sa10Y pasodold |

LE A1avl

Xsjx'paloindiuDN"Z0IT 0D " LYOdIYIDYSN "U0ZDqD) pun XsiX-Z0IT0I AHYWINS SLIJV NYNIJ TU0zoqo) :sajf aainos

*S{Ig AJYIUOW I YIIYM EIEP JBWOISNI 6TOZ QM 243 UO paseq s) ejep uondwnsua) 7
“AjyIuow sjiq QMD "6T0Z J2qwiadag J0j SSe[I JAWOISNI PUB 3zis AQ SIA1DW JO JSqUINN 'T

%09 vv8'LeL  $|8S0°89y S |98L‘65¢ S| 6GOS'TET L16 el
wiofiun %6°'T €0E'ET 81'6T 0Z8'E vE6'T 9 uoiIdNIISu0)
wuoftuf) %00 66¢C 44 SS 8¢ S SIDIDN IAIBS B4
uuofun %8°0T P00'TET Lyb'06 LSS'0Y 1£5°02 1T S4313 uopesiu)
wioftur 98 %0°0 5 - - 0 T Si933|A |BlISNpU}
wiofiun %9 665'SS 65L°T€ ov8‘te 29S'TT 6¢ SI313A [Bl2IaWW0]
uuoflun %T'T 6TOET 1498 8SYE'Y T02'C L SJ319N JUBWILIAACD
uuofiun %9°0 26’9 18Z'v £¥9°C 8EE'T 4 [enuapisay Ajjwed-i3n
paJaiy 0€°SS %0'TY 969°L6y S| viT'TTE S| Tes's8T S ST6'E6 ¥58 jeijuapisay Ajlwed 3|8uis

P350d0odd

(2190110/ %09)/.p2X1d %0 ) sIuaWalnbay 3nUaA3Y 3N - S330Y pasodoid)

9€ 371GVl

T1Z/020C AJ 404 SIDYVHD JIWIINNTOA G350d0Yd

u8isaq ajey/sisAjeuy adnaas Jo 150D J93eM
AQNLS 3LVY H3Lvm
1I1YLSIQ HILYM NOZVEVD



Hoo‘ 1t

9152°'9/9°008:9344-]j0L | W0I'A0TSU MMM :qa
2€ J0 O€ ‘saey pasodold g Juaun) SBN Aq pasedasd

SPvTS €0'PTS 79°ETS CTETLS ¥8e1S TTss PY +T €911
88°LS S9°LS €LS TT°LS 00°LS SE'ES PY v1-8 ¢ 4911
s 91°2s (1) A4 €0°CS 86'TS €S'IS PY L0 TJ31L
SEalg pasodolg
(s1awolsn) Y4S) aiey pasail
V/N V/N V/N 90'v$ Y6°ES £8'ES ajey esuo)
LE°SS 1TSS 90°s$ T€°9S 195 96'TS (uoPnuISUO) + YJS-UoN) 18y WoHUN
:pawnsuo) J3jep Jo oy Jad ajey
_ _ - sebipy) Aypowwio)
6L VETS 98°'0ETS SO°LZTS SE'ECTS 9.'6TTS A4 youi 8
L9°6LS SE'LLS 60°SLS 16°CLS 8L°0LS C9'0€TS yaui 9
youl ¢

£€'8€S TTLES €T'9€$ 80'SES SO'vES ¥S'19$
:sediey) aa1n4as aui4 AjyIuoN

T9°ZESS 60°LTSS €0°20SS Y L8YS TTELYS ££798T5 {Yyaui €) sse191A UOIIONIISUOD
SY'065'9S | 67'86€£°9$ | €T'TTC'9S | SO'69€'CS | SO'00ETS | 90eceTs (youi OT) 32e43UOD
20°06L$ 10°£9L5 L9YPLS 86°CCLS 26'T0LS LLPTS'TS Youl ¢
¥8'£05S Y0 €6YS 89'8/1S YLYIYS 0Z'ISVS LTTL6S Your €

10°L5¢2$ (4745 STeres 0T'SETS SE'82T$ v0'06YS your
¥6'79T$ 0Z'8STS 6S°ESTS AN4 15 LLYYTS 12°60€$ Youl ST
95'v8$ 01°Z8$ TL6L$ 8E'LLS A RVAS 15'8STS Yyou T
TTESS 99°1SS ST'0SS 69°87S LTLYS ¥T'86S Yaul v/
ES°LES vr'9eS 8E'GES SE'VES VE'EES 01°89% yaui 8/5
:safaey) a31M8s paxi4 AjUluoN
A R R T T R N T R R |
S2/v20Z A4 | ve/€20e Ad | €2/220T Ad | 22/120Z Ad | T2/020T A4 saiey
3|NpaYyIs 3iey JAIEM

ju=2.44n)

sa1ey pasodoid
- [319p1pA %09/ PaXi 3%0v) Siuauialinbay anuanay 13N - s310y pasododd|
8€ I19vV.L

*S3LVYH Y3LVM 03S0d0ld "SA LNFHHND

udisaq 21ey/sisAjeuy adIAIBS JO 150D JBIEMN
AQNLS 31VY ¥3LVM
1I1H1S1a H3LVM NOZVEYD

$3}0y pasodoiq %3 JUadIn)

g



W € j0 1€ 93ed ‘dwo) ||ig Y4S w.nmn.wnw.oow”wm._"_-__o@o“_.swmn:.\sgz ‘gam
SgN Aq paisedald

{at

(40H) uondwnsuo) Jaiem Ajyuo
ST

pasodoud - ||ig ¥dS =
Juaun) - |jig ¥4s

(1913w |, 8/9) sojey pasodo.id *SA Jualin)
uosiiedwo) |jig 1918\ |B1IUSpISOY




|w_’cu7-

Z€ 40 7€ 38eq ‘dwo) j|ig [EIBWIWOD

9757°9/9°008:92.4-{|01 | W0 A0SSqu-mmm :gap
SgN Aq pasedald

(40H) uonduwnsuo) sarep Ajysuo
174 0)7

<
o
5

-+
=7
<

@

pasodo.d - |jig [ePawwo) m
JUBLINYD - [|iF [RI2IDWIIO) [

(4933w youi-g/g) serey pasododd “SA Juasin)
uosiiedwo) |jig 1918\ [E1242WWO0)







